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Corporate Information (continuea)
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Financial Highlights
MHH=

Year ended Year ended Year ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021 30 June 2020
BZ EE y
=== —E-—F
~NA=TH ~NA=+H
LEFE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THTT FHT
(RENEIE))
(&&E75)
Results E4E
Revenue Wz
Exhibitions and events REgNED - 122 46,297
Cultural and entertainment XA K pR 4% 56,832 175,325 447,010
Financing mE 55,329 52,622 57,805
112,161 228,069 551,112
Gross profit EAH 78,934 120,960 285,174
Operating (loss)/profit i (B18),mF (116,815) 56,745 248,208
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(EB),#H (122,867) (5,447) 142,170

Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position

Total assets
Total liabilities
Net assets

mEMBRR R

BERE
EREFE
BEFE

At 30 June
2022
i

—E:=-=

AA=t+H

HK$'000
FTERT

703,583

(57,665)

645,918

At 30 June
2021

»
=P = =®&E
~NAZ=1H
HK$'000
T

882,122
(99,205)
782,917

At 30 June
2020
—EFF
~NHZ=1H
HK$'000
TATT
(Restated)
(&E751)

1,157,370
(459,717)
697,653
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Chairman’s Statement
EEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors
("Directors”) of NOVA Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present the report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “"Group”) for the year
ended 30 June 2022 (the “"Reporting Year"”) to all
shareholders of the Company.

The Group recorded revenue for the Reporting Year of
approximately HK$112.16 million (2021: approximately
HK$228.07 million), representing a decrease of approximately
50.82% as compared with that for the year ended 30 June
2021 (the “Prior Year” or “2021"). Loss for the Reporting
Year was approximately HK$122.87 million (2021:
approximately HK$5.45 million), representing an increase of
approximately 21.54 times as compared with that for the
Prior Year. Total comprehensive expenses for the Reporting
Year was approximately HK$137.00 million (2021: total
comprehensive income of approximately HK$46.54 million).

The coronavirus disease 2019 pandemic is still an ongoing
issue and has brought economic and social disruption to the
People’s Republic of China. The pandemic prevention
measures and social distancing policy by the government,
especially the city-wide lockdown in Shanghai, have
negatively affected the Group's business.

Given the uncertain economic outlook, the Group has
suspended the development of the exhibition business,
therefore no revenue was generated during the Reporting
Year. For the cultural and entertainment business, the Group
focused on improving the operational efficiency for
customers’ need rather than developing new businesses. We
believe that as long as we can stay strong with the customers
together during this economic downturn, our businesses will
get better when the pandemic is kept under control.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to be prudent in
managing revenue streams, to save resources as its basic
principle and take stringent cost control measures to
minimise the possible risk exposure.

BN ¢

AARARKHABEEEZRBERAR ((FA
ANEF((EE)) g (B8 ) MARAE
BRRZINARE REK B LR (G R
EEDEE-_T-_—_FXA=1+BLFE
([MEFE ) 2 RELEELIREMERE

AEEBESRBAEFENRINR
112,160,000/ 7T( = & = — F: &

122,870,000 T (—Z =
BIT)  EEAFALIE NG 21541 - KRS
F G R 2 X 48549 137,000,000 7T (=
T —F: 2E WA LREE 4L 46,540,000
JT) °

2019 BB FHRIFIIARE - WA/TEA
RAEMBTR T EHE R 2 REL - BRFER
RIEHE S AL EERERCR - LHR LIBH -
HHAREBENEBERBRTE

EREERNSTAN  AREEREEERR
BeXx®  RUbRHmEFE L 8ES W -
XA RIREXBM T - NEBFENIET
LEMEUMBELFR  MIFFMERE
5o BAIAE - R BRI E R
HEP—RET  BREXZE - RMANE
BRERE -

B 2R - AR A R L TR U O
B A ERAEARRR - R
A RERETEAZHEAR -
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
EFHRE 2

On behalf of the Company, | would like to take this
opportunity to express our sincere gratitude to our
shareholders and clients for their support, and to our
management and staff for their commitment and contribution
for the Reporting Year.

Deng Zhonglin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 23 September 2022

AANZBRRARRA] - IS ROERHBR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THEFWE S

BUSINESS REVIEW

Nova Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) is principally engaged
in the organisation and sponsorship of exhibitions and
events, the operation of cultural and entertainment
comprehensive services platform and provision of loan and
financing services.

Revenue and segment results of the Group for the year
ended 30 June 2022 (the “Reporting Year”) and for the year
ended 30 June 2021 (the “Prior Year” or “2021") are set out
as follows:

RBEER

“*ﬁ’éﬁli BRERRA(EAR ) REKEB

RE(HEAEE]) TREESRNED
REGLEY - KE U RIRER S R T
B MR E R R BB R

AEBREE T -_—_FA=ZTHIFE
((BEFE) RHEE-_T-_—F/A=1H
FFE(TEFE]I K ZB=—F ) kak
DEFEEHINAT ¢

For the year ended 30 June
BZAA=1HILEE

2022 2021
—Es=-= —E-—F
HK$’' 000 HK$'000
FHT BT
Revenue g3
Exhibitions and events REENEH - 122
Cultural and entertainment XA K pR g% 56,832 175,325
Financing & 55,329 52,622
112,161 228,069
Segment (loss)/profit from 2B (&E), R F
Exhibitions and events BE2MEE (1,242) (31,237)
Cultural and entertainment XT l:&#b&m (113,398) 77,595
Financing BhE 16,192 48,954
(98,448) 95,312
Exhibitions and Events Business RESREBEK

The exhibition industry continued to suffer from the
coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19") pandemic. The Group
is on its knees under stringent quarantine control. Under
such a prevailing environment, the Group has not launched
any exhibition during the Reporting Year and has decided to
suspend the exhibition and events business.

No revenue from the exhibitions and events business was
recorded for the Reporting Year (2021: approximately HK$0.12
million). It represented 0% (2021: approximately 0.05%) of the
total revenue.

BREe@TX#EI20090TiRESH
([COVID-19 ) BB & - NEE IEX 5 E

21

R E S > HZARRET - NREERERE
FREIESNEMRES  WRTEHERE
E&/E@%%

RE& LEHEBNREFEESREENS
(ZZTZ—4% : 49120,0007T) * 1h 48Uk 25
B10%(—ZF——4F : #90.05%) °
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EREWmRSH &)

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Cultural and Entertainment Business

The overall cultural and entertainment business performance
was weak since the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic.
Epidemic prevention measures and social distancing policy
introduced by the People’s Republic of China ("PRC")
government have a significant impact on the industry. The
Group has decided to suspend the brand marketing on
"PHEBE”, "MT" and “U.CLUB" and focus on “DrOscar” only.
We might not continue to develop new brands for brand
management. We understand from the market that the
development of brand management is not a trend nowadays.

Although the business in # & ¢t 82 ¥ & (transliterated as
“NOD Union Platform” or “NOD Union") is weak these
years, it is still a core competitive edge of the Group. We
believe that it is important to go through the economic
difficulties with our NOD Union members together. When the
COVID-19 pandemic issue is under control, we will restart the
promotion of NOD Union again.

As for the trading business (mainly trading of wine and
liquors), we had over a hundred customers, which most of
the revenue came from our existing or previous NOD Union
members and customers in brand management. The Group
discussed and negotiated the cost with distributors during
the contract period, and we determine the selling price
ourselves in a range of the suggested selling price offered by
the distributors. A manageable level of inventory is
maintained to lower the inventory risk and the burden of the
credit period. The Group will continue to explore new wine
distributors to enable us to grow in the industry.

Affected by many factors such as the economic devastation
brought by the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, many of
our customers experienced significant reductions in revenue,
and most of the restaurants and entertainment stores were
temporarily closed for a period longer than initially expected.
Most of the NOD Union members were forced to cease
operation due to the pandemic prevention measures.

Revenue from cultural and entertainment business has
decreased by approximately HK$118.50 million, or
approximately 67.59%, from approximately HK$175.33 million
for the Prior Year to approximately HK$56.83 million for the
Reporting Year and the prospect of income is uncertain in the
following few years. It represented approximately 50.67%
(2021: approximately 76.88%) of the total revenue.

RIGEIRE (=)

XA R IR ST

B COVID-19F 1518 B DA 3k - B g~ (b R iR
BRI - PEARLNE([HE))
BIFE AR EE M R BB BRI 1T
BRERKITE - AEBEERATE =
[PHEBE] ~ [MTJ & [U.CLUB] M fE#HE » W
EZ)F 5 [DrOscar] - AT e T2 4B FH
BB LUETTREEE - RMNMISE LT
R AEREERILIFRSBE -

BARMTFAREBBRTEEBEDS  HDHRZ
AEENZLBRFEDS - RAAEEBHH
BIrakE—REBEERNREIBEHEE
Z - ECOVID- 19 BEMBEXIEE  HMEHE
REREEBBETEEE -

RESHER (TBERFBELERES)ME
BREAEEB—AREP  MAMY KSR
BRMAREBEENHAERETFEEEULR
mEEENES - AEERAGOHAEDH
AR s R RN - BAPIE D SER R A2
AEEHENETEEEE - BEEN
FEKRF  DREFERRIEEHEE -
REBEGEERZFHFED HE - EHRAM
BEESEITERRE ©

S COVID-19% 15 IR B A5 R M 48 5 2 B 5 7
ZREFE  BANAKSBHEEHNKREES
RIBEIR » BRI D B EE K IR G435 P 8 B
FRERRINSEHRER - AR RER -

REDHEBHETEEBBAFILZE -

XAk Ko SR %4 5 75 9 Uk 2 B 25 AR 49 175,330,000
7 70 38 4> 49 118,500,000 7 7T 3k 49 67.59% &
R JE 4956,830,0008 7T © AW AR K
REFHR R THRR - HEBLKZEYD
50.67% (—Z =~ —4F : 4976.88%) °
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEER WA

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) -+ {5) - 1€=))
Cultural and Entertainment Business (Continued) VAL B IRGLZEFE (42)

Cultural and entertainment comprehensive services platform
are currently divided into the following components:

XA M IREET A IRIG T B IRD B T HIREA -

For the year ended 30 June
BEAA=THILEE

2022 2021
—ZE__ T —F
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Brand management and related services kR %E IR N B AR 1% i 4,932 10,389
Promotion and consulting services HEE LB AR ji 17,053 60,373
Trading of goods HmE S fii 34,847 104,563
56,832 175,325
Notes: B
i. Brand management and related services i. mIEEE R AR

Providing brand management and related services under the brand
names of “PHEBE", “MT", “U.CLUB" and “DrOscar”.

LA [PHEBE] * [MT] ~ TU.CLUB] X [DrOscar] 2
MRAETR AL AR M B 1B AR R R TS o

iil. Promotion and consulting services iii.
Providing product promotion services, systematic entertainment
solution and advisory services, including entertainment management
consulting, event planning, online marketing; and other ad hoc
consultancy services.

HREREARE

RRHEMEERE - ZRMEREERT R KK
W% BREREEEZR EPRE KLE
3 REAE B AR -

iii.  Trading of goods iii.
Trading of wine and liquor, e-cigarettes and daily supplies to
entertainment stores and NOD Union members, which selling wine and
liquors represent approximately 99.35% of the trading business.

BAmES

RSP E R S E T A 8 REFE B
BEFERAERMES  WEFHREEE
EREBHEE#H99.35% °
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

ERESSMRST &)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Financing Business

Due to the COVID-19 outbreak and the ensuing city-wide
lockdown in Shanghai, business operations and cashflows of
customers have been negatively affected. In response to the
Shanghai government’s call to alleviate the operating
pressure, and to provide support for the resumption of
production and business of, the enterprise, with a view to
navigating through challenges amid the COVID-19 pandemic
with collective effort, the Group has granted a waiver of
three-month interests to those customers located in
Shanghai, which is shown as loss on modification of factoring
loans of approximately HK$4.63 million in other gains and
losses. As a result of the uncertain environment in cultural
and entertainment business, the Group did not sign any new
finance lease agreements to control the risk.

The Group has credit policy and loan approval process to
minimise credit risks. The interest rate range has been
adjusted during the Reporting Year due to the market
changes. Compared with the other two segments, the result
from our financing business is encouraging, the Group will
continue to explore new customer bases.

Revenue from financing business has increased by
approximately HK$2.71 million, or approximately 5.15%, from
approximately HK$52.62 million for the Prior Year to
approximately HK$55.33 million for the Reporting Year. It
represented approximately 49.33% (2021: approximately
23.07%) of the total revenue.

The financing business is currently divided into the following
components:

REDE (=)

B 7Y COVID-19 #) & 3 N BE 2 T 2R &) /&
W BEPNEBEEMRESRAXIAEE
& RERLBBNNRE  BRELENE
BB REERELEMEBIRMHSIE
ABECOVID-19R BB RE /1 > KB E
B AEERUN DENEFPEEH=[EAM
MEFR  YREMWNE MERPERSE
R IRIEE FR A B 18 494,630,00078 7T - AR
MAE RIREEEFEIRFE I TRARA - NEE Y &
AT AT B & THE el AR I AL -

AEEREEERRMERBERETFUEE
WIEEERR - RBEFE - MEXHEDH
TS M AF SR o B AL M E 5 2 AR
B MEXBNEES AR AEESE
BRMHHEPR

B & 2R I ES B & F 4952,620,000 78 TT 1%
H1#92,710,000 7088 49 5.15% & R &5 FE 49
55,330,000 78 7T ° H b 48 U 7 47 49.33% (=
T —4F : 4)23.07%) °

BMEXBRD /TR

For the year ended 30 June
BEANA=THILEE

2022 2021

—E-— —E-—F

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

FET FET

Credit factoring SERE i 48,295 41,665
Finance leasing mMEMHE i 5,441 9,317
Money lending WE jii 1,593 1,640
55,329 52,622

10 NOVA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22



Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

ERBEMmR SN 2

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Financing Business (Continued)

Notes:

i Credit factoring
Credit factoring allows customers to free up cash tied up in unpaid
invoices. The finance period given to customers ranges from 6 months
to 3 years and the finance services allow customers to release up to
80% of the invoice value.

iil. Finance leasing
The Group focused on expanding its small and medium-sized leasing
from sale and leaseback business and centering on the cultural and
entertainment customers. The financing period given to customers
ranges from 1.25 to 3 years.

iii. Money lending
Providing pledged and non-pledged money lending to individuals to
maximise customer value. The financing period given to customers
ranges from 6 to 12 months.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Reporting Year, the Group has recorded
approximately HK$112.16 million in revenue, representing a
decrease of approximately 50.82% as compared with that in
the Prior Year of approximately HK$228.07 million. Operating
loss for the Reporting Year was approximately HK$116.82
million as compared with an operating profit of approximately
HK$56.75 million for the Prior Year. Net loss for the Reporting
Year was approximately HK$122.87 million, representing an
increase of approximately 21.54 times as compared with the
net loss in the Prior Year of approximately HK$5.45 million.
The increase in net loss was mainly attributable to the
impairment loss on goodwill and impairment losses under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model, net of reversal.

EBOER ()

WigE :

i. FERE
FEREREFPUBERRNERFENRS -
BRTEPHBERN TEAZE3IF  MEER
BRI R ZE0%MEREE -

iil MEMEE
REEHFRMRPNDUEEREREEY - I
SUEFIRZERFE BE - K P RFHBEBRRN
T 125F 34 ©

ii.  HE
AEARKEERREERAREABEFEER
R - BT EFPOBMERRN T 6= 121EA -

Rt ¥5 E1RA

RMEFE - NEBEEF MR 112,160,000
7 JT 0 B & #9228,070,00078 JT R A 49
5082%° MEFE 2L L HELD A
116,820,000 7T + £ F BIER 1548 & m A &)
56,750,000/ 7L - MEFE 2 FEIBLH A
122,870,000/ 7T + & FFE518495,450,000
ETTIE A 21546 - FEBENEZHR
AmEREBELREREEBE(FAHEES
BEABET ZREEIE (NkRER) -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEER W22

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) MO 2

The following table sets forth a summary of the performance TERFIIANEBRREFEZ ZERE » &
of the Group for the Reporting Year with comparative figures REEHLLEREFOT -
for the Prior Year as follows:

For the year ended 30 June
BEARA=THLEE

2022 2021
—E—= == e
HK$' 000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue e 112,161 228,069
Operating (I0ss)/profit e (BR),/SEF (116,815) 56,745
Operating (loss)/profit margin (%) 1 (B1R),RFE (%) (104.15)% 24.88%
Net gain on change in fair value of B AREBEATFEE
contingent consideration payables Z Wz FRE = 914
Net loss on financial assets at fair value 122 F{EE A B
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") ([BAFEFAER])
ZEREBEEZBEFE (803) (17,976)
Impairment loss on goodwill HERERE (111,418) (35,947)
Impairment losses under ECL model,  FEHEEEEERIB T2
net of reversal REEE (FkRE D) (45,632) 28,914
Loss for the year FEEE (122,867) (5,447)
Revenue Wz

The revenue has decreased by approximately HK$115.91 g 28 B & & #9228,070,0005 7T & 4 49
million, or approximately 50.82%, from approximately 115,910,000 7 7T 3k #750.82% & ¥ & 5 £ 4
HK$228.07 million for the Prior Year to approximately 112,160,000 - W2 2 F 2 &1 R
HK$112.16 million for the Reporting Year. The reduction was — COVID-19& 15 1@ 5 8 H (b ]2 12 44 5 2h Uk 25
mainly attributable to the decrease in the revenue of cultural ¥ 4> 47118,500,0007 7 ME B2 NI &)
and entertainment segment of approximately HK$118.50  H ZBIf fE4E 15U o

million and no revenue from exhibitions and events segment

was recorded due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic.

12 NOVA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22



Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EREMMmRASN =

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Other Gains and Losses

The net other losses has increased by approximately HK$0.34
million, or approximately 4.55%, from net other losses of
approximately HK$7.47 million for the Prior Year to net other
losses of approximately HK$7.81 million for the Reporting
Year.

The Group's loss on financial assets at FVTPL has decreased
significantly to approximately HK$0.80 million, or
approximately 95.55% for the Reporting Year (2021: loss of
approximately HK$17.98 million), primarily due to an
unrealised loss from an investment in a Hong Kong listed
equity security of approximately HK$13.00 million was
recorded for the Prior Year, as trading of its shares has been
suspended by the Stock Exchange since 5 May 2021. The fair
value was assessed by the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) with reference to the professional valuation
carried out by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited (“Peak
Vision”), an independent qualified professional valuer.

During the Reporting Year, the Group recognised 10ss on
modification of factoring loans of approximately HK$4.63
million due to the waiver of three-month interests to
customers affected by the city-wide lockdown in Shanghai.

Impairment Loss on Goodwill

During the Reporting Year, the Group recognised impairment
loss on goodwill of approximately HK$111.42 million, of which
approximately HK$81.67 million was for Cheer Sino Group
cash-generating unit (“"CGU(s)") and approximately HK$29.75
million was for Fortune Selection Group CGU, due to the risk
of uncertain developments in the economic condition.

Many of our customers experienced significant reductions in
revenue due to the economic devastation brought by the
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic. Most of the restaurants and
entertainment stores were temporarily closed for a period
longer than initially expected. The prospect of relevant
income is uncertain in the following few years. The
impairment loss on goodwill arose as a result of the less than
satisfactory past and expected performance of the Cheer
Sino Group CGU and Fortune Selection Group CGU. Further
details of the impairment loss on goodwill are set out in Note
20 of the consolidated financial statements.

MO 2

Hftt s R &8

EMmEEEERE=FEMERIEY
7,470,0003% JT 1 HN 49 340,000 7T 8% 47 4.55%
EREFEHMEIEFEEL7,810,00075 7T °

REEZRATEFABRZEMEEZEBRE
3R G E KR IR 4 = 49.800,000 7 7T 3k 4Y
95.55% ( =T — —4F : [E5184917,980,000 %
) FERREBE—FRAARARBRYE
BMIAEERNEEAR  ZFHERES
FTTREBHFZREZREREBEY
13,000,000 7T - A FERARRES([E
E)2EHBILABEREEGHEMSETE
ERAF(REDFTETZEXGAERTE
Eh

RBEFE IR LBHBFENREP
BEe—EANE  AEEERETREER
H B 1849 4,630,000 7 7T, ©

BERESE

RIFEFE - AREEMRRBEROTHETE T
B AEEEREE2REBEY
111,420,000 7% 7T+ H 91 4981,670,000 %8 7T /&
RELEERcELEV([REEELE M)
X #729,750,0007% 7T B KA Fortune Selection
SERCEEEN -

MR COVD-19RIEBEBRNLCEZE - &
I KEBD TP RS E S RIEHIR o AE6
DERE MRS T SEEANERRY ST
HB R - HERAR KRB FAEIL A
BR- L% EIR ¢ E 4 ¥ 1 KFortune
Selection S EIR & EEEMBE RTERIRIA
Ronigre - BYELEFEREEE - mER
BEEEZE —PHBINREYERRW T
20 °
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EBEMmRRN =)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Impairment Losses under ECL Model, Net of
Reversal

During the Reporting Year, the Group recognised impairment
losses under ECL model, net of reversal of approximately
HK$45.63 million. The impairment assessment under ECL
model is performed individually or based on a provision
matrix. The credit risk has increased significantly as there is a
higher risk that a prolonged pandemic could let to increased
credit default rates. The ECLs are estimated based on the
probability of default and loss given default and are adjusted
for forward-looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or effort. Further
details of the impairment losses under ECL model, net of
reversal are set out in Notes 23-27 of the consolidated
financial statements.

Selling and Administrative Expenses

The Group's selling expenses has decreased by
approximately HK$5.66 million, or approximately 38.87%,
from approximately HK$14.56 million for the Prior Year to
approximately HK$8.90 million for the Reporting Year. The
Group’s administrative expenses has decreased by
approximately HK$18.80 million, or approximately 43.02%,
from approximately HK$43.70 million for the Prior Year to
approximately HK$24.90 million for the Reporting Year. Such
decrease was primarily due to the cost control measures
taken by the Group.

Operating Loss and Operating Loss Margin

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s operating loss for
the Reporting Year was approximately HK$116.82 million, as
compared with an operating profit of approximately HK$56.75
million for the Prior Year. The Group had an operating 10ss
margin of approximately 104.15% for the Reporting Year, as
compared with an operating profit margin of approximately
24.88% for the Prior Year. The change of operating profit into
operating loss was mainly due to the decrease in revenue,
increase in impairment loss on goodwill and impairment
losses under ECL model, net of reversal led by the outbreak
of COVID-19 pandemic.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

ERBEMmR SN 2

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Finance Costs

The Group's finance costs has decreased by approximately
HK$16.23 million, or approximately 77.07%, from
approximately HK$21.06 million for the Prior Year to
approximately HK$4.83 million for the Reporting Year. Such
decrease was mainly due to the redemption of corporate
bonds during the Reporting Year and less interest expenses
was needed.

Loss for the Year Attributable to the Owners
of the Company

The Group's loss for the year attributable to the owners of
the Company has increased by approximately HK$122.05
million, or approximately 148.84 times, from approximately
HK$0.82 million for the Prior Year to approximately HK$122.87
million for the Reporting Year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not hold any
significant investments during the Reporting Year.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 30 June 2022, the Group's total current assets and
current liabilities were approximately HK$559.47 million (2021:
approximately HK$569.59 million) and approximately
HK$56.51 million (2021: approximately HK$95.78 million),
respectively, while the current ratio was about 9.90 times
(2021: about 5.95 times).

As at 30 June 2022, the Group maintained cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$71.76 million (2021:
approximately HK$69.06 million). The cash and cash
equivalents of the Group as at 30 June 2022 was mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and Renminbi
("RMB").

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong classified as financial
assets at FVTPL with carrying amount of approximately
HK$269,000 are placed in margin accounts of a regulated
securities broker. No margin facility was utilised as at 30 June
2022.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2022 and 2021, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

ERESSMRST &)

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL RESOURCES (Continued)

Capital Commitments

As at 30 June 2022 and 2021, the Group had no material
capital commitments contracted but not provided.

Capital Structure

As at 30 June 2022, the Company’s issued share capital was
approximately HK$3.71 million (2021: approximately HK$3.71
million) with 1,855,903,277 (2021: 1,855,903,277) ordinary
shares of HK$0.002 each in issue.

Borrowings

In the foreseeable future, the Group expects to fund its
capital expenditures, working capital and other capital
requirements from the internal resources and other financing
means which the Company may from time to time consider
appropriate. As at 30 June 2022, the Group's borrowings was
approximately HK$40.51 million (2021: approximately
HK$66.77 million).
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The Group manages its capital to safeguard the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders of the Company through maintaining
the equity and debt in a balanced position. As at 30 June
2022, the borrowings of approximately HK$40.51 million were
unsecured and fixed rate interest bearing debt securities.

The gearing ratio is the ratio of total debt divided by total
assets. As at 30 June 2022, the gearing ratio was
approximately 5.76% (2021: approximately 7.57%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

ERBEMmR SN 2

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital
assets as at 30 June 2022.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during
the Reporting Year.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the Reporting Year (2021: HK$Nil).

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING YEAR

The Group has no significant event after the end of the
Reporting Year up to the date of this report.

FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS

The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic has forced the
Group to review and recalibrate its development strategies
and planning based on assessments of the actual and
potential impacts of the pandemic. The overdue percentage
of trade receivables has increased and most of the factoring
and finance lease customers settled their respective payment
during the grace period or even later. The credit risk has
increased and higher than our expectation.

As the COVID-19 pandemic is still an ongoing issue, the
Company believes that the Group’s business environment
will continue to be challenging under the stress of pandemic
prevention and control in the short to medium term, we will
continue to monitor the risk factors and re-assess the client’s
recoverability when needed. As more people joined the
COVID-19 vaccination programme, the Company expects the
revenue will be improved after the COVID-19 pandemic is
under control in the long term.

Looking ahead into the coming year, the Group continues to
closely monitor the development of the COVID-19 pandemic
and will take all possible and reasonable measures to
mitigate the effect on the Group's operation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EBEMmRRN =)

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES IN THE PAST
TWELVE MONTHS

There was no equity fund raising activity of the Company
during the last 12 months prior to the date of this report.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group manages or operates its business in Hong Kong
and the PRC and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to
United States dollars and RMB. The Group has no significant
direct exposure to foreign currencies as most of the
commercial transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency same as the functional currency
of each entity of the Group and has not employed any
financial instruments for hedging purpose.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had a total of 96 full-time
employees in Hong Kong and the PRC (2021: 97 full-time
employees). The remuneration payable to its employees
included salaries, discretionary bonus and commissions.
Remuneration packages were generally structured according
to market situations and individual performance. Apart from
the mandatory provident fund and statutory retirement
benefits, the Group also provided medical benefits and
trainings to its employees. The Company has also adopted a
share option scheme as incentive to eligible employees.

Furthermore, the remuneration committee of the Board will
review and give recommendations to the Board as to the
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management of the Group with reference to salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and senior management of
the Group.

The total remuneration paid to employees, including the
Directors, for the Reporting Year was approximately
HK$18,395,000 (2021: approximately HK$28,287,000).
Remuneration is determined by reference to market terms
and the performance, qualification and experience of each
individual employee.
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Biographical Details of Directors

ESCEEHFR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Deng Zhonglin (“Mr. Deng"), aged 48, was appointed as
an executive Director of the Company on 14 October 2016.
Mr. Deng is currently the chairman of the Board and the chief
executive officer of the Company and is also the chairman of
the nomination committee of the Board (the “Nomination
Committee”) and a member of the remuneration committee
of the Board (the “Remuneration Committee”). Mr. Deng
holds directorships in several subsidiaries within the Group
including t@inEm & E ORYI) R A A] (transliterated as
Furuida Financial Leasing (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.) and E/&5F{5
¥ RIEAE R A A (transliterated as Shanghai Shouxin
Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd.), etc.

Mr. Deng has over 22 years of experience in corporate
management and strategic planning. He is familiar with the
exhibition industry and the operation of advertising business.
Mr. Deng graduated from Shenzhen University in 1995. From
1999 to 2003, Mr. Deng served as an assistant to the general
manager of /&8 & A i & B R 2 Al (transliterated as
Shanghai Wanzhou Shipping Co., Ltd.). From 2004 to 2009, he
was the managing director of 7k & /& i /& & & R A 7
(transliterated as Ever Maru Shipping Co., Ltd.). From 2010 to
2017, he served as the general manager of /BB RESE
% B R A & (transliterated as Shanghai Public Advertising
Communications Co., Ltd.), which was mainly engaged in
advertising, display and exhibition services as well as
conference services.

Mr. Wong Yuk Lun Alan (“Mr. Wong"), aged 48, was
appointed as an executive Director of the Company on 15
July 2020. Mr. Wong graduated from the University of
Sunderland with a bachelor’'s degree in accounting and
finance. Mr. Wong had been working with various accounting
firms and commercial companies and has over 22 years of
experience in merger and acquisitions, financial
management, taxation, audit and non-audit services.

Mr. Wong is currently an independent non-executive director
of Huisheng International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1340),
Deson Construction International Holdings Limited (currently
known as Smart City Development Holdings Limited) (stock
code: 8268) and Kin Shing Holdings Limited (stock code:
1630), the issued shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr
Wong is also an independent non-executive director of Temir
Corp. (stock code: TMRR) since 15 July 2019, the issued
shares of which is traded on the OTC Securities Marketplace
in the United States of America.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

ERZEEHE 2

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Wong was an independent non-executive director of TUS
International Limited (currently known as Titan Invo
Technology Limited) (stock code: 872) from 2 September 2014
to 17 July 2020, the issued shares of which is listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong was also an independent non-
executive director of Tech Pro Technology Development
Limited (original stock code: 3823) from 24 May 2019 to 2
March 2020 and Bolina Holding Co., Ltd. (original stock code:
1190) from 7 July 2016 to 27 March 2017, the issued shares of
which had been formerly listed on the Stock Exchange.

Non-executive Director

Ms. Huang Chian Sandy (“Ms. Huang"), aged 50, was
appointed as a non-executive Director of the Company on 15
July 2020. Ms. Huang graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic
(currently known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University)
with a diploma in design. Ms. Huang has over 22 years of
experience in managing real estate agency business and real
estate credit fund in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC").

Ms. Huang has been the founder of H/&2EEMEEAE
[ 7~ &l (transliterated as Shanghai Mengteng Real Estate
Information Company Limited) since December 2018. She
served as the chief executive officer and the regional director
of EBAIFREHELLLEREBR QA (transliterated as Keller
Williams Greater Shanghai Company Limited) from July 2016
to November 2018. She also founded and served as the chief
executive officerof L8R EFREET B ABHA AR A A
(transliterated as Yida Investments Management &
Consultancy (Shanghai) Company Limited), and served as the
chief investment officer of BRJ Asset Management Limited
from August 2011 to July 2016. She also served as the chief
operating officerof E 8 R X E R E 5 B R 2 7
(transliterated as Carnaby (Shanghai) Company Limited) from
July 2009 to July 2011. From October 2006 to November 2008,
Ms. Huang served as the general manager of )8 % E i
ERE BB AR AR (transliterated as Shanghai Ruifeng Real
Estate Investment Consultants Company Limited). From
December 2002 to October 2006, Ms. Huang founded and
served as the general manager of /B IS EREBERA
R 2 &) (transliterated as Bonity Property Group (Shanghai)
Limited).
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

ERZEEHE 2

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Choi Hung Fai (“Mr. Choi"), aged 37, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company on
17 July 2015. Mr. Choi is a member of each of the audit
committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”) and the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Choi has over 13 years of
experience in securities trading, fund raising activities,
corporate finance and project investments. Mr. Choi
possesses knowledge in financial analysis, corporate finance,
corporate valuation and corporate governance. Mr. Choi
graduated with a bachelor’'s degree in business
administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, and
obtained a master of finance degree in corporate finance
from the University of New South Wales in Australia.

Mr. Choi is currently the founder and managing director of
Draco Capital Limited and also a responsible officer for Type
6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated activity of Draco
Capital Limited under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Mr. Choi is
principally responsible for advising on corporate finance
activities, pre-initial public offerings, merger & acquisitions,
fund raising activities and corporate restructurings for private
and public companies in the PRC, the United State of America
and Hong Kong. Mr. Choi is also an independent director of
WeTrade Group Inc. (stock code: WETG) since September
2020, the issued shares of which are traded on the NASDAQ
Capital Market in the United States of America.

Mr. Tsang Wing Ki (“Mr. Tsang"), aged 60, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company on 9
March 2017. Mr. Tsang is currently the chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Tsang has over 27 years of experience in finance,
accounting and auditing. Mr. Tsang obtained a professional
diploma in accountancy from Hong Kong Polytechnic
(currently known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in
November 1987 and a master of professional accounting
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November
2000. Mr. Tsang is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (FCPA) and a fellow
member of the Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants (FCCA).
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

ERECEEHE 2

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Tsang was a chief financial officer of Xin Dau Ji
Membership Management Limited from July 2015 to
September 2019. He was an independent non-executive
director of VBG International Holdings Limited (currently
known as Hatcher Group Limited), a company listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8365) from May 2017 to
December 2017. He was an independent non-executive
director of ICube Technology Holdings Limited (currently
known as Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
139) from November 2014 to July 2016. He was an
independent non-executive director of Unity Investments
Holdings Limited (currently known as Harbour Digital Asset
Capital Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 913) from September 2004 to
October 2014. He was an executive director of Noble Jewelry
Holdings Limited (currently known as Central Development
Holdings Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 475) from August 2008 to
December 2011.

Dr. Wong Kong Tin, s (“Dr. Wong"), aged 55, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
on 13 December 2017. Dr. Wong is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee, and a member of each of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. He has
over 29 years of practical experience in the legal fields of
cross-border investment in Greater China, financing,
corporate acquisition, merger, listing, real estate project
development, e-commerce, brand management, corporate
governance, arbitration mediation, and media and public
administration.

Dr. Wong holds an LLB and LLM from Peking University,
postgraduate diploma in English and Hong Kong Law from
The Manchester Metropolitan University in the United
Kingdom, and LLD in constitutional and administrative law
from Renmin University of China. He is also an associate of
each of Chartered Institute of Arbitrators and Hong Kong
Institute of Arbitrators, a Hong Kong registered financial
planner, a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, an
accredited general mediator of the Hong Kong Mediation
Accreditation Association Limited, a founding member of The
Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Director Association,
and an associate of The Hong Kong Association of Financial
Advisors Limited.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

ERZEEHE 2

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Dr. Wong's current community services include: the chairman
of the Hong Kong Liquor Licensing Board, the chairperson of
the Appeal Panel under the Property Management Service
Ordinance, a member of the Advisory Committee on Post-
service Employment of Civil Servants of the Government of
Hong Kong, a member of the Citizens Advisory Committee on
Community Relations of the Independent Commission
Against Corruption, the vice chairman of the Association of
Hong Kong Professionals, a member of each of the Finance
Committee and Management Committee of Hong Kong
News-Expo and an executive committee member of the Basic
Law Institute Limited. He was also an observer of
Independent Police Complaints Council from September 2007
to August 2015, a member of the panel to the Appeal Board
(Hotel and Guesthouse Accommodation), a member of the
panel to the Appeal Board (Bedspace Apartments), a member
of the panel to the Appeal Board (Clubs (Safety of Premises))
from April 2012 to April 2018, a member of the Panel of
Adjudicators of the Obscene Articles Tribunal from August
2010 to August 2019 and a member of the Solicitors
Disciplinary Tribunal Panel from May 2010 to May 2022.

Dr. Wong currently serves as the vice chairman of the Greater
China Legal Affairs Committee and the Community Relations
Committee of the Law Society of Hong Kong. Dr. Wong is also
a member of the tenth to twelfth Shanghai Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a
member of the Chinese Association of Hong Kong and Macau
Studies, a member of the Hong Kong Basic Law and Macau
Basic Law Research Association, a member of Expert
Committee of the China (Guangdong) Free Trade Zone in
Hengaing New Area and an Arbitrator of Court of Arbitration
for Labour and Personal Dispute, Nansha Area, Guangdong
Free Trade Zone.

Dr. Wong also serves as an arbitrator of Arbitration
commission in Shenzhen, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Zhuhai,
Huizhou, Liuzhou, Zhengzhou, Hohhot, Hainan, Chengde,
Nanchang, Nanning, Taiyuan, Shenyang and Guiyang.

Dr. Wong is currently an independent non-executive director
of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited (stock code: 9928).
From June 2010 to July 2014, Dr. Wong served as an
independent non-executive director of Great Wall Technology
Company Limited (original stock code: 74) which was
privatised and automatically delisted from the Stock Exchange
inJuly 2014.
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Report of the Directors
ERERE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of
NOVA Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) (together
with its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the “Group”)
presents its report and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2022 (the “Reporting
Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out
in Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during
the Reporting Year and the financial key performance
indicators affecting its results and financial position are set
out in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” (“MD&A") of this annual report.

The information about a fair review of, and an indication of
likely future development in the Group's business is set out in
the MD&A of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in the MD&A of this annual report under
the section headed “Event after the Reporting Period”, there
are no important events affecting the Group that have
occurred since the end of the Reporting Year.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The results and business operations of the Group may be
affected by a number of risks and uncertainties. The
followings are the major risks and uncertainties currently
faced or anticipated by the Group, and it is not meant to be
exhaustive. There may be other risks and uncertainties which
are currently not known to the Group or immaterial but then
it turns out to be material in the future.

Operation Risk

During the Reporting Year, the outbreak of the coronavirus
disease 2019 (“COVID-19") pandemic has affected many
businesses. Based on the current situation and unpredictable
circumstances, the Directors consider the contingency
measures implemented by the government will have short-
term adverse impact on the Group’s operations and it could
be materially different from the aforesaid expectation
depending on how the situation evolves.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EREEE )

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties (Continued)
Operation Risk (Continued)

The Group's financing business, including credit factoring,
finance leasing and money lending, needs to renew the
licences periodically for the operations. The Group might face
non-compliance risk and risk of losing such licences.

The Group has internal control policy and procedures for staff
to follow and has a team to monitor and update the rules and
regulatory requirements.

The Group’s business and profitability growth during the
Reporting Year was affected by the increase in competition in
the industry and the volatility and uncertainty of the macro-
economic conditions in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"). The Group is expected to continue to be
affected by the above factors.

Financial Risk

The details of financial risk management objectives and
practices of the Group are set out in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. There may be
other risks and uncertainties in addition to those mentioned
above which are not known to the Group or which may not
be material now but could turn out to be material in the
future.

PRC Economic, Political and Legal Risk

The Group’s business operations are mainly conducted in the
PRC and therefore significantly affected by the economic,
political and legal developments in the PRC. The PRC
government may implement various measures to encourage
economic growth, some of the measures may have a
negative effect on the Group.

The Group has a team to monitor the development in the PRC
to enable the Group to make necessary adjustments to its
business strategies. Any material changes that could impact
the Group significantly will be reported to the Board for
actions.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-
friendly corporation that pays close attention to conserving
natural resources. The Group strives to minimise its impact
on the environment by reducing electricity consumption and
encouraging recycling of office supplies and double-sided
printing. For further details, please refer to the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report set out on pages 61 to 103 of
this annual report.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EFEHRE®)

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and
Regulations

To the best knowledge of the Board and the management,
the Group has complied with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group’s
business and operation during the Reporting Year.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers
and Suppliers

The Group’s management policies, working environment,
career prospects and employees' benefits have contributed
to building good employee relations and employee retention
for the Group. The Group offers competitive remuneration
packages commensurate with industry practice, provides
various fringe benefits to employees and internal training
appropriate to individual needs. The management regularly
reviews its employees’ remuneration packages to ensure
they are up to prevailing market standard. The Group has
established long-term business relationships with its major
suppliers and customers. The Group will endeavour to
maintain its established relationships with these existing
suppliers and customers.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 113 to 114 of this annual
report.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the Reporting Year (2021: HK$Nil).

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, the objective of
which is to allow shareholders of the Company to participate
in the Company’s profits whilst retaining adequate reserves
to sustain the Group's future growth. The declaration, form,
frequency and amount of dividend paid by the Company
must be in accordance with applicable laws and the relevant
provisions of the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”). In deciding whether to declare
any dividend, the Board will take into account a number of
factors, including the financial results, the distributable
reserves, the operations and liquidity requirements, and the
current and future development plans of the Company. The
Board will review the dividend policy of the Company as
appropriate from time to time.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EFEHRE 2

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 264
of this annual report.

BORROWINGS

The total borrowings of the Group (including debentures) as
at 30 June 2022 amounted to approximately HK$40.51 million
(30 June 2021: approximately HK$66.77 million). Details of
borrowings are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the Reporting Year are set out in Note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the Reporting Year are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any listed securities of the Company during
the Reporting Year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of
the Group during the Reporting Year are set out in Note 42 to
the consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the Group, respectively.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EFEHRE 2

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the Company’s distributable reserves as at 30 June
2022 are set out in Note 42 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

No charitable donations was made by the Group during the
Reporting Year (2021: HK$Nil).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Directors’ and senior officers’ liabilities in respect of legal
actions against them arising out of corporate activities. The
permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the
Directors throughout the Reporting Year and as at the date of
approval of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Year, the revenue generated from the
Group'’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
17.49% (2021: approximately 19.32%) of the Group’s total
revenue and the revenue from the largest customer included
therein accounted for approximately 4.18% (2021:
approximately 6.59%) of the Group's total revenue.

During the Reporting Year, the fees paid to the Group's five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 98.46% (2021:
approximately 90.64%) of the Group’s cost of sales and the
supplies from the largest supplier included therein accounted
for approximately 91.92% (2021: approximately 77.44%) of the
Group's cost of sales .

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and/or five largest suppliers for the Reporting
Year.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EFEHRE 2

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Reporting Year and
up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Deng Zhonglin
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wong Yuk Lun Alan

Non-executive Director
Ms. Huang Chian Sandy

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Choi Hung Fai

Mr. Tsang Wing Ki

Dr. Wong Kong Tin, Jp

Mr. Qiu Peiyuan (Resigned on 11 October 2021)

In accordance with Article 105(A) of the Articles of
Association, at each annual general meeting ("“AGM") of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being or, if
their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire
from office by rotation. Mr. Wong Yuk Lun Alan and Mr. Choi
Hung Fai will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATIONS FROM
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules (the “Listing Rules”)
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Company
has received an annual confirmation from each independent
non-executive Director confirming his independence. The
Company has assessed the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and considers that for the Reporting
Year, all of them were independent based on the
independence criteria in accordance with the requirements
in the Listing Rules, their non-involvement in the daily
operation and management of the Company, and the
absence of any relationships which will interfere with the
exercise of their independent judgments.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EFEHRE 2

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save for those disclosed in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” in this Report of the Directors, at no time during the
Reporting Year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any of the Directors or their respective spouses or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or
was the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for the re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has or is proposed to have a service contract with the
Company not determinable by the Company within one year
without the payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The Directors’ emoluments are determined by the Board after
considering the recommendations from the remuneration
committee of the Board (the "Remuneration Committee”)
with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities, individual
performance and the results of the Group. Such emoluments
are subject to the shareholders’ approval at the AGM.

Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments for the Reporting
Year are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in
which a Director of the Company or any entity connected
with the Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any time during the
Reporting Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

For the Reporting Year, the Board is not aware of any
business or interests of the Directors and their respective
associates that had competed or might compete with the
business of the Group and any other conflicts of interests
which any such person had or might have with the Group.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EFEHRE 2

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the
usual course of business are set out in Note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of these related
party transactions constitutes a connected transaction as
defined under the Listing Rules which is required to be
disclosed.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the service contracts of the Directors, the
Company did not enter into any contracts with any individual,
firm or body corporate to manage or administer the whole or
any substantial part of any business of the Company during
the Reporting Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to selected participants for their contributions to the
Group. The Share Option Scheme was adopted by the
Company on 18 October 2013 (the “Adoption Date”).

Summary of Terms
(i) Purpose and participants

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Group to grant options to selected participants as
incentives or rewards for their contributions to the
Group. Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme
include the following classes of participants:

(@ any employee (whether full-time or part-time
including any executive Directors but excluding
any non-executive Director) of the Company, any
of the subsidiaries or any entity (the “Invested
Entity”) in which the Group holds an equity
interest;

(b) any non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) of the
Company, any of the subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EFEHRE 2

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BEBR T8 &)
Summary of Terms (Continued) FRRBE (&)
(i) Purpose and participants (Continued) (i) EMRSBEEE)

(e) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the
Group or any member of any Invested Entity;

(f)  any shareholder of any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

(8 any adviser (professional or otherwise) or
consultant to any area of business or business
development of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; and

(h) any other group or classes of participants who
have contributed or may contribute by way of joint
venture, business alliance or other business
arrangement to the growth of the Group, and, for
the purposes of the Share Option Scheme, the
options may be granted to any company wholly-
owned by one or more persons belonging to any
of the above classes of participants.

The eligibility of any of the above classes of participants
to the grant of any option shall be determined by the
Directors from time to time on the basis of the Directors’
opinion as to his/her/its contribution to the
development and growth of the Group.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

ERERE~

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

summary of Terms (Continued)

(i)

Total number of shares available for issue

The maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be allotted and issued upon the exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group shall not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the issued share capital (the “Issued
Share Capital”) of the Company from time to time. The
total number of shares which may be allotted and
issued upon the exercise of all options (excluding, for
this purpose, options which have lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Group) to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Group as may from time to time
be adopted by the Company as permitted under the
Listing Rules initially must not, in aggregate, exceed 10%
of the Issued Share Capital as at the time dealings in the
shares first commence on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (and thereafter, if refreshed, shall not exceed
10% of the Issued Share Capital as at the date of
approval of the refreshed limit by the shareholders).
After the refreshment of the limit of the Share Option
Scheme with the approval of the shareholders on 10
May 2019, the maximum number of shares which may
be issued upon the exercise of the refreshed limit of
146,290,000 options (being 10% of the Issued Share
Capital on 10 May 2019) together with all outstanding
options as at the date of this annual report carrying the
right to subscribe for 26,630,000 shares is 172,920,000
shares, representing approximately 9.32% of the total
number of shares in issue as at the date of this annual
report. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting with such participant and his
associates abstaining from voting.
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ERERE 2

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

summary of Terms (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

34

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to
be issued upon the exercise of the options granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Group (including both exercised
or outstanding options) to each grantee in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the Issued Share Capital
for the time being (the “Individual Limit”). Any further
grant of options in excess of the Individual Limit in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such
further grant must be separately approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting of the Company with
such grantee and his associates abstaining from voting.

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a
period to be determined and notified by the Directors to
each grantee, which period may commence on a day
after the date upon which the offer for the grant of
options is made but shall end in any event not later than
10 years from the date of grant of the option subject to
the provisions for early termination thereof.

Minimum period for which an option must be
held before being exercised

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and
stated in the offer of the grant of options to an eligible
participant, there is no minimum period required under
the Share Option Scheme for the holding of an option
before it can be exercised.

Amount payable on acceptance of the option and
the period within which payments must be paid

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of offer, upon receipt by
the Company of the payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 and signed acceptance of offer by the eligible
participant.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EFEEHRET @)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Summary of Terms (Continuead)
(vii) Basis of determining the exercise price

The subscription price per share under the Share Option
Scheme will be a price determined by the Directors, but
shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

(viii) Subject to any earlier termination in accordance with its
rules, the Share Option Scheme shall remain in force for
a period of 10 years commencing on 18 October 2013.

On 1 June 2018 (the "Date of Grant"), the Company granted
an aggregate of 100,000,000 share options under the Share
Option Scheme, at an exercise price of HK$1.89 per share.
The exercise price was the higher of (i) the closing price of
HK$1.85 per share on the Date of Grant; (ii) the average
closing price of HK$1.89 per share for the five business days
immediately preceding the Date of Grant. The closing price
per share immediately before the Date of Grant was HK$1.87.
The share options granted to each grantee shall vest
conditional upon the fulfilment of certain performance targets
relating to the Group in accordance with the following
schedule:
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Percentage of the Share

options vested

Vesting Date on the Vesting Date
REBRHY

REEH CEBENERENES L
1June 2018 —F-N\FXA—H 0%
31 December 2018 —E2-NF+=—A=+—H 25%
30 June 2019 —ZE-NFARA=1H 25% (i.e. up to 50% in total)

31 December 2019

30 June 2020 —E-EFRNA=1H

—E-NF+ZA=1+—H

25% (B2 % BB EER) 50%)
25% (i.e. up to 75% in total)
25% (B2 % BIEEER 75%)
25% (i.e. up to 100% in total)
25% (BN E % B4 EER) 100% )
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Report of the Directors (continueq)
EERRE 2

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) MEBE4ERT B (&)
Summary of Terms (Continuead) RARBE (&)

During the Reporting Year, no share option has been granted RIFEFEE - HEIBEERET 215 HER
under the Share Option Scheme. Details of the share options  # - B IEEREF IR B 2 ERER-Z
granted under the Share Option Scheme as at 30 June 2022 ——F<xA=+HZHENT :

are as follows:

Options
Options Options Options  cancelled/ Options
outstanding granted exercised lapsed outstanding
Exercise asat duringthe duringthe  during the as at
Category of Date of price  Exercise 1July  Reporting  Reporting  Reporting 30 June
participants grant per share  period 2021 Year Year Year p17]

i) REEFE R=T==F

—B--f )i ® 2%/ ~A=tAH

tA-H2 REEE REEE BEABZ ZRITE

SEEER BRITEE RITEREE BHoBRE THEZBRE B BRE
(HKS)

()

Executive Directors
Mr. Deng Zhonglin 1June 2018 189 31December 2018 to 12,000,000 - - - 12,000,000
31 May 2028
HTES
B s A —E-N\F —E-N\F
~A—H +=ZRA=+—H=%
—EONE
AA=+-A
12,000,000 - - - 12,000,000
Employees 1June 2018 1.89 31 December 2018 to 14,630,000 - - - 14,630,000
31 May 2028
&S —T-N\F —2-N\F
NA—H +=ZA=+—HZ%
—ZoNE
RA=+—H
Total st 26,630,000 - - - 26,630,000

The share options, once vested, shall be exercisable withina BEik#E —BgEBE/ER & LH B H#£10F 8
period of 10 years from the Date of Grant. Except for the  FI17(f - B EXRFAFIE BN - B mERR st
Directors listed in the table above, none of the grantees ZIIB N7 EIRABRNERB 7 @EAT -
under the Share Option Scheme is a connected person of the

Group.

36 NOVA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22



Report of the Directors (continued)
EFEHRE 2

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Summary of Terms (Continued)

The weighted average fair value for each granted share
option at grant date was HK$0.79, which was determined by
using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The significant
inputs into the model included share price of HK$1.85 at the
Date of Grant, exercise price of HK$1.89, volatility of 33.02%,
dividend vyield of 0.0%, an expected share option life of 10
years and an annual risk-free interest rate of 2.21%. The
expected volatility is determined by calculating the historical
volatility of the share price of listed companies with similar
business as the Group. The expected dividend vyield is
determined with reference to historical dividend and share
price of the Company. No amortisation of Share options
(2021: HK$Nil) was recognised as staff costs in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the Reporting Year.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EFEHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 30 June 2022, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code in the Listing
Rules, were as follows:

Interest in underlying shares of the Company

Name of Director

EEHE

Capacity/Nature of interest

51 REME

Mr. Deng Zhonglin Beneficial owner

B 4 BEREBA
Notes:
1. “L" denotes long position and “S" denotes short position.

2. These 12,000,000 underlying shares represent the 12,000,000 shares
which may be allotted and issued to Mr. Deng zZhonglin upon full
exercise of the share options granted to him on 1 June 2018 under the
Share Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2022, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests
and/or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they are taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
pursuant to the Model Code and which were required to be
entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO.
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Approximate
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HERARERZ
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(Note 1)
(Pt7E1)
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(Note 2)
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B &E
1. [LlER R [S]fa#A
2. #%%12,000,000 R BB D IER ZZ— \F XA

— AP E EAR IR R BV X 2 B
AN BRTT 0 B A) BE S I 3% 1% 397 2 12,000,000 A A%
e

%ix?&%%%v T——E/ A=+

CEEEYAR BITHABRARA
716&17*@ w&l(i%ﬁ 55 R EIE K
FEXVED) 21D - BEKRD RESTHER
BEARBEIENEXVIFET7 RN EEX
SRBIZESTRIZBAE AR A KB R AT R A
AR FIRIEEFH K HE &5 5 3521 1F
EzERMzAEAEREE AR (BIER
BEFRHEGRDA BIGE SN EERR
el B 2 E AR °

38 NOVA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22



Report of the Directors (continueq)
EERRE 2

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2022, to the best of the knowledge and belief of
the Directors, the following persons (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest

540 EEME

RERER

Mr. Chen Chao Beneficial owner

PRIEBSE 4 EmEAA
Note:
1. “L" denotes the corporation/person’s long position (as defined under

Part XV of the SFO) in the shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2022, the Directors
are not aware that there is any party (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) who had any interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any other member of the Group or any
options in respect of such shares.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation
available to shareholders by reason of their holding of the
shares of the Company.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EFEHRE 2

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE, REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE AND NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

Details of the audit committee of the Board (the “Audit
Committee”), the Remuneration Committee and the
nomination committee of the Board are set out in the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”)
comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Tsang Wing Ki (chairman), Mr. Choi Hung Fai and
Dr. Wong Kong Tin, JP. The Audit Committee has reviewed,
with the management and the independent auditor of the
Company, the annual results and the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the Reporting Year.

AUDITOR
The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
HLM CPA Limited who will retire at the forthcoming AGM and,

being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at a fee to
be agreed by the Board.

On behalf of the Board

Deng Zhonglin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 23 September 2022
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Corporate Governance Report
EREGHE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of
NOVA Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “"Group”) is pleased to present
the corporate governance report for the year ended 30 June
2022 (the “Reporting Year"). This report describes how the
Group has applied its corporate governance practices to its
daily activities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
AND COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has applied the principles and adopted all code
provisions, where applicable, as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange as its own code of
corporate governance.

The Company reviews its corporate governance practices
regularly to ensure compliance with the CG Code. During the
Reporting Year, the Company has applied the principles and
complied with all applicable code provisions as set out in the
CG Code except for the following deviations:

o Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 (now rearranged as
C.2.1) of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The chairman
provides leadership for the board and ensures that the
board works effectively and performs its responsibilities
whilst the chief executive officer has overall chief
executive responsibilities for business development and
day-to-day management generally.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
LEEAIRE 2)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES LEEAESRETLEERTH

AND COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE (#)

GOVERNANCE CODE (continued)
Mr. Deng Zhonglin, being the chairman of the Board (the EEgXR(EEDEMBEENR=
“Chairman”), was appointed as the chief executive E-_—FRA=ZT+—HEZETAEALAR
officer of the Company (the “CEQ") on 31 May 2021. In AT HAHE(TITHRAR]) - ERARE
view of the current rapid development of the Group, the BERiEAE E=T2HE &2
Board believes that vesting the roles of both the —ATHEFEERITHREBHEDREH
Chairman and the CEO in the same person can facilitate AREBEBEREIESSERX o
the execution of the Group's business strategies and W EEEHMEZAITES — &
boost effectiveness of its operation. In addition, under FHITESE LN =B YIFNTTEEA
the supervision of the Board which is comprised of two K EEEEBT e AER
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and BRI EREIZEHEANEIY
three independent non-executive Directors, the Board MEEB DMREAD A M BN 2 o
is appropriately structured with a balance of power to %rﬁ BAREBNEBREERER » KN
provide sufficient checks and supervision to protect the ANEIARERNBEEREEBDEe LT T
interests of the Company and its shareholders. The BHEREERABERTRAZNUS
Company may seek to re-comply with code provision KEFHEBFTTAUBEXEA2I1MEGRE
A.2.1 (now rearranged as C.2.1) by identifying and HHEFAEC21E) o

appointing a suitable and qualified candidate to the
position of the CEO in due course by considering the
business needs and developments of the Group.

Except for the above deviations from the CG Code, the Board  B& FiliREEDEEASFRI 21BN EFE

is of the view that the Company has complied with the CG  R& @ AR FRHFEFECEBTEEEART
Code for the Reporting Year. Bl o
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LEEAIRE 2)

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the
Company’s code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by the Directors. In response to the specific
enquiries made by the Company, each of the Directors
confirmed that he/she had complied with the Model Code
during the Reporting Year.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Subsequent to the adoption of the memorandum and articles
of association of the Company (the “M&A") upon listing of
the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the shareholders’ resolution of the Company passed on 18
October 2013, no amendment to the M&A has been made as
at the date of this report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

As at 30 June 2022, the Board comprised two executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent
non-executive Directors. The composition of the Board and
its changes during the Reporting Year and up to the date of
this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Deng Zhonglin (Chairman and CEQ)
Mr. Wong Yuk Lun Alan

Non-executive Director
Ms. Huang Chian Sandy

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Choi Hung Fai
Mr. Tsang Wing Ki
Dr. Wong Kong Tin, Jp
Mr. Qiu Peiyuan
(Resigned on 11 October 2021)

2021/22FF 5 %% o &

EFETESXAZRETA

ARR R LR RIS+ PAE LT &1T
ANEZETRFRGZIREST ﬁ'J(fF$1

A ERARFRBRESTETAR
RHZITRSFA Ré%ﬁa@r@ﬁ TZ

EESH  HARZCAREFE AT
fZ=rA o

HREEXH

AR A BAD TR B 32 P £ B AR B IAN —
FTATN\BEBZARARRRE %‘E%ZW
ARAZEBERRNE AT KEARA
RID)1& - MARSRE B AL - K4 KA RIS E
HIERT

EFE

EEEAMX

RIZE-_—FRA=1TH EF2BEMRE%
WITES  —BIFMTESE R =B I
TEE - RREFELEEARFHRABR - &
SRR REZESHIT

HITES

SRR ST (L ERTTRARE)
FHITES

BELL

BAFATES

BB

SOKE A

=LA 4w+

fum s £
(RZEBE=—F+A+—HEHE)

BREBMZERARAT 43



corporate Governance Report (continued)

EEEINRE =

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

The biographical details, relationships among them and the
terms of appointment of the Directors (including the non-
executive Director and independent non-executive Directors)
up to the date of this annual report are set out in the section
headed "“Biographical Details of Directors”.

The Board believes that it has a balanced composition of
executive and non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) and there is a strong independent
element in the Board, which can effectively exercise
independent judgment. As at 30 June 2022, the Company had
three independent non-executive Directors who provide the
Group with adequate check and balance. Each of them is
considered to be independent with respect to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. Their functions are not limited to a restricted
scope and they have contributed to the Group with diversified
industry expertise, and advised on the Group’s management
and proceedings.

One of the independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Tsang Wing Ki, has appropriate professional accounting
qualifications and related financial management expertise as
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Responsibilities of the Board and Delegation

The Board is responsible for the approval and monitoring of
the Group’s overall strategies and policies, the approval of
business plans and the evaluation of their performance, the
oversight and review of the management and corporate
governance function. It is also responsible for promoting the
success of the Group’s businesses by directing and
supervising the Group’s affairs. The Board delegates day-to-
day operations of the Group to executive Directors and senior
management of the Group while reserving certain key
matters for its approval. The Board committees for specific
functions have been set up to ensure efficient Board
operations. The respective functions and responsibilities
reserved to the Board and those delegated to Board
committees have been clearly set out in their respective
terms of reference. Decisions of the Board are communicated
to the management through executive Directors who have
attended the Board meetings.

To facilitate effective oversight and decision making by the
Board, the Company has established a mechanism to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board. On
an annual basis, the Board will review the implementation
and effectiveness of such mechanism.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Corporate Governance Functions and Duties

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions with the following duties:

(@ to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations on any necessary changes and
updates;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management of the Company;

() to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
of the Company and the Directors;

(e) to review and monitor the evaluation and management
of issues related to the Company’s environmental,
social and governance (“ESG") matters;

(f)  to review and monitor the progress made against ESG-
related goals and targets;

(@ to review the Company's ESG strategy; and

(h) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this corporate governance report (“CG
Report”) and the Company’s ESG report (the "ESG
Report”).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Corporate Governance Functions and Duties
(Continued)

During the Reporting Year, the corporate governance duties
performed by the Board were as follows:

(@ reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices;

(b) reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

() reviewed the Company's compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the CG Report and the ESG Report;

(d) reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management
of the Company;

(e) reviewed the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to employees of the Company and the
Directors;

(f) reviewed and monitored the evaluation and
management of issues related to the Company’s ESG
matters,

(g reviewed and monitored the progress made against
ESG-related goals and targets; and

(h)  reviewed the Company’s ESG strategy.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Deng Zhonglin has been appointed as an executive
Director and the Chairman on 14 October 2016 and 12 May
2017 respectively. Subsequently, Mr. Deng Zhonglin has been
appointed as the CEO on 31 May 2021.

As at 30 June 2022, Mr. Deng Zhonglin held the offices of the
Chairman and the CEO. The Board believes that vesting the
above roles in the same person provides the Company with
strong and consistent leadership and allows for effective and
efficient planning and implementation of business decisions
and strategies. At the same time, in order to fulfill the
requirement of code provision A.2.1 (now rearranged as
C.2.1) of the CG Code, the Company is looking for a suitable
and qualified candidate to the position of the CEO in due
course by considering the business needs and developments
of the Group.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Mr. Deng Zhonglin, as an executive Director, entered into a
service agreement dated 14 October 2016 (supplemented by
a supplemental service contract dated 14 October 2019) with
the Company, pursuant to which Mr. Deng holds office for an
initial term of three years commencing on 14 October 2016
and renewable automatically on expiry for successive terms
of three years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company
(the "Articles of Association”).

Mr. Wong Yuk Lun Alan, as an executive Director, entered
into a service agreement with the Company with an initial
term of three years commencing on 15 July 2020, which may
be continued subject to terms and conditions to be mutually
agreed by both parties.

The non-executive Director and all independent non-
executive Directors have been appointed for an initial term of
one year, renewable automatically for successive term of one
year each commencing from the next day after the expiry of
the then current term appointment. All remuneration paid to
executive Directors are covered by respective service
contracts and all remuneration paid to the non-executive
Director and independent non-executive Directors are
covered by respective letters of appointment.

2021/22FF3R o #

FERITHER

BHEBEEESINR-_FT—R"FTATEBER
—EtFAAT_REZERRTEER
TR HE BHBEEER_T-—FAA
=t HEZERTHER -

R-ZZTE-_—FA=+H  BhELtERT
EERITHBE - EE2HEHRR— ALIE
E LB AADRIRERE —BNEE
SEBRE LRI A AR S 1TIR
EIREE - R AHACEERTAZST
AEXE A2 G CREFEFBEC211E)
RRTE AR EERAEENEBRETENR

R ERSHRAEAAERNAEEEST
AR o
ZE EERBRES

MITESE PR EEER®ARFRIZAHA
_E A¢+H+EEWWW%‘WE%
BRZE-NFTATHANEEREAS U%
ﬁ%)ﬁ% BEENV T EHH =
—ANETATHBEERB=5F " %ﬁ&@@
BEE EHEBE=F  HARBAQRALS
SRR ([ASKERAMA DN AR AR
BERE LwERTNEEET-

PITEEEIBEEE BARR G AR
&SRR EF A THBRER
HAi= 4 - AlARIR & 7 B AR 10 E B9 R K R Mkt
FLAES -

FARTEENERBUFANTEZCES
T YFEHR—F  SEAIRENREH
EmEBEAEEHEE—F - MERNTE
EXNZHMARES B ZREELED -
MABFZENITE S KB IFRITEF N
ZHEBERESE B2 REEFDL -

BREBMZERARAT 47



Corporate Governance Report continued)

EEEIRE &)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors (Continued)

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, any Director newly
appointed by the Board shall hold office until the following
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election. Also, pursuant to the Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting, at least one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not three or
a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided
that every Director (including the non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Every newly appointed Director will be provided with
necessary induction and information to ensure that he/she
has a proper understanding of the Company’s operations and
businesses as well as his/her responsibilities under the
relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

Board Meetings

During the Reporting Year, the Board met regularly to review
the financial and operating performance of the Company and
to discuss future strategy. The Directors may participate
either in person or through electronic means of
communications.

For the Reporting Year, the Company has adopted the
practice of holding Board meetings regularly at least four
times a year in approximately quarterly intervals. At the
Board meetings, the Board reviewed significant matters
including the Company’s annual consolidated financial
statements and interim consolidated financial information,
proposals for dividends (if any), annual and interim reports,
approved material capital expenditure and other corporate
actions of the Group.

In order to ensure that the Board procedures, and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed, all Directors are
able to access the company secretary of the Company (the
‘Company Secretary”) for advice from time to time.
Moreover, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company's expense. All Directors were
given an opportunity to include matters in the agenda of
meetings for discussion.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) EES &)
Board Meetings (Continued) EEESR )

To ensure a competent Board operation, all Directors gave ABREESAIEE ' 2REZDENR
sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Group. TBEREIREHEEALEESE - RBREFE
During the Reporting Year, four Board meetings (excluding & BRI EEe ez (TEIEEES
delegated committees’ meetings) were held and the EBe&:®%) SEFHELEEHNOT
attendance record of each Director is set out as follows:

Attendance/Number of
HERY, ERRH
Annual
Board general
Name of Directors meetings meeting
BExpsg EXgeg8E RRBEXE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Deng Zhonglin (Chairman and CEQ) B £ (EE#RTBAEH) 4/4 1”7
Mr. Wong Yuk Lun Alan BEEMEE 4/4 Al
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Huang Chian Sandy TG 4/4 11
Independent Non-executive Directors By k#TES
Mr. Choi Hung Fai B 4/4 A
Mr. Tsang Wing Ki Bk EE 3/4 Al
Dr. Wong Kong Tin, /p ENPNESw s 4/4 A
Mr. Qiu Peiyuan bt
(Resigned on 11 October 2021) (R=ZT=_—F+A+—B&T) 1/1 -

The minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board EFSERNMEFLZESSTRZSHALHH
committees are kept by the Company Secretary or other duly A R E S IEN K Z HM A LRTF o A
authorised person. All minutes are open for inspectionbyany B E&#LHEERERM FAIHEMANESES
Director on reasonable notice. Such minutes recorded in B - X5 R85 H B HA MM CHESHE L
sufficient detail the matters considered and decisions EZRZEFERELZRTE - EFSEET
reached during each meeting. The drafts and final versions of (2 IR N ERAR TR B EXETREF - U
the minutes of Board meetings are sent to all Directors for  #IRFIEL B R Mac#k o

their comments and records.
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LEERARE 2

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ Induction and Continuous
Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director will receive induction on the
first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and business
and awareness of the Director’s responsibilities.

The details of the continuous professional development
participated by the Directors during the Reporting Year are as
follows:

EEw @)
EEREAARSEERERE

EFRECETRERERIRERYERMH
SMERA - AERREZE THRARREE
REBERAANBREEZEE -

EENREFEREFEEXRRESBN
T

Attending
courses,
Reading seminars or
Name of Directors materials conferences
BHERR -
BEpE mHenes
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Deng Zhonglin (Chairman and CEO) BB £ (FE#RTBAER) 4 v
Mr. Wong Yuk Lun Alan BEEBEE 4 v
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Huang Chian Sandy TG v v
Independent Non-executive Directors By k#TES
Mr. Choi Hung Fai BIEEE L 4 v
Mr. Tsang Wing Ki Bk EE v v
Dr. Wong Kong Tin, /p ENPNESw s v v
Mr. Qiu Peiyuan bt
(Resigned on 11 October 2021) (R=ZF=_—F+A+—B&T) v v

To enable the Directors to make informed and relevant
contributions to the Board, all the Directors are encouraged
to participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the
Reporting Year, all the Directors were provided with regular
updates and presentations on the changes and developments
of the Group’s business and the latest developments in laws,
rules and regulations relating to directors’ duties and
responsibilities.

RERESIHELABRERAEESEL
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EREEBANEE &I BRZEHEH
SLE
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy on 18 October
2013 and discussed all measurable objectives set for
implementing the policy.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
diversity of Board members. It endeavours to ensure that the
Board has a balance of skills, experience and a diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
company’s business.

All Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board
members. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, experience
(professional or otherwise), skills and knowledge. The
ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

As at the date of this report, there is one female Director on
the Board. In the future, the Board will continue to pay due
regard to the importance of diversity in identifying potential
candidates for directorships and continue to ensure that
gender is one of the factors to be considered in appointing
Directors by the Nomination Committee

The Board also recognises the importance of diversity at the
workforce level. As at 30 June 2022, the gender ratio of the
workforce of the Group (including senior management) was
46:54 male to female.

During the Reporting Year, the Board reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of the Company’s board
diversity policy and considered the policy effective.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company has established the audit committee of the
Board (the “Audit Committee”) with specific written terms
of reference that have included the duties set out in the CG
Code provision C.3.3 (now rearranged as D.3.3) with
appropriate modifications when necessary.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and removal of the external auditor, to review the financial
information and material advice in respect of financial
reporting and to oversee the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems of the Company.
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LEEAIRE 2)

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

During the Reporting Year, the Audit Committee has reviewed
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2021 and consolidated financial statements for the six
months ended 31 December 2021, including the Group’s
adopted accounting principles and practices, internal control
and risk management systems and financial reporting matters
(in conjunction with the external auditor for the annual
results). The Audit Committee has reviewed the remuneration
of the auditor for the year ended 30 June 2021 and has
recommended the Board to re-appoint HLM CPA Limited as
the auditor of the Company for the Reporting Year. The Audit
Committee has also monitored the effectiveness of the
external audit and its independence. The Audit Committee
has endorsed the accounting treatments adopted by the
Company and, to the best of its ability assured that the
disclosure of the financial information in this annual report
complied with the applicable accounting standards and
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Tsang Wing Ki (the chairman
of the Audit Committee), Mr. Choi Hung Fai and Dr. Wong
Kong Tin, Jp. The Company has complied with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Tsang
Wing Ki with appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

During the Reporting Year, three Audit Committee meetings
were held pursuant to its terms of reference and the
attendance record of each member as to such meetings is
set out as follows:
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T

Attendance/
Number of
Members of Audit Committee meetings
EREEENE e
BRRY

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Tsang Wing Ki (Chairman) KRS (FE) 3/3
Mr. Choi Hung Fai BB 3/3
Dr. Wong Kong Tin, Jp = LRE A P4+ 2/3
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Ccontinued)

Remuneration Committee

The Company has set up the remuneration committee of the
Board (the “Remuneration Committee”) with specific
terms of reference stating clearly its authority and duties with
appropriate modifications when necessary.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include
to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure of all Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration, to review and approve the
management’s remuneration proposal with reference to the
Company'’s corporate goals and objectives, to determine the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments comprising any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment
and to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the non-executive Director and independent
non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members,
namely Dr. Wong Kong Tin, Jp (the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Mr. Tsang Wing Ki and Mr. Deng
Zhonglin. The Company has complied with Rule 3.25 of the
Listing Rules.

During the Reporting Year, one Remuneration Committee
meeting was held for reviewing the remuneration policy and
structure for the Directors and senior management, assessing
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the performance of executive Directors and approving the %7 &5 - KB HE €% 2 L E 5
terms of executive Directors’ service contracts. The [ :
attendance record of each member as to such meetings is
set out as follows:
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Dr. Wong Kong Tin, e (Chairman) BEIXETArHL (EE) 11
Mr. Tsang Wing Ki LKA il
Executive Director HITES
Mr. Deng Zhonglin B A Al
Details of the Directors’ emoluments, retirement benefits and ZEEHM & « RIKEF MEN SR ERERKE

remuneration payable to members of senior management
are disclosed in Note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee

The Company has set up the nomination committee of the
Board (the “Nomination Committee”) with specific terms
of reference stating clearly its authority and duties with
appropriate modification when necessary.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include to
review the structure, size, composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) and diversity of the Board, to
identify, screen and recommend to the Board on appropriate
candidates for directorship, to assess the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors, to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and to review the Board diversity
policy and to monitor its implementation from time to time.

The Nomination Committee comprises three members,
namely Mr. Deng Zhonglin (the chairman of the Nomination
Committee), Mr. Choi Hung Fai and Dr. Wong Kong Tin, Jp.
The Company has complied with Rule 3.27A of the Listing
Rules.

During the Reporting Year, one Nomination Committee
meeting was held for (1) reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board; (2) reviewing the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors; and (3) making
recommendations to the Board on the retirement by rotation
and re-election of Directors in the annual general meeting of
the Company (the “AGM"). The attendance record of each
member as to such meetings is set out as follows:
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Attendance/
Number of
Members of Nomination Committee meeting
REZSEHE HERE,
BRRY
Executive Director HITES

Mr. Deng Zhonglin (Chairman) BB S A (F /%) 11

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Choi Hung Fai BB /1
Dr. Wong Kong Tin, Jp ENPNERw e 1”7
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tung Tat Chiu Michael (“Mr. Tung") is an external service
provider engaged by the Company as the Company Secretary
and Mr. Deng Zhonglin, the Chairman and the CEOQ, is the key
contact person with whom Mr. Tung can contact. Mr. Tung
has confirmed to the Company that he has attended no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
Reporting Year.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with applicable statutory requirements and
accounting standards and the requirements of the Listing
Rules. The Group adopted the going concern basis in
preparing its financial statements.

A statement by the external auditor of the Company about its
reporting responsibilities is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining a
sound system of risk management and internal control within
the Group and reviewing their effectiveness. However, such
system was designed to manage various risks (including ESG
risks) of the Group within certain acceptable risk level, rather
than to completely eliminate the risk of failure to achieve the
business objectives of the Group and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or 10ss.

The Board delegates their responsibility to the Audit
Committee to review the practices of management with
respect to risk management and internal control, including
the design, implementation and supervision of the risk
management and internal control systems, on an annual
basis.

During the Reporting Year, the Board through the Audit
Committee, conducted an annual review of both the design
and implementation effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, covering all
material controls, with a view to ensuring that the resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group's accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions, as well as those relating to the
Company'’s ESG performance and reporting are adequate. In
this respect, the Audit Committee communicates any
material issues to the Board.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (continued)

The Board has engaged an external professional service firm
to carry out the internal audit function of the Group. Review
of the Group’s internal controls covered major financial,
operational and compliance controls, as well as risk
management functions of different systems has been
performed on a systematic rotational basis on the risk
assessments of the operations and controls. During the risk
assessment process, the firm interviewed the relevant
personnel and identified the business objectives and
significant risks of the Group. A risk management review and
internal audit report prepared by the firm which sets out the
risks, issues and recommended action plan was presented to
the Board for review and endorsement. The Board considered
that significant risks of the Group were managed within the
acceptable level and the management will continue to
monitor the residual risks and report to the Board on ongoing
basis. The Board have reviewed the risk management and
internal control system and procedures and they consider
them effective and adequate.

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the
Company is aware of the relevant obligations under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and the Listing Rules. In order to enhance the
Group’s system of handling inside information, and to ensure
the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness of
its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and implements
an inside information policy and procedures, which include
the access of information being restricted to a limited number
of employees on a need-to-know basis, to ensure that proper
safeguards exist to prevent possible mishandling of inside
information within the Group.

Arrangements are in place to facilitate the employees of the
Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters of the Company.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group has zero tolerance for bribery and corruption. The
Group's ethical standards and requirements are clearly set
out in the employee handbook, which requires all business
activities to be operated with high level of integrity.
Regardless of seniority and employment nature, all
employees are required to fully comply with the following
anti-bribery and anti-corruption legislation:

— The Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC
— The Criminal Law of the PRC

Employees are prohibited from committing theft, fraud or
dishonesty in connection with the Group properties, or
committing a criminal offence outside the Group, which
brings adverse publicity to the Group and/or affects the
Group's reputation. The policy on declaration and handling of
conflict of interest requires employees in key positions to
submit an annual declaration of interests in work situations.

WHISTLEBLOWING SYSTEM

The Group's whistleblowing policy states that whistleblowers
can make confidential reports to the Board directly upon any
suspicious activities, either in person or email to the chairman
of the Audit Committee. All reports and the identities of
whistle-blowers would be treated in the strictest confidence.
In the event an employee is found to have committed any act
of misconduct, the Group reserves the rights to take
disciplinary actions including termination of employment. The
Group has not aided, abetted, assisted or colluded with an
individual who has committed, or conspired to commit any
unlawful activities. No non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group
relating to corruption, bribery, fraud and money laundering
had been identified during the Reporting Year. There was no
concluded legal case regarding corrupt practices brought
against the Group or its employees during the Reporting Year.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Reporting Year, the Group's external auditor
provided the following services to the Group:

B A BN &

RBEFE - NEEINEZZED R A K BIR
HRFIARTS -

Notes HK$'000
MoaE FET
Audit services ZH AR (i) 1,150
Non-audit services FEAZ BIAR 7S (i) 240
Total A&t 1,390

Notes:

(i) include audit services provided in connection with the audit of the
consolidated financial statements. All such services are to be provided
by the external auditor.

(i) include services that would normally be provided by an external
auditor but not generally included in audit services.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

General Meetings with Shareholders

The Company communicates with its shareholders through
its annual report, interim report and statutory and voluntary
announcements. The Directors, the Company Secretary or
appropriate members of the senior management, where
appropriate, also respond to inquiries from shareholders and
investors on a timely basis. The AGM provides a useful
platform for direct communication between the Board and
the shareholders.

Resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of the
Company are taken by poll. Procedures regarding the
conduct of the poll are explained to the shareholders at the
commencement of each general meeting. The poll results are
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively on the same day of the poll.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS (continued)

How shareholders can convene an
extraordinary general meeting

In accordance with Article 64 of the Articles of Association,
extraordinary general meetings shall be convened on the
requisition of one or more shareholders of the Company
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be
made in writing to the Directors or the Company Secretary
for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Directors for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within 21 days of such deposit the Directors fail to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed to
the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The procedures by which enquiries may be put
to the Board and sufficient contact details to
enable these enquiries to be properly directed

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong at Room 2102, 21/F., Tower
One, Lippo Centre, 89 Queensway, Hong Kong by post for the
attention of the Board.

Procedures and sufficient contact details for
putting forward proposals at shareholders’
meetings

There is no provision in the Articles of Association setting out
procedures for shareholders to put forward a resolution at
general meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a
resolution may request the Company to convene a general
meeting following the procedures as set out in the paragraph
headed “How shareholders can convene an extraordinary
general meeting” above.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS (continued)

Investor Relations

The Company has adopted the shareholders’ communication
policy and considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company has established various and a
wide range of communication channels with the
Shareholders. These include shareholders’ general meetings,
interim results announcements and annual results
announcements, interim reports and annual reports, and
other announcements and circulars.

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information
about the Group to all interested parties as widely and timely
as possible. It has disclosed all necessary information to the
shareholders in compliance with the Listing Rules. When
announcements are made through the website of the Stock
Exchange, the same information will be made available on
the Company’s website. During the Reporting Year, the
Company has issued announcements which can be viewed
on the Company's website.

Shareholders and investors may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing to the
Company Secretary at the Company'’s office in Hong Kong.
Shareholders may also raise their enquiries in general
meetings.

In view of the above, the Company has reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders’
communication policy and considered the policy effective.

The Company has uploaded its memorandum and articles of
association on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(http://www.hkexnews.hk/) and of the Company
(http://www.novahldg.com/).

There are no significant changes in the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association during the Reporting
Year.
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report
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ABOUT THE GROUP

NOVA Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the organisation and sponsorship of exhibitions
and events, the operation of cultural and entertainment
comprehensive services platform and provision of loan and
financing services.

Environmental and social responsibilities are viewed as the
Group's core commitment to environment, internal workplace
and external community, and an integral part of the Group’s
practice to create value for stakeholders.

Our strategy is to fulfil the Group’s environmental and social
responsibilities through achieving environmental and social
objectives during operations and complying with all relevant
legal requirements.

The board of directors (the “Board”) has overall responsibility
for the Group’s Environmental, Social and Governance
strategy and reporting. The Board is responsible for
evaluating and determining the Group’s Environmental, Social
and Governance related risks and ensuring that appropriate
and effective Environmental, Social and Governance risk
management and internal control systems are in place.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Introduction of this Report

The Group is pleased to release our fifth Environmental,
Social and Governance Report (hereinafter this “Report” or
"ESG report”). Through this Report, we wish to respond
different issues regarding Environmental, Social and
Governance (hereinafter “ESG") which major stakeholders
are concerned with a comprehensive and transparent
manner, and disclose the Group’s vision, strategies and
practices in the process of sustainable development
objectively to enhance stakeholders’ understanding and
confidence in the Group so as to continuously improve our
ESG performance.

Title Description

For the convenience of expression and reading, “NOVA
Group”, “the Group”, “we"” and “us” in this Report refer to
“NOVA Group Holdings Limited”.

Report Scope and Boundary

This Report contains information that is material to
understand the Group's ESG practices and performance in its
daily operations. The reporting period of this Report ranged
from 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022, with appropriate forward
and backward extensions for certain contents in order to
better reflect the ESG performance of the Group. The
contents disclosed in this Report (including policy documents,
statements and data, etc.) mainly covered major business
segments of the Group:

o Financing segment — Money Lending, Factoring and
Financing Lease

o Cultural and Entertainment segment — Trading,
Promotion and Consulting Services and Branding

o Exhibition segment
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (continued)

Report Scope and Boundary (Continued)

This Report is prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
“Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 to the Main Board Listing
Rules of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and
complies with all provisions of “mandatory disclosure” or
“comply or explain”. In preparing the Report, we have
adopted the international standards and emission factors
specified in the guidance materials on ESG issued by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for computing the
relevant Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”), and there is no
change in the way the Report has been prepared from
previous year, unless otherwise stated.

In order to fully demonstrate the Group’s efforts and
achievements in the ESG aspect during the year ended 30
June 2022 (the “Reporting Year") to all stakeholders, this
Report is prepared in accordance with the four reporting
principles set out in the Guide, namely materiality,
quantitative, balance and consistency, which serve as the
basis for the preparation of this Report. We strive to fully
reflect the Group's policies, strategies and related materiality
in the ESG aspect in this Report, and continuously improve
the content of disclosure in the future. The application of
materiality is detailed in the subsection headed “Analysis of
Materiality Issues”.

Should you wish to provide comments or recommend
improvements on our ESG reporting, please reach us through
our feedback hotline (telephone no. at (852) 2607 7300).
Although there were no specific programs to engage
stakeholders outside the Group when this Report was being
prepared, we have included the key issues which are of
different stakeholder groups’ concerns, based on our
continual communication with them. Alternatively, you are
also welcome to send your comments and suggestions
regarding our ESG performance to our Chief Executive
Officer, Mr. Deng, by mail.

Data Sources and Reliability Statement

The information and cases disclosed in this Report are from
the Group's internal documents, statistical reports or relevant
public information. The Group assures that the contents of
this Report, for which the Group accepts full responsibility for
its truthfulness, accuracy and completeness, are free of any
false statements, misleading representations or material
omissions.
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COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group strives to conduct its business in a transparent,
equitable, legal and socially responsible manner, and
continues to care about the impact its daily operation may
bring to the environment, customers and community, making
an effort to safeguard the interests of all stakeholders and
strike a balance between environmental, social and economic
development.

The expectations and opinions of stakeholders are essential
for the Group to improve its sustainable development
strategy. Over the years, we have continued to maintain
close communication with internal and external stakeholders
such as government/regulatory bodies, shareholders,
suppliers, employees, customers and the community public
through a wide range of channels such as regular meetings,
activities, reports, websites, etc., to understand their opinions
on the performance of the Group, actively communicate with
various stakeholders, constantly collect their opinions and
feedback, fully understand their expectations and
suggestions, and identify areas for improvement. In order to
balance our business requirement, social demand and
environmental impact, we keep monitoring the risks and
opportunities arising from our daily course of operation, and
promote a corporate management culture with high
transparency to ensure our sustainable development
strategies are being communicated to significant
stakeholders such as employees, customers, suppliers and
the community.

Set out below are the expectations and concerns of
respective significant stakeholders and our corresponding
communication channels during the Reporting Year.
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (continued)
BE HEREILE @

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

(Continued)

Stakeholders

Nz EES

Government and
regulatory authorities

Expectations and concerns
HASEEE R R

In compliance with laws and
regulations

Communication channels

FIRHERSRE (2

BEARN

Information disclosure
Communication with

o |egal operation regulatory authorities
¢ In compliance with the Listing Rules e Taxreturns
BN REEKE o EFEBER o FEKE
s BEEE o HETEMBY
o E<F FRA o MTLERHR
Shareholders e Profit return e Group announcements
e Business development ¢ General meetings
e ESG governance ¢ Site inspection
e Corporate image e Timely reporting
BRR o s B e KEERNE
o XBER s REXE
e ESGIRIE o THIER
o BEER o EHWE
Suppliers o |egal operation and quality standards e Meeting with suppliers
of suppliers e Online survey
e Fair and reasonable treatment of e Review and evaluation
business partners e Tendering and bidding
¢ Service quality and customers’ activities
satisfaction
HIER s HEBAEZEELMmERE s HEEE:
o EBBHANTEENGFS s WEERAE
e REMEHEETWEE o B|IZLEHA
o HBERIZED
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (continued)
BE HEREILE @

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS FESHEBABE &)
(Continued)

Stakeholders Expectations and concerns Communication channels

Nz ERES AR ERFR R

Employees e Employee compensation and benefits o Staff representative meetings
e Employee health and safety e Group activities
e Legal and lawful recruitment e |etter communication
e Employee training and development e Recommendation box
e \Working environment
BT o BIfFBERERN e BIRKXKE
o BETREREZS o KEEET
s BEEAHRAT o 55
o BIRFIEER o EFEM
o TIEIRIE
Customers e Quality of product and service e Satisfaction survey
e Customer information security o Sales feedback
e Legal operation
¢ Health and safety protection
BE o EmMKRGESE o MBERE
s BERERRE o E12MEIEH
o BIRER
s BERRRE
community e Community environment e Community communication
e Charity and public benefit activities e Press release/
e Community contribution announcements
e Legal operation
HE s HEIRR o HEER
o BERT o ¥ A&
o HEAR
s AEEE
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (continued)

RE MHMEREARE =

ANALYSIS OF MATERIALITY ISSUES

The Group reviewed the material ESG issues identified by the
Group during the Reporting Year from various sources, such
as issues identified in the Guide of the Stock Exchange,
previous ESG report, internal policies industry trends and the
Sustainability Accounting Standards Board’s Materiality Map.
The ESG issues have been analyzed with reference to an
array of factors, including the Group’s overall strategy,
development, and goals and targets. The Group has
conducted a materiality assessment to rate the identified ESG
issues that are pertinent to its business and stakeholders,
and their respective level of impact. The result of materiality
assessment on the identified material ESG issues are
summarized as follows:

Identify relevant

issues
BB R R A

Identification
of material
issues

WA E RN RE

Confirmation
of material

issues

BREEMRE

EEMRES N

AEBEERRAEBNREFEARNETER
RERMEZMESGHEE - AR FTHES! -
BEESCHRE - RAHRITEBE LKES
FAEAZEENEEMERABAIERE -
ESGEECD 2E —RIRAFTETHIN - B
AEEMEEBRE  HR -  BERAM XK
SECDETEREG  AFBRERBER
i ERBND B ESCERENEZ BN
Ei2F - CHAAIMEZMESGHEMER
AR T

Identify ESG issues relevant to the business of the Group based on the results
of materiality assessments in previous years, issues of concern to the
industry, Hong Kong and international reporting standards and the United
Nations Sustainable Development Goals, etc.
BERAFHNEZHTEER  RENETIZEE  EERBEBRRERERES
Bl Al FHE SR B 125 Rl B AR SR B SE TS AR A Y ESG 3578 o

Assess the materiality of each issue to stakeholders and to the Group,
a materiality matrix is created to determine the material issues to be
considered in priority.

FHE R BT R AARE T A A RENER Y RS ZEER
EERELAERENEELRE -

The identified material issues to be reviewed by the Board of the
Group and disclosed in this Report.
HASEESSEREHINEENERE - WERRE AEITHEE °
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report continued)
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ANALYSIS OF MATERIALITY ISSUES

EEMBRESN D)

(Continued)
NOVA Group 2021/2022 Analysis on Material ESG Issues Matrix’
AEEE R/ R EESGREEEM O MTEME"
10
o I
= The Most Important Issues
BREESE
&
S
O ~
< K
I #
g &
D 5
o R %
g = & @8
T JE
S @
Q =
g HH
g
—
0
0 5 10
Low Importance to NOVA Group High
& HmEEEnE2T =
1. Product and Service 2. Legaland Compliance | 3. Legal and Compliance | 4. Internal Integrity 5. Employee Training and
Quality Operation Employment Management Development
ERRBRHES BEEREE BRERAT AEBRAER BTHEINERRE
6. Employee Health and 7. Employee Benefitsand | 8. Employee 9. Intellectual Property 10. Suppliers Legal
Safety Welfare Communication Protection Operation and Quality
BIREER2 BIBBRER BIRE MEEERE Standards
HEBSEEERRERE
11. Equipment Procurement | 12. Integration of Services with | 13. Diversified Staff Background | 14. Operation Wastewater 15. Environmental and Social
and Supply Local Community BIXRSKI Discharge and Treatment Performance of Suppliers
RERBRLE BRIt EERAE EBE KRR EE HEFNRREN GRS
16. Green Environmental 17. Waste Disposal and 18. Water Consumption and 19. Greenhouse Gas Emissions | 20. Donations and Volunteering
Protection Publicity and Emission Reduction Conservation and Emission Reduction Activities
Education EERIRER KEREFEREIK BEREHILA BRATEED
SERREEHE

1
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (continued)

BRE HBEREA/IAERE »)

MANAGEMENT EXCELLENCE

Statement of the Board

As a responsible enterprise, we actively manage ESG issues
and promote corporate sustainable development. The Report
summarizes the strategy, practice and vision of the Group in
respect of issues related to ESG, and conveys the Group’s
devotion for sustainability. To address the global concern
about climate change, the Group has also considered the
climate-related issues and incorporated them into the Report.
All potential and actual risks that may have impact on the
Group's businesses will be covered and evaluated in the
annual enterprise risk assessment.

The Group has established a governance structure to
enhance its management of ESG issues. The Board has an
overall responsibility for overseeing the Group’s ESG-related
risks and opportunities, establishing and adopting the ESG-
related strategies and targets of the Group, reviewing the
Group’s performance annually against the targets, and
revising the strategies as appropriate if significant variance
from the target is identified.

Our chief executive officer conducts regular review on any
material ESG related change and makes recommendations
on improvement measures and solutions. The Group will
continue to provide sufficient resources to monitor the
implementation of ESG strategies and policies on an ongoing
basis, and strictly comply with all relevant laws, rules and
regulations when carrying out business, while at the same
time observe the ESG guidelines, so as to achieve sustainable
development among the environment, society, employees
and the Group itself.

This ESG Report was approved by the Board of the Company
on 23 September 2022. For details of the corporate
governance of the Company, please refer to the “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 41 to 60 of the annual report
of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2022.
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (continued)
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MANAGEMENT EXCELLENCE (Continued)

Professional Ethics

NOVA Group operates its business on the principles of
honesty, ethics and integrity, also resolutely resists illegal
acts such as bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering,
and any behaviours which may be detrimental to the Group
and its stakeholders are prohibited. We strictly abide by the
national and regional laws and regulations regarding anti-
corruption, including the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of
Hong Kong, the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist
Financing Ordinance iT£%EE k2 M D FE 2 F &K,
the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC") (Fh ZE A R E MBI FIJE), the Anti-Money Laundering
Law of the PRC { F ZE A R % #1 B & 7% 8% )% ), the Anti-
Corruption Law of the PRC (/2 A R £ F B = /& BUE), the
Criminal Procedure Law of the PRC = A R £ F1 B = 5
A% ) and Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC {F2E A &
H M B & IEE # F % ) and other relevant laws and
regulations.

The Group upholds a high standard of integrity and
professional ethics in its operations. Through excellent
management and compliant operation, we hope to promote
the economic development of society, serve the real
economy and facilitate sustainable development while
providing quality services to customers. To this end, during
our daily operation, we attach high importance to business
ethics and strictly comply with relevant laws and regulations
such as the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the Company
Law of the PRC {/# #& A R HF1 B~ &)%) and the Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the PRCC R ZE A R A MBI R T~ E &
BEFE).

The Group adopts a zero-tolerance approach and all forms of
bribery and corruption are strictly prohibited by the Group.
Employees should not offer, solicit or accept anything of
material value to or from their colleagues, customers,
suppliers or other business partner of the Group. They should
perform their duties with integrity, such that no bribery, fraud
or money laundering will be carried out for their personal
gains at the expense of the Group's interests. Anti-corruption
guideline has been detailed in staff handbook, which is
distributed to all employees at the commencement of their
employment, so that they can familiarize themselves with the
guidelines.

EHER 2
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MANAGEMENT EXCELLENCE (Continued)

Professional Ethics (Continued)

During daily operations of money lending business, we
perform relevant due diligence on all customers. We verify
the customer’s identity by reference to documents or
information provided by reliable and independent sources.
Personal documents, including ID/passport, driving license
etc., will be obtained before entering into any business
relationships with our customers. All the information and
records are well maintained to meet the record-keeping
requirements.

In addition, the Group has established a reliable whistle-
blowing channel for employees and those who deal with the
Group to report any suspected misconduct to their respective
department head or human resources department verbally or
in writing. The whistle-blower’s identity will always remain
anonymous and be protected throughout the investigation.
Upon receipt of the report, we will conduct investigation
immediately, and if the allegation is found to be true, we will
take disciplinary actions against the person concerned, and if
necessary, take legal actions to report to the relevant
regulatory or law enforcement authorities.

During the Reporting Year, we were not aware of any illegal
cases of bribery, extortion, fraud or money laundering
threatened against the Group or its employees. In addition,
the Group arranged an anti-corruption session during the
orientation training for the new employees. The Group will
closely monitor the regulatory development and will arrange
relevant anti-corruption trainings for our employees and
directors, where necessary.
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MANAGEMENT EXCELLENCE (Continued)

Supplier Management

Suppliers play an integral role in the business of the Group.
The Group firmly believes that comprehensive supply chain
management is paramount to maintain the quality of the
products and services of the Group, and to promote
sustainable development. To protect our vital interests, the
Group always selects legitimate suppliers with outstanding
quality, relevant qualifications and excellent service
capabilities on the basis of transparency and fairness. The
performance of suppliers in discharging their environmental
and social responsibilities is also one of the evaluation criteria
for our suppliers. In the process of selecting suppliers, factors
such as candidates’ sustainable development and
management strategies, labour standards, moral standards
and environmental management systems are included in the
scoring system for close examination. The Group also
encourages suppliers to actively assume their corporate
social responsibilities by observing the regulatory
requirements and business ethics in respect of business
operation, marketing campaigns, social occasions and
environmental obligations.

To ensure the services and products quality provided by
suppliers, we evaluate our existing suppliers on a regular
basis and remove those found to be in serious non-
compliance or whose quality fails to meet the requirements,
thereby reducing the risks associated with the supply chain.
New suppliers will also be introduced according to our
selection criteria to maintain the Group’s sustainable
development and achieve our ultimate goal of a win-win
Situation.

During the Reporting Year, the Group has engaged 52
suppliers located in the PRC. We will continue to invest in our
collaboration with suppliers and expand our network of
providers, in a bid to provide the best experience to our
users.
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MANAGEMENT EXCELLENCE (Continued)

Product Responsibility

During the Reporting Year, the Group strictly complied with
laws and regulations in regard to product responsibility in the
PRC that have a significant impact on our business, including,
but not limited to, Trademark Law of the PRC, Copyright Law
of the PRC and Rules of Protection on Information Network
Dissemination Rights of the PRC.

The Group values greatly on the safety and health issue of
our product provided. During the Reporting Year, the Group
has not recalled any products sold or shipped subject for
safety and health reasons. If customers are not satisfied with
the quality of the services and products delivered, the
frontline staff have to conduct preliminary assessment, and
will pass the products to the Sales Department for further
checking, if necessary.

We have established procedures in relation to monitoring and
protection of intellectual property rights. The Group requires
its subsidiaries to purchase legitimate software and
multimedia resources to ensure the use of licensed
multimedia and software resources. If any piracy, theft,
falsification, illegal possession, counterfeiting or other forms
of infringement of intellectual property are found upon
investigation, the Group will immediately rectify such
behaviour and take disciplinary actions, and serious cases
will be handed over to relevant authorities for their handling
in accordance with the law; if such behaviour constitutes an
offence, those who committed such offence shall be held
responsible in accordance with the law.

The Group has pledged that the use of false promotional
messages is prohibited. When disseminating public
information such as advertisements and recruitment
materials, we strictly comply with the requirements under the
laws and regulations such as the Advertising Law of the PRC
(R AR K AMEE S L) by filing them with approving
authorities for their review and approval.
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MANAGEMENT EXCELLENCE (Continued)

Product Responsibility (continued)

In addition, the Group ensures that the information of
customers and business are highly secured. To further clarify
the requirements on privacy protection by the Group, as
required by the laws and regulations such as the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Civil Code of the
PRCCH ZE A R X FE K% # ) and Personal Information
Protection Law of the PRC {1 ZE A R A E A F EAREE),
we ensure that the confidentiality of material non-public
information such as business secrets and customer
information are strictly maintained.

The Group has formulated relevant regulations with detailed
provisions on the scope of confidential issues and
confidentiality level categorisation, the requirements for
confidential issues and the handling and accountability for
unauthorised disclosure and leakage. The Group has signed
non-disclosure agreements with all employees and
cooperating suppliers to ensure that they are aware of and
undertakes to comply with the Group’s confidentiality
requirements. We take reasonable steps to protect the
personal data and records from unauthorised access,
handling, deletion or use. Within the “Staff Handbook”, all
employees are required to protect the sensitive information
and clients’ personal information obtained when performing
the job duties. Information should not be disclosed to any
third parties unless and to the extent that it is necessary to
make such disclosure. In the event of any leakage of the
private information of our customers or the Group, the Group
will promptly take remedial measures and disciplinary actions
against the persons held responsible depending on the
severity of the incident.

When the Group receives complaints from customers, our
Business Department is responsible for handling the
complaints, and that all complaints received will be recorded
in writing and submitted to senior staff for reviews and
follow-up recommendations. All documents and reports will
be properly kept and we aim to resolve all complaints,
including those involving malpractices or alleged negligence.
A follow-up response will also be communicated to the
relevant customer when the complaint is duly handled and
resolved.

During the Reporting Year, no material complaints were
received and no material legal proceedings regarding
infringement of intellectual property, advertising, labelling
and privacy issues were brought against the Group.
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ELITE TEAMS

Employment Management

NOVA Group understands that employees are an
indispensable cornerstone for business development, and
excellent talents are the driving force for sustainable
development. The Group provides employees with attractive,
reasonable and fair treatment and remuneration, and actively
improves the employee benefit policies to increase
employees’ sense of belonging and work enthusiasm, and
jointly promote sustainable development. The Group strictly
complies with relevant laws and regulations, such as the
Employment Ordinance, the Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance, and the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Labour Law of the PRC {#F % A
R A£AE % 8% ), the Labour Contract Law of the PRC {12
AR £ HBILB) A [F))%), the Social Insurance Law of the PRC
(R AR MBI 2R ), the Implementing Regulations
of the Labour Contract Law of the PRC A %= A & HANE 44
& [F7% & 16 & 91 ), etc., continuously improves the human
resources management system, and implements normalised
and standardised management in respect of salary and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
holidays, equal opportunities, diversity, and anti-
discrimination, so as to effectively protect the interests of
employees.

The Group promotes a diverse and respectful workplace to
ensure that employees are not treated differently due to
factors such as gender, age, nationality, race, religion, family
and health conditions, and eliminate any form of
discrimination.

During the Reporting Year, the Group had not experienced
any complaints or litigations regarding the violation of laws
relating to recruitment, compensation, dismissal, promotion,
performance assessment, working hours, holidays, equal
opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination and other aspects
of employment.
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ELITE TEAMS (Continued) BRER 2
Employment Management (Continued) EBREREE (&)
During the Reporting Year, the Group had a total of 96 RFHEEE  NEFE-—HEWGZET - 7+
employees. The details are as follows: TR -
Year ended
30 June 2022
BEr-s——
Employment Indicators EfEER ARA=THLFE
Employment EE
Total number of employees ESHEZ 96
By gender bl
Male 3 44
Female oy 52
By age group BFBAE S
Under 30 30AT 12
30-40 30-407% 56
41-50 41-507% 21
51 or above 51pR3 A £ 7
By position bodiav
Senior management BREERE 20
Middle management RAREEE 29
General employees T imEg T 47
By region it =
Hong Kong BE 13
PRC H 83
By Employment Type E (B AR Y
Permanent Staff KABEL 96
Part-Time Staff FEET 0
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (continued)
BE - dEREIHRE @

ELITE TEAMS (Continuead) BEERR 2
Employment Management (Continued) EBREEE &)
Year ended
30 June 2022
BE-B-—F
Employment Indicators AA=ZTHLEFEE
Employee turnover i =
Total employee turnover rate BETHAE 17%
By gender gl
Male = 23%
Female kg 12%
By age group BFERAES
Under 30 0BT 50%
30-40 30-40 5% 13%
41-50 41-507% 5%
51 or above 513 A £ 29%
By region il
Hong Kong B 8%
PRC e 18%
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (continued)

BRE HBSEREA/AERE »)

ELITE TEAMS (Continued)

Lawful Labour

The Group prohibits the use of child labour or forced labour.
In accordance with the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong,
the Labour Contract Law of the PRC {FZE AR X MBI E B &
[@ J% ), the Law of the PRC on the Protection of l\/lmors and
the Regulations on the Implementation of the Employment
Contract (P #E A R KRB AR F ARZBEZMEBE & R EHE
141, the Law of the PRC on the Protection of Minors {1 &
AR H A B KRB F A R # X ) and the Provisions on the
Prohibition against the Use of Child Labour (£t [ B & T
#7E ), we have clearly stipulated in the labour contracts that
the Group and its employees have equal legal status and that
no party shall impose its/his/her will on the other party. The
Group strictly implements relevant procedures in the
recruitment process and screens out all job applicants under
the age of 16, and their identification certificates are carefully
examined in the interviews. In case of any violation of
relevant regulations, the Group will immediately terminate
the employment contract to prevent child labour. The Group
formulates the working hours of employees according to
relevant laws and regulations, and does not encourage and
emphasise overtime work.

During the Reporting Year, the Group had not experienced
any kind of child labour or forced labour related complaints.

Health and Safety

As a responsible employer, the Group believes employees’
health and safety are the guarantee of steady operation for
an enterprise. The Group continues to improve the health
and safety related system construction and daily
management to protect employees’ physical and mental
health. The Group strictly complies with the Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance of Hong Kong the Regulation on
Work-Related Injury Insurance ¢ T & {& & 1§ 5 ), the Fire
Safety (Commercial Premises) Ordinance of Hong Kong and
the Production Safety Law of the PRC {FhE A R KA ME L &
A EEJA), the Law on Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases of the PRC { 1 2 A R £ Bl B 3w B )&% ), and
the Administrative Measures for Occupational Health
Inspection B 2 4 fi2 F i & & 32 #% )% ) and other relevant
laws and regulations, committed to creating a sanitary, safe
and comfortable office environment for employees.
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (continued)

BRE HBEREA/IAERE »)

ELITE TEAMS (Continued)

Health and Safety (Continued)

We have formulated a series of emergency preparation and
response procedures at the Group’s exhibitions and
entertainment venues to further improve occupational health
management and reduce safety risks, regularly organised
safety drills, and equipped business premises with sufficient
labour protection supplies and firefighting equipment (such
as fire extinguishers and fire hoses), so as to
comprehensively reduce occupational safety risks.

In order to maintain a hygienic office environment, we
regularly hire professional cleaning companies to disinfect
telephones, keyboards, computers and other office supplies;
clean glass windows, walls, carpets as well as debugs. We
also carry out regular inspections of the hygienic conditions
of the items in our office environment and promptly clean or
replace those that do not meet hygienic standards.

In the midst of the COVID-19, the Group has implemented all
practicable preventive and protective measures to minimise
occupational risk, including but not limited to encouraging
the employees to wear surgical mask and remain social
distancing, when necessary, and provision of sanitizers. The
Group will pay close attention to the latest development and
regularly reviews the measures implemented to ensure the
measures are effective.

During the Reporting Year, the Group recorded zero case of
work injury and no relevant lost days (2021: 0 case; 2020: 0
case). No work-related fatalities were recorded by the Group
in the past three years including the Reporting Year. As the
Group places its employees’ safety as top priority, it will
continue to strive for a safe and healthy work environment
for its employees.

BEERK 2
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report continued)

BRE HBSEREA/AERE »)

ELITE TEAMS (Continued)

Training and Development

The development of employees is the top priority of the
Group'’s planning and also the driving force for the steady
development of NOVA Group. The Group continues to invest
resources and establish a sound training system. Through
various types of training and learning programmes, the Group
encourages employees to develop their potential, improves
team capabilities and overall quality, and lays a solid
foundation for the sustainable development of the Company.
Every year, the Group regularly formulates training work
plans for business development and employees’ career
needs, arranges diversified training programmes and
seminars held by relevant institutions. During the Reporting
Year, the Directors attended seminars and courses organised
by external parties; the Company'’s financial controller and
accounting department also attend courses, seminars and
online courses organised by the Institute of Certified Public
Accountants or accounting firms from time to time every
year.

We attach great importance to training management work
and monitor training processes and outcomes. We undertake
assessment upon conclusion of training programmes,
whereby we also take into account trainees’ subsequent job
performances to carry out appraisals as to their overall
learning results, ensuring that our trainings are effective.
Meanwhile, the results of the training assessment will be
recorded in the employees’ files as references for potential
shift of positions, adjustment of ranks, assessment of
performance and other personnel activities.

HEER2)
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (continued)

BE HEREARE 2

ELITE TEAMS (Continued)

Training and Development (Continued)

During the Reporting Year, the average training hours of the
Group's employees are 6.3 hours per trainee. The details are

as follows:

WREER 2

IR (&)

RBEFE > AEBEBIESEITFHEER
BEAN63NE - BT

Development and Training Indicators
Total

By gender

Male

Female

By employee category

Senior management

Middle management

General employees

Year Ended
30 June 2022
gz
BREIZIIER AA=THLEFEE
st 63.5%
ZIt 5
Es 42.6%
Z 57.4%
ZIEIEXE S
RRERE 11.5%
hREEE 31.1%
LEBT 57.4%

Year Ended
30 June 2022
BE-ZT_-_—F

Development and Training Indicators

Total number of hours of training
received by employees

Average hours of training per employee

Average hours of training per employee
by gender

Male

Female

Average hours of training per employee
by employment category

Senior management
Middle management
General employees

BRETIER
B T35 3l 69 8

ANA=tHLEE

608.4

HEE T FGEFE
ZIRIE| S FEET

F1E5 50 &
5 5.8
Z 6.8
ZEGBESZEEET

F 15 2
=RERE 1.9
PARERE 9.4
T T 6.3
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report continued)

BRE HBSEREA/AERE »)

ELITE TEAMS (Continued)

Employee Care

NOVA Group has established a comprehensive remuneration
and welfare protection system in accordance with the laws,
and adheres to the principle of equal and fair employment.
We only consider candidates’ moral character, work ability,
development potential and compatibility with the Company’s
culture as the consideration for the appointment of talents,
and provide fair and competitive remuneration and benefits
based on their educational background, work experience,
career aspirations and other factors. Employees’
remuneration package includes basic salary, post salary and
comprehensive subsidies, as well as bonuses determined by
their business performance and individual performance,
serving as an effective motivation to employees. The Group
regularly adjusts employees’ remuneration and benefits by
evaluating their work ability and past performance, and
making reference to market and industry standards, which is
one of the bases for promotion. At the same time, the Group
provides performance-based salary according to the work
performance and position of employees to enhance the
motivation of employees to work hard, and formulates a
remuneration structure table to determine the salary range of
each rank and provide clear guidance for employees. The
Group ensures that all procedures such as remuneration
assessment, position and job grade transfer are fair, open
and transparent to ensure equal opportunities for all job
applicants and staff.

HEER2)
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (continued)

BRE HBEREA/IAERE »)

ELITE TEAMS (Continued)

Employee Care (Continued)

Not only reasonable remuneration, the Group also
emphasises on welfare policy to encourage cohesion of
our staff and passion of work. Subject to the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong and the Labour Contract Law of
the PRC {1 ZE A R L F1E &5 &) & [F)% ), we provide a wide
range of benefits to employees, including labour insurance,
Mandatory Provident Fund, medical and life insurance,
telecommunication subsidy, lunch allowance, overtime
subsidy, travel allowance, heatstroke prevention subsidy
and labour protection allowance. In addition, we implement
standardised management on employees’ holidays and rest
periods, and formulate policies to restrict employees’ working
hours with reference to laws, regulations and guidelines
such as the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong and the
Provisions of the State Council on Employees’ Working Hours
(B B B 70 B T T YRR IV AR 7E ), to ensure that employees
have sufficient rest. In addition to statutory holidays and fixed
paid annual leave, the Group's employees are provided with
paid leave including annual leave, sick leave, maternity leave,
marriage leave, bereavement leave and examination leave to
further protect the legitimate rights of employees.

To ensure that our employees work in a pleasant and
comfortable environment, we attach great importance to our
employees’ voices, and have established a number of
channels, such as feedback boxes for collecting employees’
comments, in order to enhance communication with them,
understand their thoughts and suggestions, and continue to
perfect our employee management system. The Group also
encourages employees to respect, coordinate and support
one another during work and create a fair and diverse
working environment free from discrimination so as to
manifest our corporate values and fulfil social responsibilities.

Furthermore, we arrange various kinds of recreational
activities, dinners and parties for our employees from time to
time. On major traditional holidays, such as the Dragon Boat
Festival and the Mid-Autumn Festival, the Company buys rice
dumplings and mooncakes for employees as benefits, which
not only unites our team, but also encourages employees to
achieve a balance between life and work.
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report continued)

BRE HBSEREA/AERE »)

ENVIRONMENTAL OPERATIONS

Environmental Protection

The Group understands the importance of environmental
protection, strictly controls generation and emission of air
pollutants, waste discharges and others in adherence to the
Air Pollution Control Ordinance of Hong Kong, the
Environmental Protection Law of the PRC {2 A & TR
5 {R#&%), the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control
of Pollution {1 & A & L F1 B )5 2256 7% ), the Law of the
PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution 7 #
AR F1 B K55 2[5 A 7% ), the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Noise Pollution {#
#EARLMBEIRIFRE S LN EE), the Law of the PRC on
the Prevention and Control of Environment Pollution Caused
by Solid Wastes /2 A R £ FNEH [E 88 2475 22B578 %) and
the Law of the PRC on Conserving Energy {1 2 A & H ANE
fi %) 8¢ JR J% ) and other related laws and regulations, to
ensure that the Group does not violate any laws or
regulations related to environment in the course of our
operation and management.

As a responsible corporate citizen, we consistently carry out
the environmental sustainability development strategy across
our operations, perfect our environment management
system and promote green development. We continuously
gather and monitor data and information relating to major
environmental issues which are material to the Group. As the
Group is principally engaged in the exhibition management
business, management services and other business activities
which are all conducted in office, our daily operations do not
have any material effect on the environment, except for
greenhouse gas emissions indirectly generated from the use
of externally purchased electricity.

During the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware of any
violation of environmental protection laws and regulations.
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (continued)

BRE HBEREA/IAERE »)

ENVIRONMENTAL OPERATIONS (Continued)

Energy Saving and Reducing Emission

In order to reduce carbon emissions in business operations
and jointly cope with climate change, the Group actively
advocates the green policy of sustainable development and
strives to save energy, water, paper and other resources
within its capacity. We proactively raised our staff's
environmental awareness and implemented relevant
measures in energy saving and reducing emission in daily
operation so as to establish a low-carbon office. During the
Reporting Year, the greenhouse gas emission intensity
increased 2% when compared to the previous reporting year,
which did not achieve the target set in previous reporting
year. This is mainly because four more business unit’s
greenhouse gas emission has been disclosed for
comprehensives, meanwhile the number of employee level
remains similar, which might lead to a slight increase in
greenhouse gas emission intensity. To uphold the principles
of sustainable development, the Group is committed to
reducing or maintaining both the greenhouse gas emission
intensity between 90% to 120% of the level of baseline year
ended 30 June 2022 in the next reporting year via adopting
the following measures.

Electricity is the principal energy consumed in our daily
operation within the offices and galleries. The Group regularly
monitors the electricity consumption of the offices in Hong
Kong and Mainland China, instals LED lights with higher
energy efficiency in the offices to replace traditional
fluorescent tubes, and encourages employees to minimise
the use of lights when natural light is abundant; signings are
displayed at prominent locations in offices to raise
employees’ awareness of energy conservation; central air-
conditioning is subject to reasonable adjustments in different
seasons,; electrical appliances are subject to regular energy
consumption inspections; energy saving and environmental
protection are considered in the procurement of new
electrical appliances. During the Reporting Year, the
electricity consumption intensity increased 3% when
compared to the previous reporting year, which did not
achieve the target set in previous reporting year. As
aforementioned, this is mainly because four more business
unit’s electricity consumption has been disclosed, meanwhile
the number of employee level remains similar, which might
lead to a slight increase in electricity consumption intensity.
To uphold the principles of sustainable development, the
Group is committed to reducing or maintaining the electricity
consumption intensity between 90% to 120% of the level of
baseline year ended 30 June 2022 in the next reporting year
by implementing the said mitigating measures.
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (continued)

BRE HBSEREA/AERE »)

ENVIRONMENTAL OPERATIONS (Continued)

Effective Use of Resources

The Group understands the precious nature of the earth’s
resources and actively advocates paperless office in the
office to reduce unnecessary office paper consumption. The
Group encourages employees to prioritise the
communication and dissemination of information through
e-mail and other electronic platforms. The Group encourages
double-sided printing and use of waste paper for printing
internal documents whenever possible.

The Group adheres to its commitment to sustainable
management and has taken various measures in the office to
encourage recycling to reduce waste generation. The Group
encourages employees to reuse office stationery such as
used envelopes and document folders whenever possible. In
terms of hazardous waste, as the business of the Group does
not involve any industrial production activities, the Group did
not generate any significant hazardous waste during the
Reporting Year.

The major non-hazardous waste is produced from the paper
consumption for administrative work. During the Reporting
Year, the paper consumption intensity increased 11% when
compared to the previous reporting year, which did not
achieve the target set in previous reporting year. This is
mainly because of the statistics of the paper consumption for
the Reporting Year has been disclosed together with Hong
Kong head office and PRC offices for comprehensiveness,
while previous reporting year disclosed the paper
consumption in the Hong Kong head office only. Therefore,
the increasing paper consumption level would be resulted.

In order to minimise the usage of paper, we cultivate a
paperless working environment among our employees. To
avoid unnecessary wastage and promote effective use of
paper, our employees are encouraged to use electronic
copies instead of hard copies. If printing is necessary, we
encourage the use of double-sided printing. For any paper
that has been used for single-sided printing, they should be
reused when there is no confidential information on the
printed side of the paper. To uphold the principles of
sustainable development, the Group is committed to reducing
or maintaining the non-hazardous waste intensity generated
between 90% to 120% of the level of baseline year ended 30
June 2022 in the next reporting year.
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report continued)

BRE HBEREA/IAERE »)

ENVIRONMENTAL OPERATIONS (Continued)

Effective Use of Resources (Continued)

The operation of the Group involves a small amount of water
for office activities. During the Reporting Year, the water
consumption intensity decreased 55% when compared to the
previous reporting year, which achieved the target set in
previous reporting year. The significant drop in water
consumption intensity is mainly contributed by COVID-19
situation. Due to the pandemic, the business of the Group
reduced and work from home arrangement has been made
for the employee, which leads to greatly reduce in water
consumption during the Reporting Period.

Although the Group did not encounter any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, we strive to reduce water
consumption and improve the efficiency of water use in our
operations. The Group has put up “Saving Water Resource”
posters in washrooms and food bars in the office to raise
employees’ awareness of water conservation. In addition, the
Group also regularly inspects and repairs the water supply
system, including water taps, water pipelines and water
storage tanks. Once the water supply equipment is found to
have dripping or leaking, professional parties will be arranged
to repair the water supply equipment immediately to reduce
waste caused by leakage of the water supply system. To
uphold the principles of sustainable development, the Group
is committed to reducing or maintaining the water
consumption intensity between 90% to 120% of the level of
baseline year ended 30 June 2022 in the next reporting year.
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (continued)

BE -HEREAIRSE )

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

During the Reporting Year, the Group’s environmental
performance in terms of resource consumption and
emissions are as follows:

Resource Consumption Indicator &EREHARIEE

Electricity consumption (kwh) HEE(TER)
Electricity consumption per capita ABFEE=E
(kwh/person) (FRE/A)
Water consumption (litre)? FKE (F)2
Water consumption per capita ABFEKE
(litre/person) (F/N)

Greenhouse Gas
Emission Indicator

Motor vehicle emission (scope 1) (kg B HIKE (8E—
(Fm)3
Electricity consumption emission BHERHENE
(scope 2) (kg) (BE=)(FR)
Total greenhouse gas emission (kg) BREREBHNE
(F7)
Total greenhouse gas emission BRERBHREE
intensity (kg/person) (F7=,/AN)

2 The statistics of water consumption only cover the bottled water
consumption of Hong Kong head office, Furuida Financial Leasing
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. and Nod (Shanghai) Management Communication
Co., Ltd; the Group's water supply is sourced from the municipal water
network, and it has not experienced any difficulty in securing water supply.

3 The Group has two vehicles in Hong Kong. The motor vehicle emissions
were decreased substantially because of drop in business due to
COVID-19, and hence leads to relatively low usage of two vehicles during
the Reporting Year. The greenhouse gas (scope 1) emissions data and air
pollutant emissions data is calculated with reference to the Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs issued by the Stock Exchange.

EREHHERER

BRM

RBEFEE - RIS TAKBEEERER
KRR 77 E IR IRAE K ¢

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
BE-—Z—— E
~NA=1+H
IEFE
80,979.58 77,343.53
843.54 797.36
2,101.00 4,756.00
21.89 49.03
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
BE-F-=
~NA=+H
IEFEE
619.89 807.95
50,032.65 48,630.74
50,652.54 49,438.69
527.63 509.68

FREFSAERESTAEINAE BHERE
HECRIDERAR R (LE) BEERES
BRAFER,MEAERE  AEBKRIE
THUKAS - S EEUK T T E -

REBERBUREBRTEMI - TEHRER
18582 - FREACOVID-19S £ E A - EEN R
EFEEMBIENEREEERE - RERE(E
| — ) BER B R 2= RS A HE BRI ET B 7
ESEM R MO CGRIEBRE B ERE
51y
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (continued)
BE - dEREIHRE @

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE BEEXN 2
(Continued)
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
BE-Z—_— BE-ZT-——F
Vehicle Air Pollutant HRZERTEY ANA=1+H ~NA=1H
Emissions Indicator B EEE IEFE IEFE
Sulphur oxides (SOx) emission (g) ALY (SOy)
HEmE (72) 3.43 5.03
Nitrogen oxide (NOx) emission (g) REAEH (NOyY)

HemE (72) 142.01 386.60

Suspended particulate matter (PM2.5)  £5,% 28x ¥ (PM2.5)
emission (g) P E (32) 10.46 28.24
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
BE-—T—_— HE-_ZT——%F
~A=+H ~NA=1H
Non-hazardous Waste Indicator*  EEREZEYIEE* LHEFE IEFE
Waste paper generation (kg) BEARESLS (TR) 310.00 283.00

Waste paper generation intensity BEEMRREEARE
(kg/person) (F7=N) 3.23 2.92

The Group will keep recording its resource consumption for
reviewing the effectiveness of its conservation measures in
the future and formulating more specific improvement
measures and objectives.

4 The scope of the Group’s business operation does not involve any
packaging material.

2021/22FF3R o HBEEBERERAT
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report continued)

BRE HBSEREA/AERE »)

CLIMATE CHANGE

Climate change is among the most pressing global challenges
of our time. Against the backdrop of global climate actions,
the Group has implemented measures to conserve energy
and reduce greenhouse gas emissions. In addition, the Group
is conscious that the frequency of extreme weather is
increasing, which could impact its business operations.

Going forward, the Group will continue to review the impact
of climate change on its operations and implement mitigation
controls for significant risks to enhance its resilience and
adaptability to climate change.

The Group has considered the potential climate-related risks
and opportunities in respect of the recommendations of the
Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures, in which
potential physical risk and transition risk from climate change
may pose adverse financial impacts on the Group’s
businesses. Acute physical risk can arise from extreme
weather conditions such as flooding and storms and chronic
physical risk can arise from sustained high temperature,
while transition risk may result from the change in
environmental-related regulations or change in customer
preferences, and the potential climate-related risks are
summarised as below:

wmiEE{t

SURBL TS BB VIR IR, « 7T
BT - AKE D EI62 B R ai b
BRESESRESN 5\ KRB
B RROR DAL Y SR EHE

R - NEB G HEE *ﬁﬁﬁﬂl“{tffﬁﬁk
MR E - WHATTIE ﬁm/)ﬁﬂfiéﬁﬂ CHE
e 8 RIRE LR PRE S KB -

AREE D R IxE R 5 T/ M MERE
AERECRERERRLES  ERRE
B R A A B R R\ B N B R\ B R B
$’EEIE’J%%LE)ZT$UHH% B BREER
XQ&JK&%HFﬁ#ﬁ%%ﬂ\E
/R %Eﬁﬁﬁ% RERBRE=A © i@
Pyl PKE Iaiﬂﬁﬁa/i%ﬁ“?ﬁbixﬁ
mar =1L - EL BRI R AT -
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (continued)
BE - dEREIHRE @

CLIMATE CHANGE (Continued) RiE8 2

short  Medium

(current  (one to Long
reporting  three (four to

period) years) tenyears) Mitigation Strategy

ybt HH RH

(R§E (& (mz
BrENBYE i) =%) T4%)

Potential Financial
Impact

Risk Type Risks

el AR

Physical Risks Extreme weather o Reduced revenue from 4 v/ e Establish adverse weather condition
conditions such as business due to policy
flooding and typhoon business and supply ¢ Maintain or expand the supplier
chain disruptions base to avoid disruption
Insurance coverage for fire, flood

N

temperature

BERR

Transition Risks Changes in

regulations

BERR

concept

BRRRER - Ak

Sustained elevated

environmental-related

RARERE(

Shift in consumer
preference to products
incorporating more
environmentally-friendly

HBERITEERRA
RRESHER

£ R B
WD

Increased in business
operating costs

EHEERAEN

Higher operating costs
to adopt new practices

REHERGHREN
REF

Reduced demand for
the service, decreased
competitiveness and
impact on revenues

IRIBFHRED  HFD
THRESEERTE

4

4
v/
v/
4 4
v/ 4
v/
v

and typhoon damages to
merchandise, furniture, fixtures and
fittings

HEBHARMREE

FES B NG SE St
RN KA RRmE R - K
B REREHNESRERR
Adopt energy conservation
measures to avoid
overconsumption of natural
resources

FIET A B 2 B ERERA
B

Adopt energy conservation
measures to reduce emissions
Continue to monitor the regulatory
environment to ensure that the
Group complied with the
environmental-related law and
regulation
PRERER AL HE AR D HE R
FEEREERENBRASES
SRERBEERER

Adhere to the Group's sustainable
development concept and take it
into consideration when providing
services, and commit to producing
high-quality services to meet the
expectations of consumers and the
market

ZIAEENAHERRES R
REURBEBELZES  LBOR
HBERBATAELRMHEHE
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (continued)
BE HdEREILE &

CLIMATE CHANGE (Continued) R84t »
Caring for Community BAELE

Adhering to the belief that “fragrance lingers in the hand that FiF [l AR e FAERKRET] E— 5
gives roses”, the Group encourages employees to actively &£ EEEE TEGREEEZEE LIZHERM
participate in charitable activities and provide voluntary  fR# @ Ut EEASHR[FHERRE -
services to support sustainable development of the

community and society.

During the Reporting Year, the Group had not organised any RIREFE - HRCOVID-19Z 1B KA HE
community and charity activities due to the COVID-19 4 @ KEETERBH TR NEEE
pandemic and public health concerns. The Group will explore &) o K E E#8 7 H 8 COVID-19 4k L 28 = &
volunteer opportunities and organise relevant activities in the  fERIR &1 - FEE TS L EWIERES) o
future after the COVID-19 situation are improved and

restrictions are lifted.

92 NOVA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22



Environmental, Social And Governance Report (continued)
BE HEREILE @

CONTENT INDEX FOR THE ENVIRONMENTAL, (RiE - @R EQHRE)ANETERSI
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

IREE  BFH —REEREREMER

A. Environmental Reference

A BRE Section(s)
BEZEH

Aspect A1: General Disclosure

Emissions —RIEE

EBEA1:

2358/ Information on;

E@Eﬁ&iﬂ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁm CAKREHEEES  BEREEEEVNE

(@)  the policies; and
@ BE:Rk

()  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

b BEBTEHBETABEAZENHEBEERAM Environmental
Protection

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and RIERE

land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BB R}

Note:  Air emissions includes NOy, SO, and other pollutants regulated under national laws and
regulations.
Fr BRENBEALELRD  REtMkEMZER AR LBIIRENSLEY -

Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons,
perfluorocarbons and sulphur hexafluoride.
REREOE_ALH T @A S&(ew  2EARRSFEH

Hazardous wastes are those defined by national regulations.
BEEEMERTBOMATE -
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (continued)
BE HdEREILE &

CONTENT INDEX FOR THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING (%)

(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

(B - it REAR

&=
=

YABRFES]

IREE  BH —REEREREMER

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions Environmental

RSB I A1 data. Performance
Br iR AR BB - RFEM

KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)

mEdusiEar2 | greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production Environmental
volume, per facility). Performance
B (BE1) kg RE% (BE2) RERBHNE REER
(AWEEHE) B (@) 22 (A EE Bl -

BRMEATH)

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,

RS WEIE A3 where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of Environmental
production volume, per facility). Performance
FREEREREZEYRES (UEE) R (WER) % RIGEM
E(ABEEEM - SRR E) °

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)

RSB IS IE A1 A and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of Environmental
production volume, per facility). Performance
PREEEEEZEYRAS (UEE) R (WER) % RIGEN
E(ABEESM - BEREE) -

KPI A15 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken | Energy Saving

RSB IEIEALS to achieve them. and Reducing
AR LB E B R R RE R L B IRATER Emission
BT - e

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous Energy Saving

mgEdusiEAl6 | wastes are handled, and a description of reduction and Reducin

i g
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Emission
HREAEREZEEYNIE - REARTE] P,

M H)REE B R R AEREL B RTINS
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (continued)
BE HAEREILRE

CONTENT INDEX FOR THE ENVIRONMENTAL, (BEBE N2 REALEEABESI
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING (&)
(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
TEESR  EE - —REERERENER

Aspect A2: General Disclosure ,
Use of Resources [eieie Environmental
EBEA2 : Protection
ERER Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other BRRIRE
raw materials ,
B R AR (RIFR - KRR R BB - Energy Saving
and Reducing
Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage, transportation, in buildings, electronic Emission
equipment, etc. B BE R
F: BRUAREE #F BE BF ETHES
KP| A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type
R AE B IE A2.1 (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per Environmental
facility). Performance
BRRAEDNERR/LEEER(NE - Roh) RIBEM
BEE(UTETERSE) REE(MAEESEE
i - GIEBMHEAE) o
KP| A2 2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per .
BREIEIEA2 2 unit of production volume, per facility). Eggr'gmaennctsl
i@%%7j<iﬁﬁr(pulf/(l?5 nn{_L ‘l‘IE Eﬂz -«— igiﬁii’\_ﬂ
St AR STRE A
g) o
KP| A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) setand | Energy Saving
B IEIEA2 3 steps taken to achieve them. and Emission
R FTET IR RE AR R B R R AESELE Reduction
R ERER A PR, o ERE R B
KP| A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing |  Energy Saving
BRETEEIEA2.4 water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) | and Emission
set and steps taken to achieve them. Reduction
fi SR EGE KR AT A EAIRRE - A RPTRISL R e R HE
B AR B IR R AEDE L B IZATEREE) B -
Environmental
Performance
RIBEN
KP| A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products The Group does
BRENISIEA2S (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per not involve the
unit produced. use of packaging
R mATABEM B E (ANt E) R (WER) | materials due to
BHEEBM(LE - the nature of
business 7
By
rEETS R
M EREE A
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (continued)
BE HdEREILE &

CONTENT INDEX FOR THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

(BE - tERER

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING (%)

(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

IREE  BH —REEREREMER

HBEE  MERDERABMTENTD -

Aspect A3: General disclosure Environmental
The Environment | —f&# % Protection
and Natural RERE
Resources Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment
BEA3: and natural resources. Energy Saving
RERAARER AEBEITAHRRERARERENERT EHPUR and Reducing
Emission
Rz
KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on Energy Saving
RS EMIBEIZA3.1 | the environment and natural resources and the and Reducing
actions taken to manage them. Erission
Rl XK EHHRERRAERNEATVER EAE R EE
RREREHAYENTE - FEe
Aspect A4. General disclosure Environmental
Climate Change | —#MH#E Protection
EEAL: RERE
RIEZ{L Policies on identification and mitigation of significant impacts on the
environment and natural resources. Energy Saving
BR KR E IR R AR EREEERFEHIE and Reducing
Emission
EIRERIE
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues
BIREMIZIZ AL | which have impacted, and those which may impact, | Environmental
the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them. Performance
BB R LA EHBETAEEYENEARIK REEN
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (continued)
BR HEREIBE &

CONTENT INDEX FOR THE ENVIRONMENTAL, (BEBE N2 REALEEABESI
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING (&)
(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

IREE  BH —REEREREMER

B. Social Reference
B. 8 Section(s)
BEEH
Employment and Labour Practices
BREREIER
Aspect B1: General Disclosure
Employment —MREE
E®B1 :
&= Information on:
EBRFM R mE  BEREA TERE BRE TEHe 22t R
AR A R B B BRI -
g tﬁgeﬁp(;)lges, and Employment
Management
. . . - ERER
() compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
b  ETHBETABEAZENRRBERZ IR
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.
BYEH -
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for
RASRAE WS HE BT .1 example, full- or part-time), age group and Employment
geographical region. Management
BUR - ERAR (MEBRE)  Ficdhl Rk ERER
=l D E B AR -
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Employment
BRI WEIE BT.2 geographical region. Management
B Fiep RnREHHESRKLLE - ERER
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (continued)
BR HeEREIBE &

CONTENT INDEX FOR THE ENVIRONMENTAL, (BEBE e REALEEABESI
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING (&)
(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

IREE  BH —REEREREMER

Aspect B2: General disclosure
Health and Safety | —f&# &
[EmEB2 :
REEZ2 Information on:
BERRMZ2THEREMREEESEBELLEN
@ the ol enc Healt ang
Safety
[rmPaN
()  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant Rz
impact on the issuer
b BITHEBTABEAZENHEBEERAH
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.
H&R -
KPI B2 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred
RR B AR B2.1 in each of the past three years including the Health and
reporting year. Safety
BEZF (BEBEFRE)BFRITHNAEK EEEZ 2
b o
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and
BmpEsEe2 | BIHERIERE Safety
fEEEZ R
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety
RAGRAE LI B2.3 measures adopted, how they are implemented and Health and
monitored. Safety
AR BR B RE L 246 - A RABRIH R 2
TRERGE-
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (continued)
BE HAEREILRE

CONTENT INDEX FOR THE ENVIRONMENTAL, (BEBE N2 REALEEABESI
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING (&)
(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

IREE  BH —REEREREMER

Aspect B3: General disclosure

Development and | — &1 &

Training

EHEB3 : Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for Training and

BERIEZ discharging duties at work. Description of training activities. Development
BERRAEERTIIERE A R BUR - A BRI - ) s E

Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may include internal and external
courses paid by the employer.

o BIEERSE - U ermEEIENRIRE

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by
A4 48 M F51E B3 gender and employee category (e.g. senior Training and
management, middle management). Development
BRI REBER (W RERE  PRERE) BIEER
AomXIERBAL -
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per o
4= i employee by gender and employee category Training and
FAsERURRB3.2 = = P pap e Development
BRI REBERRIE S - BEEETHEINNF o
i BilRER
EIRFES o
Aspect B4: General disclosure
Labour Standards | — 4% &
[EHEB4 :
B TR Information on:

A B FE TR G| TH) -

(@  the policies; and

(@ HE: X Lawful Labour

BEST

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
b)) BIFHBETABEARZENEEERIAD

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

HYERY o

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment

RASAE AIEHE BA practices to avoid child and forced labour. Lavﬁgﬁlﬁ;our
s R BN EEARRET RRH ST e

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such

RASR4E WIEIERA .2 practices when discovered. Lawful Labour
W EERERBEAR AR EBBERMERREN S AESL
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (continued)

RBRE HBEREIRE =

CONTENT INDEX FOR THE ENVIRONMENTAL, (BB - i€ R ELIE
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING (&)
(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

&=
=

YABRFES]

TEHE EE - —REERBREXESR
Operating Practices

A RERERRRES BRERER KRB
1BH1 - URABBEMITRERTE -

EEEM
General disclosure
Aspect B5: — = ;
Management Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply BEEEE
BEB5 : chain e
HEgEER TR EREAIRE LA SRR -
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supplier
RS B A5 HE B5 1 Zi= B DR EA - Management
HEmER
KP| B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging
A GR4E WS HE BS.2 suppliers, number of suppliers where the supplier
practices are being implemented, how they are
. . Management
implemented and monitored. BEE S
HAABEREEANEDN  MERTHRIEM PIREE
HHEEREE - BRI RER A -
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify
RS 4E WS HE B5.3 environmental and social risks along the supply supplier
chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored. ’V}irjg%e;“gt
HAABRPHEREEROORERL AR SRR
HERI - ARRRBRITRERTTA
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote
RAGRAE W IE RS 4 environmentally preferable products and supplier
services yvhen selecting supplie_rs, and how Management
they are implemented and monitored. HLERE S8
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (continued)
BE HAEREILRE

CONTENT INDEX FOR THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING (%)

(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

IREE  BH —REEREREMER

(B - it REAR

CPAREE =]

Aspect B6:
Product
Responsibility
fEEB6 :
ERER

General disclosure

—REE

Information on:

FRMREERNRENERELZ S

CEE  BEELBEEARER

JIEH)
i
Responsibility
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a EmALT
significant impact on the issuer
b BTHETABEARENHBEAEZRAN
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods of
redress.
H&R -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped Product
RS 4E W35 HE B subject to recalls for safety and health reasons. Responsibility
EERCEXEMERTRL 2 REFEMRMEA Eo &
L CERA s
KP| B6.2 Number of products and service-related p
: . . roduct
RS 4E WIEHE BL.2 \(;V(i):r:plamts received and how they are dealt Responsibility
RN ES BRI RF B R EHIE - EAELE
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing Product
RIS 4B M F51E B6.3 and protecting intellectual property rights Responsibility
1 i R o (R AR E R A RN IB ) - EmEE
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and Product
A4 48 W FE1E Bs 4 recall procedures. Responsibility
S BT RERERBYIER - EmaE
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and
RASE 4B M FE1E BL 5 privacy policies, how they are implemented Product
and monitored. Responsibility
A EEERRERLEBRE - ARBBHT EmEE

RERTE
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (continued)
BR HeEREIBE &

CONTENT INDEX FOR THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

(BE - tERER

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING (%)

(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

[EMB7 :
REF

Aspect B7:
Anti-corruption

IREE  BH —REEREREMER

General disclosure

—MRIKE

Information on:

AR ILHE - 9R - BFF RO REN

(@ the policies; and Professional

@ BR:XK Ethics

BEERE
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

b  ETHBETABEATENRRBERZNAM

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BB HL o

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding

RAssE st BT 1 corrupt practices brought against the issuer or Professional
its employees during the reporting period and Ethics
the outcomes of the cases. B s
##&iiﬁfﬁW‘;’ﬁ*ﬁ)\ﬁéﬁﬁihtﬂﬁﬁ%%ﬁ’ﬂ ;
BRARMHEE RFRER

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and

RASR4E WIEIERT 2 whistle-blowing procedures, how they are Professional
implemented and monitored. Ethics
Ry B R B EE - AR IT RER BERER
a7

KPIB7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided Professional

RASR 4B M FE1ERT 3 to directors and staff. Ethics
HmERE I ETRHENRESET - BEEE

102 NOVA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22




Environmental, Social And Governance Report (continued)
BR HEREIBE &

CONTENT INDEX FOR THE ENVIRONMENTAL, (IEE - HdEREAHRE)ABTESI
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING (%)

(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

IREE  BH —REEREREMER

community
HE
Aspect B8: General disclosure
community —RIEE
Investment Caring for
fEMEBS : Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the community
HERE communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities HELE
take into consideration the communities’ interests. e
FAUMR2ERTBETACEMEHRTENRREAEXBZHGZ
B R MRAER
KPI B8 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
RS 4E W35+ B environmental concerns, labour needs, health, Caring for
culture, sport). community
EIEREE(NHE  REFE SIFR & AELR
- Xifb - 8BF) -
KPI B.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to Caring for
RIS 45 W F51E B8 .2 the focus area. Community
EZIREMBAER (WS EHERH) - BAELR
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Independent Auditor’s Report
%1 % Eh 3R

Bt gt ATR RS
HLM CPA LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants

Room 1501-08, 15th Floor, Tai Yau Building,
181 Johnston Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

A AT I LA 18157

XA KA 154#1501-08€

Tel & 3%:(852) 3103 6980

Fax{% £ :(852) 3104 0170

E-mail ‘& #: info@hlm.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF NOVA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
NOVA Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 113 to 263, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 30 June 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA”") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

I BB 2

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
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our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Impairment assessment of goodwiill
BEZ B EE

As set out in Notes 19 and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group recorded the balance
of goodwill amounting to approximately
HK$129,032,000.

WA & B RS AR M 19 R 20 FT &
P2 A #R 47 129,032,000 7T ©

BEREEE

The management had made an assessment of the
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
("CGU(s)") allocated to the goodwill to ascertain that
their carrying amounts did not exceed their
recoverable amounts. The recoverable amounts of
the CGUs were determined based on the value-in-use
calculation performed by an independent
professional valuer. The calculation used cash flow
projections based on financial forecasts covering a
three-year period, with reference to discount rates,
market conditions and other relevant factors.
EREEHIEEN B HeEAEM([REEL
By ) el BEELE - AT EREAET R
BEEAKESE REELEEMN 2AIREESEE
BB EXEGEMETCFEREBEREEE - B
SREBAMAAEDERSEMBRE A RHE
BRI R &= v = F IS TR -

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment of goodwill included:
EERERBAEBMBE CREN RN EAIEF
2ECE

evaluating the objectivity, independence and
competency of the valuer,;

A ERM  FEBIE - B MR

— discussing with and challenging the valuer on
the valuation methodologies, assumptions and
key estimates used in the valuation;

HfLER N RYE R EEMR 2 EERE - &R
"REBMEE

reviewing the consistency of cash flow
projections with management’s assumptions
and the economic environment in which the
Group operates. We had also evaluated the
impact of COVID-19 considered by the
management in the assumptions for the next
fiscal year and the reasonableness of the
estimate,
FREeREBARTHERERER &S
EREMESERR - - EFNEOHRERE
R T —HMBFEREFFIEECOVID- 1982
MAEETH & B M ETTR M
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

I BENRE 2

We identified the impairment review in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” in relation to
the Group’s goodwill as a key audit matter due to the
quantum of the carrying value of goodwill and the
Group's assessment of the recoverable amounts is
usually based on the future performance of the
business which is subject to a number of
uncertainties (e.g. forecasted revenue, COVID-19
impact on future cash flows, expectations of market
developments) and the discount rates applied to the
future cash flow forecast which involves significant
management assumption, judgements and estimates.
EERBBEEEGTTEAER EEREIYH &
SEEREBETHRESHEENAARENSTE R
HermEsFEEEER ESEFETKREEE
TBEEREBHARKR (AR ZEBIEEREM
F& BRI - COVID- 198 R KRB & REN T
2 MSEREH) RERAERKRSRETEANEL
WE  BERIREREEERE - HE KRG -
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assessing the sensitivity of the forecasts to
change in assumptions, specifically the discount
rate used in the model, to assess the
appropriateness of the carrying amounts of
goodwill;

FHETERAERRES cHRE(LAREAR
PRABRIRE) U EZREAERERE

assessing whether the allocation of goodwill to
their respective CGUs are reasonable; and
AEEESEERERBZRSELENESR
BEE &k

obtaining an understanding of management’s
process of assessing the recoverable amounts
of CGUs and their value-in-use.
THRERENGEREEESEM 2T KREEE R
HERBEZIERF -

We considered that the judgement and assumptions
made by management in its impairment assessment
for goodwill was supportable by available evidences
and information.

FERE BEEEBUHHEETREN GIELZ HE

LEBREHRBIENEHOS -
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BB ERE &)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables,
factoring receivables, lease receivables and
loan receivables
EZEKNIE REEKRNE HEEKNEARE
WK E 2 EFE

As set out in Notes 5, 23, 24, 25 and 26 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group has
carrying amounts of trade receivables, factoring
receivables, lease receivables, loan receivables and
impairment allowance of approximately
HK$28,399,000, HK$422,145,000, HK$16,136,000
HK$12,174,000 and HK$44,269,000, respectively as at
30 June 2022. The assessment of the expected credit
loss (“"ECL") for these financial assets required the
management’s significant judgements and involved
high level of estimation uncertainty. It includes key
assumptions such as probabilities of default rates,
expected recovery rates from loss given default and
forward-looking information specific to the debtors
and macroeconomic environment.

AL A M ISR MIRES ~ 23 24 - 25 R 26 FR & » &
ZEC_FXA=1TH - EXEENEFHEKFIE -
RIBEWFIRE - HERWIE - EBWE R RRERE
BREIE D 547 A 28,399,000/8 7T * 422,145,000 7T *
16,136,000 7T ~ 12,174,000 7 7T } 44,269,000 JT °
MhZEeREENTEMEERE((RBEEEE])
ERERBELERAB RS RREMNGFTEE
Mo EBEMRMER - FIELBEE  FHAREED
BRI E R HEBARZELBRRHANEL
Bkt o

Our audit procedures in relation to impairment
assessment of factoring receivables, lease
receivables and loan receivables included:
EERABRRERYGKIE  HERKFELREKE
R MEN L2 BT

assessing the overall operating effectiveness of
key controls over the design and
implementation which govern the internal credit
control, debt collections, recording and
monitoring of the ECLs on the trade receivables,
factoring receivables, lease receivables and
loan receivables,

FHERET LB e B R E R WL
ZEEGREANBEAES - WEER - Lk
REEESREWIE - RIBEYWE HEE
Wkia R W E R FEHREE I

assessing the appropriateness of the ECL
models, reasonableness of key assumptions
and inputs used by the management in
estimating the ECLs;
FMEESMEEEREEANEE L - BRERE
STTEHE E BB AN R R R L ABE
e

testing whether there is any significant increase
in credit risk, on a sample of exposures that was
subject to impairment assessment other than a
simplified approach, when categorising into
different stages of default on factoring
receivables, lease receivables and loan
receivables;

PRI EMRIE - HERKFIERERER D
HATRENEERR  ARGEERREETEE
B KRB AJBETHOEAINBERT
[E R
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

IR ERE &)

We identified the impairment assessment of trade
receivables, factoring receivables, lease receivables
and loan receivables as a key audit matter because
of the management’s significant judgements and high
level of estimation uncertainty involved in the
development and implementation process of the ECL
models and the carrying amounts involved are
significant to the Group’s consolidated financial
Statements.

BELHE SRR - RIZEWIE - HERI
IR ERE R BENLERAERETSEE
HElEREREREEEBEEXNRIREREEAX
HE R RENEATREMUALAREER &5
EiHEMBmRBEK -
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reviewing ageing analysis of trade receivables,
factoring receivables, lease receivables and
loan receivables prepared by management of
the Company and discussing with the
management of the Company whether the
amounts are recoverable on a sample basis;
RHMEEEEN SEAFIEEEGREMNESE
WeRIE ~ ORIB U FRIE - 10 G e RIE K FE Uk
ERZERESN - WE SRARIEEEN WA
IR S AT A

examining the management’s estimation on the
ECL of individual balances on sample basis and
the expected loss rate of each category group
and evaluating the basis and factors used in the
estimation to the appropriateness of the
management’s identification of significant
increase in credit risk, defaults and credit
impaired receivables;
EHMEREERSEREH MM EHRETNTELD
EEBEGALRGRANNTEREEE - I
FHEEET R EANEEREE - AFHEERRE
HiEERREZIEMN  EOLEREEREDN
JE W R IE B 85| B E M

recalculating the amount of impairment losses
for receivables; and
B ERKFIEREEESRE &

checking subsequent settlement of receivables
on a sample basis.
RMEEERERKIENEZEZER -

We considered that the judgement and assumptions
made by management in its impairment assessment
for trade receivables, factoring receivables, lease
receivables and loan receivables were supportable by
available evidences and information.

EERR BEENEZEWFIE - RIBEYGKIA -
10 & FE WK IE K FE W & FOR B RT 4 AT VR A9 2 %
BRGINREEFBEREHHF -
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

I BERE &)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

I BERE &)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BB ERE &)

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

I BERE &)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

HLM CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Ho Pak Tat

Practising Certificate Number: P05215
Hong Kong

23 September 2022
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consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
MeESREMZEHKER

For the year ended 30 June 2022 EHE—ZT—

“ERA=ZTHLESRE

2022 2021
—E-— —F—
HK$°'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Revenue Wz 7
Contracts with customers BEPEH 56,832 175,447
Interest under effective EBRMEEETHE
interest method 55,329 52,622
Total revenue Bl 112,161 228,069
Cost of sales HEKA (33,227) (107,109)
Gross profit EH 78,934 120,960
Other income EHob U A 8 2,909 8,543
Other gains and losses Hin iz R EHE 9 (7,808) (7,468)
Impairment loss on goodwill B 7 RERE 19 (111,418) (35,947)
Impairment losses under ECLmodel,  FBEAEEBEERE T2
net of reversal AR (N Em) 10 (45,632) 28,914
Selling expenses HERMX (8,896) (14,562)
Administrative expenses THFAX (24,904) (43,695)
Operating (loss)/profit &g (FR),B8F (116,815) 56,745
Finance costs BFFEAR AN 11 (4,831) (21,057)
(Loss)/profit before tax BREBAT (BR) 5T 9 (121,646) 35,688
Taxation 1| 12 (1,221) (41,135)
Loss for the year FEBE (122,867) (5,447)
Other comprehensive (expenses)/) FEHMZ2E (FAX) WA
income for the year
Items that may be subsequently AREGET DB ER S
reclassified to profit or 0ss: HE :
Exchange differences on translation — #EFINEREL 2
of foreign operations bE N = EE (14,305) 54,681
Release of exchange reserve upon PHENB A AR
disposal of subsidiaries AR EE 5 G - (1,070)
Release of exchange reserve upon NGk
deregistration of subsidiaries AR EE 5 G 173 (1,627)
other comprehensive FEEHMEE X)), WA
(expenses)/income for the year (14,132) 51,984
Total comprehensive (expenses)/ FEZME (BI%) WAL
income for the year (136,999) 46,537
2021/22F 3R » HBEEEZEREBRAT 113



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (continued)
FeEEREMZEKEER 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-ZE-_—F XA=F+HILFE

2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET

Loss for the year attributable to: LT AtEGEERE

Owners of the Company Z/NSIETZE N (122,867) (822)
Non-controlling interests STl g - (4,625)
(122,867) (5,447)
Total comprehensive UTATEGAFEERZE
(expenses)/income for the year (BAX),WA#E
attributable to:
Owners of the Company Vi/NEIET 2N (136,999) 51,162
Non-controlling interests AR A - (4,625)
(136,999) 46,537
Loss per share EARERAERLEER 15
attributable to owners of the Eia
Company:
Basic (HK cents) EARCGEMW) (6.62) (0.05)
Diluted (HK cents) 58 GBI) (6.62) (0.05)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these  BEMIMI THEAZZ45 4 BTG IRE 2 48R E D o
consolidated financial statements.
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consolidated Statement of Financial Position
REMBERALE

At30June 2022 M-TE=-—%F,xA=+H

2022 2021
—E-C —E-—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB K& 16 327 1,767
Right-of-use assets FAEEE 17 2,133 3,463
Intangible assets BREE 18 1,035 2,210
Goodwill PEES 19 129,032 240,450
Factoring receivables RIZFEWRIA 24 - 33,142
Lease receivables HERYGRIE 25 = 30,248
Deposits we 27 442 442
Deferred tax assets EREFIBEE 22 11,149 809
144,118 312,531
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 78 1,995 3,991
Trade receivables B ZEWGIE 23 28,399 43,814
Factoring receivables {RIZFEWRIE 24 422,145 320,917
Lease receivables HEEKZIE 25 16,136 43,896
Loan receivables e E 26 12,174 21,523
Prepayments, deposits and other ERNRE  BER
receivables HoAth FE U R IE 27 3,441 53,306
Financial assets at fair value BATEFABR
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") ([RAFEABRE]) 2
SREE 28 1,147 1,950
Income tax receivables FEMFT S 2,270 1,135
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEEHR 29 71,758 69,059
559,465 569,591
Current liabilities hREBaE
Trade payables B Z IR 30 3,420 8,611
Contract liabilities BHAaRE 31 1,548 4,360
Accruals and other payables FERTE A & H At FE 1 5/ 0E 33 7,386 12,830
Lease liabilities HEAR 32 1,260 1,311
Corporate bonds NAESH 34 40,507 65,813
Income tax payables FERFTIEH 2,389 2,852
56,510 95,777
Net current assets REBEEFE 502,955 473,814
Total assets less current liabilities ZEERREEE 647,073 786,345
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consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
MEMEBERAER 2

At30June 2022 M-TE=-—%,xA=+H

2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
Non-current liabilities *REBEE
Contract liabilities BHAaR 31 - 61
Lease liabilities HEAR 32 1,155 2,415
Corporate bonds NAElEH 34 - 952
1,155 3,428
Net assets BEERE 645,918 782,917
Capital and reserve EEXRRE
Share capital &N 35 3,712 3,712
Reserves i 642,206 779,205
Total equity HER 645,918 782,917

The consolidated financial statements on pages 113 to 263
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 23 September 2022 and are signed on its behalf

by:

Deng Zhonglin
B 4eh B4
Director

EE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Wong Yuk Lun Alan
EEB
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FeEERR

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-ZE—_—F XA=F+HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AOAREAEL
Convertible
bonds/ Share Non-
Share Share notes option  Statutory  Exchange Other  Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings interests equity
TEkES/ BhRE
k& ke ZERE G HERE EGE AfbRf REEA FERES L&
HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T T T Tin FET FAT ThAn Tin T T
(note (a)
(hi3k@)
A1y 2020 R-E-EE+A-H 304 464059 - 638% 2083 (39,687) (%9) 180,245 692,481 5172 697,653
Loss for the year EERE - - - - - - - (822) (822) (4625) (5447)
Otfer comprehensive EHRERA/(RR):
income/(expenses):
Bxchange differences arisingon -~~~ AE B EBEEL

translation of forelgn operations ~ MES EE - - - - - 54,681 - - 54,681 - 54,681
Release of exchange resene upon  RHEHBATBER

disposal of subsiciaries EiGE - - - - - (1,070) - - (1070) - (1070)
Release of exchange resene upon - REEEAHBATBER

deregitration of subsidiaries ERfE - - - - - (1627) - - (1627 - (162)
Total other comprehensive income/ &£ h2ENA/

(expenses) for the year (F%) % - - - - - 5198 - (822 51,162 (4629) 6537
Placing of shares EERR 38 3579 - - - - - - 3716 - 37164
Issue of comvertle notes EATAREE - - (86,591) - - - - - (66,591) - (86,591)
Conversion of convertible notes BRI AR 8 5485 66591 - - - - - 72,159 - 72,159
Share option lapsed during the year AR KiERE - - - (@m - - - Q7m - - -
Release upon disposal of subsidiaries Rk ENEBA TR ER - - - - (554) - - - (554) (547) (1,101
Release upon deregistiationof - NEERELATRER

subsidiaries - - - - (3003 - 9 - (2900 - (2900
Transfer to statutory resenve SREETRE - - - - 3651 - - (3651) - - -
A0 ne 20N and 1y 201 R-F--ERA=HE

R-E--FtA-A 3712 506123 - AN 0157 19 - 218483 78917 - 8917
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - - (122867)  (122.867) - (122,867)
Otfer comprehensive EH2E (FR)/BA
(expenses)/income:
Bxchange differences arisingon -~~~ AE B EBEEL

tianslgtion of foreign operations ~ MEZEE = = = - - (14,305) - - (14,305) - (14,305)
Release of exchange resene upon REHHBATBER

deregitration of subsidiaries EnfE = = - - - 13 - - 13 - 173
Total other comprehensive expenses EE £ 2EHTLE

forthe year = = = = = (14,132) = (122,867) (136,999) = (136,999)
Transfer o satutory resene EEEYast = - - - 193 - - (193) - - -
At30June 2022 e Sy 32 506,123 = 21145 21,350 (1,835) o 95423 645918 = 645918

2021/22F 3R o HBEBERBRAT 11/



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
SRR o)

For the year ended 30June 2022 HEZT-_—FA=+HIEFE

Notes:

(€)]

(b)

118

Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements of operations that have
functional currency other than Hong Kong dollars which are dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies as set out in Note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Other reserve

Other reserve represented the difference between the Group’s share
of nominal value of the paid-up capital of the subsidiary acquired over
the Group's cost of acquisition of the subsidiary under common control
upon completion of reorganisation on 3 October 2013.

fiE

(a)

(b)

B SR

X REBERENETIAIINEE RREEE 2
B2 BEREMELEZMBELZRE  CER
IR A IS MR R 3T E R BURRIE -

Hibf#E

HEMEHEEN T =F+ A=A =KEERR
SEALATREHNE AR RAEEREAEE
WS KRS Z B A B 2 AT 2 288 -
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consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
MEBRERER

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-—ZE—_—F <XA=F+HILFE

2022 2021
—E-— e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES e
(Loss)/profit before tax BRELAT (E518), R A (121,646) 35,688
Adjustments for: FATIHBELRAE
Depreciation of property, ME - BEREETE
plant and equipment 16 1,487 1,903
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {FREAERTE 17 1,330 6,679
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#EE 18 1,153 5,140
Write-off of property, WEE - MR R H
plant and equipment 9 20 9
Net exchange gains B 5 e SRR 9 (2,132) (6,204)
Net loss on financial BATEFABREREE
assets at FVTPL BRI 9 803 17,976
Dividend income R EMA 8 (10) -
Interest income FLEBA 8 (64) (163)
Finance costs B A AR 11 4,831 21,057
Net gain on change in fair value of NS AREQNTEE
contingent consideration payables iz % %8 9 = (914)
Loss/(gain) on deregistration of HHENBARZER
subsidiaries (Wzs) 9 173 (4,630)
Gain on disposal of HENBARZ W
subsidiaries 9 - (2,412)
Gain on derecognition of lease RFEREE 2 W 9 = (225)
Gain on early redemption of REEBERQRES < e
corporate bond 9 (381) (9,040)
Loss on non-substantial NAEHFEKXETZER
modification of corporate bond 9 4,700 12,908
Loss on modification of REERE BB
factoring loans 9 4,625 -
Impairment loss on goodwill R REEE 19 111,418 35,947
Impairment losses under HHEEEBEERXETZ
ECL model, net of reversal WEEE (MRERE) 10 45,632 (28,914)
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consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
FEBRaRERE)

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-ZE-_—F XA=F+HILFE

2022 2021
—s=-= —E-—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Operating cash flows before BEECRPHI KL
movement in working capital ReRE 51,939 84,805
Decrease in inventories FERD 1,951 2,267
Decrease in trade receivables B 2 EWGRIE R 5,108 180,817
(Increase)/decrease in RIBREWFRIA (32 ),/ /D
factoring receivables (111,519) 38,106
Decrease in lease receivables HERYHIER D 59,478 8,904
Decrease/(increase) in loan receivables FEU & &r 4/ (3€10) 9,365 (21,559)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,  JERFIE « ke REMmELK
deposits and other receivables FIER A, (32 ) 49,407 (20,337)
Decrease in trade payables B 2 N FIER (5,123) (54,329)
Decrease in contract liabilities BHEERD (2,845) (34,939)
Decrease in accruals and [T E R REMENRIBRD
other payables (5,610) (11,412)
Cash generated from operations REEX RS 52,151 172,323
Tax paid BEgFiE (14,475) (47,808)
Tax refund REIFIE 1,250 -
Net cash generated RETHEE RS TFHE
from operating activities 38,926 124,515

120 NOVA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22



consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
MeEBReRERE)

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE—ZT_—FA=THILFE

2022 2021
—s=-= —E-—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETE
Dividend received B U S 8 10 -
Interest received BUFI B 8 64 163
Purchase of property, BEME  BEREHE
plant and equipment 16 (71) (217)
Proceeds from disposal of equity TEREB LTz RIEZES
securities listed in Hong Kong PS5 IE - 9,081
Net cash inflow on HEMBARZHE
disposal of subsidiaries TANFEE 36 - 29,385
Net cash generated REZHELE2HEFHE
from investing activities 3 38,412
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Capital element of lease rentals paid B NHEEHR S 2 EREH (1,312) (6,456)
Interest element of lease rentals paid A EMRE 2 M B 5 (306) (487)
Issue of shares by placing FBRREEERHITRG - 37,164
Interest paid BERFIE 34 (6,102) (27,565)
Redemption of corporate bonds BRRRES 34 (29,000) (242,000)
Net cash used in METBFAZRSTE
financing activities (36,720) (239,344)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) ReRASESEEFEREM
IN CASH AND CASH (RD) =8
EQUIVALENTS 2,209 (76,417)
Cash and cash equivalents FzHekReEEER
at the beginning of the year 69,059 137,431
Effect on foreign currency INETERE ) v F &
exchange rate changes 490 8,045
cash and cash equivalents FRzEESREEEEEAE
at the end of the year 71,758 69,059

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these  BEMIHIFHEA L SR A IIFSRER ZAKE D ©
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M B RERME

For the year ended 30June 2022 HEZT-_—FA=+HIEFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands
under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands and is
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”). The registered office of the
Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong is Room 2102, 21/F., Tower One, Lippo Centre, 89
Queensway, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note
21 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“"HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company. In addition, the functional
currencies of certain group entities that operate outside
Hong Kong are determined based on the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the group
entities operate. All values are rounded to the nearest
thousand, unless otherwise stated.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA") for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 July 2021 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year had no material impact on the Group'’s
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

fRaMBERRME 2

For the year ended 30June 2022 HEZT-_—FA=+HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendment to HKFRSSs in issue
but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments?
Amendment to AG 5 Accounting Guideline 5 Merger
Accounting for Common
Control Combinations
(Revised)'
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conception
Framework’
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
and HKFRS Practice Policies?
Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates?

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction?

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended
Use!

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract’

Amendments to HKFRSS Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020"

HK Interpretation 5 (2020)  Presentation of Financial
Statement — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand
Clause?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
REMBERREEE &)

For the year ended 30June 2022 HEZT-_—FA=+HIEFE

124

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)

New and amendment to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2022.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
REMBERREEE &)

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE—ZT_—FA=THILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continuead)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment ("HKFRS 2"), leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases
("HKFRS 16"), and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value-in-
use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair
value and a valuation technique that unobservable
inputs is to be used to measure fair value in subsequent
periods, the valuation technigue is calibrated so that at
initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuec)
meEMGERE )

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE=-Z

126

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee,

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
REMBERREEE &)

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE—ZT_—FA=THILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
REMBERREEE &)

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HZE—ZT_-_—FA=THILFE

128

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of
relevant reserves between the Group and the non-
controlling interests according to the Group’s and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or 10ss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between () the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (“"HKFRS 9") or, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or
ajoint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
ReMBERE )

For the year ended 30June 2022 HEZT-_—FA=+HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EE®HE® &)
(Continued)

Business combinations or asset EBEHREEWNE
acquisitions

Optional concentration test MESEHENR

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The
concentration test is met if substantially all of the fair
value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a
single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable
assets.

The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the
concentration test is met, the set of activities and assets
is determined not to be a business and no further
assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the Group
identifies and recognises the individual identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating the
purchase price first to financial assets/financial liabilities
at the respective fair values, the remaining balance of
the purchase price is then allocated to the other
identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their
relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or 10ss
as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes (“HKAS
12") and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively,

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 at the acquisition date;

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard; and

° lease liabilities are recognised and measured at
the present value of the remaining lease payments
(as defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases
were new leases at the acquisition date, except
for leases for which (a) the lease term ends within
12 months of the acquisition date; or (b) the
underlying asset is of low value. Right-of-use
assets are recognised and measured at the same
amount as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to
reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the
lease when compared with market terms.
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REMBERREEE &)

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE—ZT_—FA=THILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EE®HEE &)

(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued) ¥BastE)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the EEIREERE  WwIRE S 2 EW
consideration transferred, the amount of any non- JEE AR R 25 4 A M W BE U 4 B A AR Uk
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value BHREAEZRAETAFE(E)Z
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the 48 2E AR P U BE O] B B BE N P RE
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable BERKEBREBZ FHECEZHAE -
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at MR T TR R & E
acquisition date. If, after reassessment, the net amount KEmEEEE 2 FEBHTEERE -
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities WU EE T ] e AR S e EE Rk
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration BRHEARBEREIREZEERT
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests B(anA) @ BI3ZBY 24 %Ea)
in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s HEESAERAHBIE RS -

previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership BREHEEEES BN EREESAE
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate ANBRELE B S5 HEERB AT EE
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event FEREZIFIERER IR A FE
of liquidation are initially measured either at fair value JEIEPE RES FE A IR BE O BB B
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share RO REBHHEE S EE
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable ERTEBELTSMELEE - EpiE
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made IR ERSE AL ERE -

on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a EAERTEEBLREFIEEIRERS
business combination includes a contingent HaARBLH AR EBELAK
consideration arrangement, the contingent BEHEHZATEE WitHEEKAE
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair HPEZEREBEZ LD - FTEIEAET
value and included as part of the consideration SHARABRNKAREATFEED D
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the B ARE - st 2 HRAREZEN [
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as =5 (B UEE B B —F)
measurement period adjustments are adjusted BEEERKEBERHEFENEER
retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments are ERBEEINE R MIER 2 F9%8 -

adjustments that arises from additional information
obtained during the "measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

2021/22FF3R o HBEEBERERAT 131



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
REMBERREEE &)

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HZE—ZT_-_—FA=THILFE

132

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates,
with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e.
the date when the Group obtains control), and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to
the acquisition date that have previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income and
measured under HKFRS 9 would be accounted for on
the same basis as would be required if the Group had
disposed directly of the previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
retrospectively during the measurement period (see
above), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about
facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
REMBERREEE &)

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE—ZT_—FA=THILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EE®HEE &)
(Continued)
Goodwill BHE

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s CGUs (or groups of
CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, which represent the lowest level at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit (or group of CGUS).

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU
within the group of CGUSs, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes
of an operation within the CGU (or a CGU within a group
of CGUs), the amount of goodwill disposed of is
measured on the basis of the relative values of the
operation (or the CGU) disposed of and the portion of
the CGU (or the group of CGUSs) retained.

WHE—REBEE 2 AEDREBI
B RHIRTRE 2 AN (R EXERTR)
BRRERER ()58

AETRHENR  BENIOEEEH
e B B 2 15 R 8UE R 2 AR E]
EReELBN(AREELENUA
B - BDBLAENEIE B MESIER B AT
HBREEDFZKIEEIR -

EokmE s ReEt BN (HREE
EEBEMAR) SFFETRENR  HE
B RBRZEMA e LR RERE
ARBREHETTIRE RS o BLI R — e
EHECKEMEEZHEMS @ &
DEBMEZHESELEM(REEL
BELAER) W% RS B R AT TR (E B
Ao WRASELABU ZAKRLOSREE
RERREE - BIE o BB EE RN
MRS B ZZEM 2 EREHEZEE
B HREXZEM (RS ELEM
MRl A REE < BlREEIZ L HI DB
EREUZHEMEE -

RO ERBReELEUNRSESL
BAAMNATMREEEEME B
BrRAEEINETHEZEBGES
BRFAEERN - EAKELERSE
EBE(H—ARSELBUTNERS
EEBEM) ANERE  fTHEREs
BEHEXRG (SRS ELEN) R
RBIReEA BN (IR ELEM
MR A D RS EEAE -

2021/22FF3R o HBEEBERERAT 133



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
REMBERREEE &)

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HZE—ZT_-_—FA=THILFE

134

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purpose are stated in the
consolidated statements of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method, at the
following rates per annum:

Over the lease terms
10%-33%

20%—-50%

20%

Leasehold improvements
Computer equipment

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

The residual values, estimated useful lives and
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or 10ss.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful
lives are reported at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses,
on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives
is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives.

3.
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Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, is recognised in profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar
characteristics are accounted on a portfolio basis when
the Group reasonably expects that the effects on the
financial statements would not differ materially from
individual leases within the portfolio.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to
separate non-lease components from lease component,
and instead account for the lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EE®:EH®E »)
(Continued)

Leases (Continued) HE =)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) TEBEBRBA(E)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term is depreciated from
commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at that
date. In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

e  variable lease payments that depend on an index
or arate;

o amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees,

e  the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EE®HB%E 2
(Continued)

Leases (Continued) HE (&)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) KEBEREBEAN(E)
Lease liabilities (Continued) HEBE (&)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

e the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates, in which cases the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount
rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group applied the practical expedient, the Group
accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that standalone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss
(if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets are
estimated individually. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which
the asset belongs. In addition, the Group assesses
whether there is indication that corporate assets may
be impaired. If such indication exists, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual CGUs, when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value-in-use. In assessing value-
in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a CGU)
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets other than goodwiill
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of CGUS,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of
CGU, with the recoverable amount of the group of CGU.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment l0ss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of
its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value-in-use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro-rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of CGU. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or l0ss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGU)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment 10ss been
recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGU) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financials
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or 10ss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group's
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e The financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

e  The contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

e  The financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

e  The contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations (“HKFRS 3") applies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)
A financial asset is held for trading if:

It has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

On initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

It is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments/receivables subsequently measured
at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit impaired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (Continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with any
fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on
the financial asset and is included in the “net
(loss)/gain on financial assets at FVTPL” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model on financial assets (including trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, factoring receivables,
lease receivables, loan receivables and cash and cash
equivalents) which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experiences, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables under simplified approach. The ECL on
these receivables are assessed individually for debtors
with significant balances.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial instruments, including factoring
receivables, loan receivables, lease receivables, other
receivable, deposits and cash and cash equivalents, the
Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL,
unless when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(if)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 180 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in
full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is
more than 240 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
iS more appropriate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower,

(b)y a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted
to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

V)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

The Group uses a practical expedient in estimating
ECL on trade receivables using a provision matrix
taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables, lease receivables,
factoring receivables and loan receivables where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through an impairment allowance account.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Modification of financial assets

Where the original contractual terms of a financial asset
have been modified for credit reasons and the
instrument has not been derecognised (an instrument is
derecognised when a modification results in a change
in cash flows that the Group would consider
substantial), the resulting modification loss is
recognised in profit or loss with a corresponding
decrease in the gross carrying value of the asset.

Expected credit loss for modified financial assets that
have not been derecognised and are not considered to
be credit-impaired will be recognised on a 12-month
basis, or a lifetime basis, if there is a significant increase
in credit risk. These assets are assessed to determine
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk subsequent to the modification. In addition to the
recognition of modification gains and losses, the revised
carrying value of modified financial assets will impact
the calculation of expected credit losses, with any
increase or decrease in expected credit loss
recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by a group entity are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as FVTPL when the
financial liabilities is contingent consideration that may
be paid by an acquirer as part of a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or 10ss.

For financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL,
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are
recognised in other comprehensive income are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, instead, they
are transferred to retained earnings upon derecognition
of the financial liability.

Convertible notes

The component parts of compound instruments
(convertible notes) issued by the Company are classified
separately as financial liabilities and equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument. A conversion option that will
be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component is estimated using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments.
This amount is subsequently recorded as a liability on
an amortised cost basis using the effective interest
method until extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument’s maturity date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

3.
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Financial liabilities and equity instruments SREERRAIA(E)
(Continued)
Convertible notes (Continued) AR iR ()

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component
from the fair value of the compound instrument as a
whole. This is recognised and included in equity, net of
income tax effects, and is not subsequently
remeasured. In addition, the conversion option
classified as equity will remain in equity until the
conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to share
premium. When the conversion option remains
unexercised at the maturity date of the convertible
bond, the balance recognised in equity will be
transferred to retained earnings. No gain or 0SS is
recognised in profit or 10ss upon conversion or
expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible notes are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly in equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are included in
the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible notes using
the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Other financial liabilities (including trade payables,
accruals and other payables, corporate bonds and lease
liabilities) are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

The Group accounts for an exchange with a lender of a
financial liability with substantially different terms as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability. A substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial liability
or a part of it (whether or not attributable to the
financial difficulty of the Group) is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability.

The Group considers that the terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the cash
flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net
of any fees received and discounted using the original
effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different
from the discounted present value of the remaining
cash flows of the original financial liability. Accordingly,
such exchange of debt instruments or modification of
terms is accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs
or fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain or
loss on the extinguishment. The exchange or
modification is considered as non-substantial
modification when such difference is less than 10 per
cent.

Non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities
that do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount
of the relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at
the present value of the modified contractual cash flows
discounted at the financial liabilities" original effective
interest rate. Transaction costs or fees incurred are
adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified
financial liabilities and are amortised over the remaining
term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the
financial liability is recognised in profit or loss at the
date of modification.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when the derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or 10ss is
recognised in profit or 10ss.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts that contain
financial asset hosts within the scope of HKFRS 9 are
not separated. The entire hybrid contract is classified
and subsequently measured in its entirety as either
amortised cost or fair value as appropriate.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
that are not financial assets within the scope of HKFRS 9
are treated as separate derivatives when they meet the
definition of a derivative, their risks and characteristics
are not closely related to those of the host contracts
and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Generally, multiple embedded derivatives in a single
instrument that are separated from the host contracts
are treated as a single compound embedded derivative
unless those derivatives relate to different risk
exposures and are readily separable and independent
of each other.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories are determined on
first-in, first-out method.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand,
cash at bank and other financial institutions which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.

Except for granting of a licence that is distinct from
other promised goods or services, control is transferred
over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of
following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group'’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESHEE &)
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers EFEESHWE (&)

(Continued)

For granting of a licence that is distinct from other
promised goods or services, the nature of the Group’s
promise in granting a licence is a promise to provide a
right to access the Group's intellectual property if all of
the following criteria are met:

e the contract requires, or the customer reasonably
expects, that the Group will undertake activities
that significantly affect the intellectual property to
which the customer has rights;

e the rights granted by the licence directly expose
the customer to any positive or negative effects of
the Group's activities; and

° those activities do not result in the transfer of a
good or a service to the customer as those
activities occur.

If the criteria above are met, the Group accounts for the
promise to grant a licence as a performance obligation
satisfied over time. Otherwise, the Group considers the
grant of licence as providing the customers the right to
use the Group's intellectual property and the
performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time at
which the licence is granted.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’'s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a
net basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to
each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or
service underlying each performance obligation is
determined at contract inception. It represents the price
at which the Group would sell a promised good or
service separately to a customer. If a stand-alone selling
price is not directly observable, the Group estimates it
using appropriate techniques such that the transaction
price ultimately allocated to any performance obligation
reflects the amount of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the
promised goods or services to the customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of
progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of
direct measurements of the value of the goods or
services transferred to the customer to data relative to
the remaining goods or services promised under the
contract, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to
consideration in an amount that corresponds directly
with the value of the Group’s performance completed
to date, the Group recognises revenue in the amount to
which the Group has the right to invoice.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EE®:EH®E »)
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers ZEESHWES (&)
(Continued)

Principal versus agent FEARERE

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether
the nature of its promise is a performance obligation to
provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the
Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or
services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the
Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified goods
or services before that goods or services is transferred
to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified goods or
services by another party. In this case, the Group does
not control the specified goods or services provided by
another party before that goods or services is
transferred to the customer. When the Group acts as an
agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or
commission to which it expects to be entitled in
exchange for the specified goods or services to be
provided by the other party.

For trading of wine and daily supplies that is incidental
to the cultural and entertainment segment in the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"), the Group
determines if it acted as the principal by considering its
primarily obligation in a transaction, e.g. inventory risk
or latitude in establishing prices and selecting suppliers.

e  Selecting suppliers — the Group performs supplier
due diligence before contracting with the wine
distributors and promoting the wine products to
the customers. The Group selects the suppliers
based on the unit price and number of purchase
units.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Principal versus agent (Continued)

o Establishing prices — the Group could determine
the selling price of the wine and liquors by itself
within a range of the suggested selling price. The
credit period offered by the suppliers is usually 15
days and the credit period the Group offer to the
customers is 6 months. As such, the Group need
to bear the credit risk.

e Inventory risk — the Group stored inventories in
the warehouse before the wine has been
transferred to customer. Before such transfer, the
Group need to bear the cost of damaged products
and has the ability and is free to direct the use of
and obtain substantially all of the benefits from
the purchased wine before it is transferred to the
customers.

Management of the Group considers that the Group is
acting as a principal in the Trading Business because it
obtains control of the wine and liquor and daily supplies
before they are transferred to customers. Therefore,
trading revenue was recognised in the gross amount of
consideration.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit/loss before
tax” because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EE®HEE &)
(Continued)

Taxation (Ccontinued) BiwE(E)

Deferred tax EERE

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group
first determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 requirements to the leasing transaction as a
whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis.
Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets over the
lease payments for the principal portion of lease
liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary
differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
REMBERREEE &)

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE—ZT_—FA=THILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EE®HEE &)
(Continued)

Employee benefits EEEF
Retirement benefits cost RREF R A

The Group participates in defined contribution
retirement schemes for its employees in Hong Kong,
the PRC and overseas. The Group operates a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions
to the MPF Scheme vest immediately.

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in
the PRC, employees of the Group in the PRC
participated in the central pension scheme (the
“Central Pension Scheme”), which is a defined
contribution plan administered by the PRC government,
whereby the Group is required to make contributions to
the Central Pension Scheme based on certain
percentages of the employees’ salaries. The local
government authorities are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to the retired employees.
Contributions made to the Central Pension Scheme vest
immediately.

During the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021, there
was no contributions forfeited by the Group on behalf of
its employees who leave the plan prior to vesting fully in
such contribution, nor had there been any utilisation of
such forfeited contributions to reduce future
contributions. As at 30 June 2022 and 2021, no forfeited
contribution under the retirement benefits schemes of
the Group is available to reduce the contribution
payable in future years.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee bhenefits (Continued)
Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revised its
estimates of the number of equity instruments that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share option reserve transferred to retained profits.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted is
expensed immediately to profit or 10ss.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share option reserve will
be transferred to share capital and share premium.
When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to retained earnings.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
ReMBERE )

For the year ended 30June 2022 HEZT-_—FA=+HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EE®HE® &)
(Continued)
Government grants BT # Bh

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basic over the periods in which the Group
recognised as expense the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Government grants
that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Group will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time
value of money is material).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

contingent liabilities and contingent
assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably. A contingent liability is not
recognised but is disclosed. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, they will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the Group. A contingent asset is not recognised but is
disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’'s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
REMBERREEE &)

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE—ZT_—FA=THILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EE®:EH®E »)
(Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued) INEE (&)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences on
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monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign RAKATeE I8 (R 4B S D moh
operation for which settlement is neither planned nor sz&é“;%{g) R EBRE M2 TR
likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net S RER &E/\ﬁ%&% S E R E
investment in the foreign operation), which are BREES NG ERSERESRET S
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and KEEIB o

reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or

partial disposal of the Group's interests in associates.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial BELGAMEHRE  KEBEGINE

statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expense items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which
case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to
non- controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates or joint arrangements that do
not result in the Group losing significant influence or
joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed through
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Related parties

(i) A person or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control of the Group;
(2)  has significant influence over the Group; or
(3) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or a parent of the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 30June 2022 HEZT-_—FA=+HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(1) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(2)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(3) both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(4) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(5) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If the
Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.

(6) the entity is controlled or jointly-controlled
by a person identified in (i).

(7) a person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(8) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(@ that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner,

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s chief operating decision maker
("CODM") for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various
lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE—ZT_—FA=THILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. B2EHAER&FHEEAE
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION RZEERR

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
0n an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Determining whether the Group is acting as a
principal or as an agent in trading of goods

Management of the Group considered that the Group is
acting as a principal in this business because it obtains
control of the products sold before they are transferred
to customers. If control is unclear, when the Group is
primarily obligated in a transaction, is subject to
inventory risk, has latitude in establishing prices and
selecting suppliers, or has several but not all of these
indicators, gross amount of the sales and cost of sales
are recorded. In determining whether the Group is
acting as a principal or as an agent, management is
required to exercise significant judgements and to
consider all relevant facts and circumstances of the
business.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various tax
authorities. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes and the
timing of payment of the related tax. There are certain
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax provision in
the period in which such determination is made.

Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets (see Notes 16, 17 and 18 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively) are
depreciated and amortised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The Group annually reviews
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any.
The useful life is based on the Group's historical
experience with similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technology changes. The depreciation and
amortisation expenses for future periods are adjusted if
there are significant changes from previous estimates.
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For the year ended 30June 2022 HEZT-_—FA=+HIEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGUs (or
group of CGUS) to which goodwill has been allocated,
which is the higher of the value-in-use or fair value less
costs of disposal. The value-in-use calculation requires
the management of the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which
results in downward revision of future cash, a material
impairment l0ss may arise. As at 30 June 2022, the
carrying amount of goodwill was approximately
HK$129,032,000 (2021: approximately HK$240,450,000),
net of accumulated impairment losses of approximately
HK$162,384,000 (2021: approximately HK$50,966,000).

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

Determining whether an item of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are impaired requires
an estimate of the recoverable amount of the relevant
CGU to which the asset belongs, which is the higher of
the value-in-use or fair value less costs to disposal. The
value-in-use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from CGU and
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which
results in downward revision of future cash flows, a
material impairment loss may arise.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment of intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable amount of an
intangible asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment 10Ss is
recognised as an expense immediately. As at 30 June
2022, the carrying amount of intangible assets was
approximately HK$1,035,000 (2021: approximately
HK$2,210,000) after taking into account that no the
impairment loss is recognised (2021: HKS$Nil).

Deferred tax assets

At 30 June 2022, deferred tax assets of approximately
HK$11,149,000 (2021: approximately HK$$809,000) in
relation to the timing differences on revenue recognition
and impairment allowances for credit 10ss has been
recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised on the tax losses of approximately
HK$9,114,000 (2021: approximately HK$8,141,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases
where the actual future taxable profits generated are
less or more than expected, or change in facts and
circumstances which result in revision of future taxation
profits estimation, a material reversal or further
recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which such a reversal or further recognition takes place.

Allowance for inventories

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews its
inventories and considers to make allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified
that are no longer marketable or suitable for sell.
Management estimates the net realisable value for such
items based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Provision of ECL

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9
across all categories of financial assets requires
significant judgement and estimation, in particular, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk and
credit-impaired financial assets as well as the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash
flows and collateral values when determining
impairment losses. These estimates are driven by a
number of factors, changes in which can result in
different levels of allowances. At each reporting date,
the Group assesses whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk for exposures since
initial recognition by comparing the risk of default
occurring over the expected life between the reporting
date and the date of initial recognition. The Group
considers reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort for
this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative
information and also, forward-looking analysis. Details
of the key assumptions and inputs used are set out in
Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Fair value measurements of other financial
instruments

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages an independent professional valuer to perform
the valuation. The Group uses valuation technigues that
include inputs that are not based on observable market
data to estimate the fair value of certain types of
financial instruments. Note 5(c) provides detailed
information about the valuation techniques, inputs and
key assumptions used in the determination of the fair
value.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. MERBEER
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) €mITEEA
2022 2021
—=E—= T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Financial assets THEE
Financial assets B E G2
at amortised cost THEE
— Trade receivables — B S REWGRIE 28,399 48,814
— Factoring receivables — {RIZFEWKIE 422,145 354,059
— Lease receivables — HERWIE 16,136 79,144
— Loan receivables — EUWE K 12,174 21,523
— Other receivables and — Ha R IE R IR S
deposits 3,068 16,972
— Cash and cash equivalents —He NREEEER 71,758 69,059
Financial assets at FVTPL B FEGABRZ
— Early redemption right — REEHFIEAIE L
from corporate bonds 878 1,717
— Equity securities listed in —REBLTZ
Hong Kong AR H 269 233
554,827 591,521
Financial liabilities =i
Financial liabilities IHEBE AT E
at amortised cost TEEE
— Trade payables — B S ENIA 3,420 8,611
— Accruals and other payables — — fEst BB R EM
FETFRIB 7,334 8,578
— Corporate bonds — REIEFH 40,507 66,765
— Lease liabilities —HEAE 2,415 3,726
53,676 87,680
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

5. MERRER &)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIEEBREEEEREE

and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade receivables, factoring receivables, lease
receivables, loan receivables, deposits, other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, financial
assets at FVTPL, trade payables, accruals and
other payables, corporate bonds and lease
liabilities. The details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest
rate risk, currency risk and price risk. The directors
of the Company review and agree policies for
managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties equal to the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

178

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

In respect of trade receivables, in order to
minimise the credit risk, Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits
and credit approvals. Before accepting any new
customer, the Group will assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by individual customer. Receivables due from
customers are due within the settlement period
commonly adopted by the relevant market
convention, which is usually within 90 days except
for trading of goods which settlement is made in
accordance with the terms specified in the
contracts governing the relevant transactions.
Normally, the Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancement over its trade
receivables balances. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure the follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
REMBERREEE &)

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE—ZT_—FA=THILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

5. MERRER 2

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIERBMEEEERNBE (&)

and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

In respect of factoring receivables, lease
receivables and loan receivables from customers,
the objective of the Group’s measure to manage
credit risk is to control the potential exposure to
the recoverability problem. The Group manages
and analyses the credit risk of each of their new
and existing customers before payment terms and
conditions are concluded by assessing the credit
quality of the customer, taking into account its
financial position, past settlement experience and
other factors. Factoring receivables, lease
receivables and loan receivables balances are
monitored on an on-going basis, management
reviews the recoverable amount at each reporting
date to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. Interest
income are usually billed on monthly or quarterly
basis. The factoring receivables and lease
receivables are also guaranteed by directors of
the customers as additional security for shortfalls
on collect outs due to dispute or breach of
contract for which the guarantor is liable. Other
monitoring procedures are in place to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks and other financial
institutions which are reputable in the opinion of
management.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

5. MERRER &)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BiEREEBERBEE)

180

and policies (Continued)
Impairment assessment policies

The Group’s policy requires the review of
individual outstanding amounts regularly
depending on individual circumstance or market
condition.

The management is responsible in developing and
maintaining the processes for measuring ECL, the
impairment requirements under HKFRS 9. The
Group applies simplified approach to measure ECL
on trade receivables and general approach to
measure ECL on factoring receivables, lease
receivables, loan receivables and other financial
assets classified at amortised cost. Under the
simplified approach, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.
Under the general approach, financial assets
migrate through the following three stages based
on the change in credit risk since initial
recognition: Stage 1: 12m ECL, Stage 2: Lifetime
ECL — not credit-impaired and Stage 3: Lifetime
ECL — credit-impaired.

For such financial assets classified as Stage 1 and
2, the management assesses loss allowances
using the risk parameter modelling approach that
incorporates key parameters, including probability
of default (“PD"), loss given default (“LGD") and
exposure at default ("EAD"). For credit-impaired
financial assets classified as Stage 3, the
management assesses the credit loss allowances
by estimating the future cash flows expected to
arise from the financial assets.
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE—ZT_—FA=THILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

5. MERRER &)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BiEREEBERBEE)

and policies (Continued)
Measurement of ECL

The Group conducted an assessment of ECL
according to forward-looking information and used
complex models and assumptions in its expected
measurement of credit losses. These models and
assumptions relate to the future macroeconomic
conditions and customer’s creditworthiness (e.g.
the likelihood of default by customers and the
corresponding losses). The Group adopts
judgement, assumptions and estimation
techniques in order to measure ECL according to
the requirements of accounting standards such
as:

(i)  Criteria for judging significant increase in

credit risk

The Group assesses whether or not the
credit risk of the relevant financial
instruments has increased significantly since
the initial recognition at each reporting date.
While determining whether the credit risk
has significantly increased since initial
recognition or not, the Group takes into
account the reasonable and substantiated
information that is accessible without
exerting unnecessary cost or effort, including
qualitative and quantitative analysis based
on the historical data of the Group, credit
rating grade, and forward- looking
information. Based on the single financial
instrument or the combination of financial
instruments with similar characteristics of
credit risk, the Group compares the risk of
default of financial instruments on the
reporting date with that on the initial
recognition date in order to figure out the
changes of default risk in the expected
lifetime of financial instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuec)
meEMGERE )

For the year ended 30June 2022 HEZT-_—FA=+HIEFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

182

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

0]

(i)

NOVA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22

Criteria for judging significant increase in
credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers a financial instrument
to have experienced a significant increase in
credit risk when one or more of the following
quantitative, qualitative or backstop criteria
have been met:

° Quantitative criteria: At the reporting
date, the increase in remaining lifetime
probability of default is considered
significant comparing with the one at
initial recognition.

. Qualitative criteria: Significant adverse
change in debtor's operation or
financial status.

For factoring receivables and lease
receivables, the number of days past due
and loan-to-collateral value were used to
estimate significant increase in credit risk.
Other financial assets at amortised cost use
number of days past due as determinant of
credit risk.

Definition of credit-impaired financial asset
° Internal rating of the debtor indicating
default or near-default;

o Significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the customer;

e The debtor leaves any of the
receivables of the Group overdue for
more than 365 days;

° It is becoming probable that the
customer will enter bankruptcy or other
financial restructuring;

° The credit impairment on a financial
asset may be caused by the combined
effect of multiple events and may not
be necessarily due to a single event.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
ReMBERE )

For the year ended 30June 2022 HEZT-_—FA=+HIEFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. BBRBREE 2
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIEEMREEEERBEK(E)
and policies (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued) FTEEHEEER(E)

(i) Parameters of ECL measurement (i) FrEFEHEEEERNSE
According to whether there is a significant BEEERARSSEERE
increase in credit risk and whether there is WA NREBEERS AR
an impairment of assets, the Group B AEEHTREED R
measures the impairment loss for different 12 A= HiTEEEE
assets with ECL of 12 months or the entire BBt = mEEE - TEHE
lifetime respectively. The key measuring EEENBETE28 8
parameters of ECL include PD, LGD and EAD. BHME  BELHEBEERNE
The Group takes into account the AR O - AEEZEEE
quantitative analysis of historical statistics S HETEUR (MR BT AR
(such as internal rating grade, manners of EERAFRARIEBSER 8
guarantees and types of collaterals, HRAERF)NTEED AR
repayments, etc.) and forward-looking REEER BLELHOHM
information in order to establish the model R EBNFEERNELNRR
of PD, LGD and EAD. AR o
e  PD refers to the possibility that the o EBEBAWMEEREBHA

debtor will not be able to fulfil its EARK121E H st £ &
obligations of repayment over the next BRI TFES 8%
12 months or throughout the entire BITHENEERRA
remaining lifetime. For factoring BE M o BEIRIE FE WK
receivables, lease receivables and loan 5 HERKZER
receivables, the Group estimates PD by EWEZRME A&
the internal credit ratings. For other AAEEEFTRMG
financial assets at amortised cost the STEAOB R giH A
PD is adjusted based on the credit REHKAGTEN S
rating of comparable companies MEEMS  ELHHM
operating in similar business; KThiE BE L EE
XBHAELRAF
MEEEFRELDARE
MEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuec)
meEMGERE )

For the year ended 30June 2022 HEZT-_—FA=+HIEFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

184

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

(i) Parameters of ECL measurement (Continued)

LGD refers to the Group’s expectation
of the extent of the loss resulting from
the default exposure. Depending on the
type of counterparty, the method and
priority of the recourse, past default
experience and the realisation of
collaterals, the LGD varies. The LGD is
the percentage of loss of risk exposure
at the time of default, calculated over
the next 12 months or over the entire
remaining lifetime;

EAD is the amount that the Group
should be reimbursed at the time of the
default in the next 12 months or
throughout the entire remaining
lifetime.

(iv)  Forward-looking information
The assessment of a significant increase in
credit risk and the calculation of ECL both
involve forward-looking information. Through
the analysis of historical data, the Group
identifies the key economic indicators that
affect the credit risk and ECL.

5. MERRER &)

(b) HBEREEEFERBKE)

SAREMEERR(E)
FERHEREERNZHY

(iii)

(iv)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
ReMBERE )

For the year ended 30June 2022 HEZT-_—FA=+HIEFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

5. MERRER &)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIEEMREEEERBEK(E)

and policies (Continued)
Credit risk exposure

Trade receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model on trade receivables individually
or based on a provision matrix.

The provision rates based on days past due for
groupings of various customers segments with
similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of
money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on specific trade
receivables individually. The Group has used the
past due information of counterparties to assess
whether credit risk has been increased
significantly since initial recognition. The ECLS are
estimated based on probability of default and loss
given default and are adjusted for forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBERERME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-ZE-_—F XA=F+HILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. MERRER %)

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) MBRMREEEERKEE)
and policies (Continued)
Credit risk exposure (Continued) FEERRMKO ()
Trade receivables (Continued) B SN IE (&)
Set out below is the information about credit risk TRINHEBARAEEE S ERE
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a TE(E P B MR A (= B R g ik O
provision matrix: BB
At 30 June 2022 R-ZB-Z=ZFXA=+H

Gross  Expected
carrying credit Gross  Expected
amount losses  carrying credit
excluding excluding amountof losses of
specific specific specific specific Total
Expected trade trade trade trade impairment

loss rate receivables receivables receivables receivables allowance
RHAE BHEE EEES
(Flkx  BEGIR BTEZ ERRE
B EXEZ EEEZ ERFREH WEE  RERE
BEX REWHE) REURB) REAE FEFER ok
%  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET

Current Ik 8.28 4,507 373 3,764 1,475 1,848
0-30dayspastdue  #@HIOZ30H 8.51 1,399 119 1,097 439 558
31-60 dayspastdue  #@Hi31E60H 10.49 1,602 168 1,106 436 604
61-90 days pastdue  @H61ZE90H 16.56 2,409 399 2,285 894 1,293
91-180 days pastdue  #E§91£180H 23.75 6,236 1,481 7,499 3,066 4,547
181-365 days past due #153181% 365 H 23.91 1,234 295 8,489 4,304 4,599
Over 1yearpastdue @ 1F A+ - - - 1,015 794 794

17,387 2,835 25,255 11,408 14,243
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBERERME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-—ZE—_—F <XA=F+HILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. MERBRER &)
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIREMESEEERBEE)
and policies (Continued)
Credit risk exposure (Continued) EEREHRO(Z)
Trade receivables (Continued) B EWIE (B)
At 30 June 2021 RZTE=Z—%FA=1+H
Gross Expected
carrying credit
amount losses Total
Expected of trade oftrade  impairment
loss rate receivables receivables allowance
g 5 EWFIR
EH BIREWGIE e HERE
BEE WEREEE EEEE pcke
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET FET
Current BIER 0.42 32,382 135 135
0-30 days past due BHI0E30H 1.36 6,102 83 83
31-60 days past due BHI31IE60H 1.57 4,980 78 78
61-90 days past due w1612 90H 6.19 2,002 124 124
91-180 days pastdue  #HI91Z=180H 9.94 4,173 415 415
181-365 days past due  #1H§181 £ 365 H 23.08 13 3 3
49,652 838 838
The impairment of trade receivables included the HREEERASE KA EE
amount of specific trade receivable which is HE R AREESHN R - WH
considered in default due to indicators which BRRKEENNIETE S RIGK
showed that the Group was unlikely to receive the EE R AE 5 EWCKIERIE

outstanding contractual amount in full.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBERERME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-ZE-_—F XA=F+HILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

5. BERBRER»)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

(b) BBEMEEEERBRE)

Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)
The following tables show reconciliation of loss
allowances that has been recognised for trade

FERBKO(E)
B S A ()
TRBREHRE 5 RUKIRER
R R BRI -

receivables:

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(non-credit (credit
impaired) impaired)
2 HATE A 2 HATE A
EEEE EEEE
(CR&E (BEREE
EERE) BE) HEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
At 1July 2021 R-ZE-—&F+HF—H 838 - 838
Changes due to financial R-ZE-_—F+H—H
instruments recognised Rep T B
at 1 July 2021: e
— Impairment losses — R REEE
recognised, net A 4,912 9,722 14,634
— Transfer to —HEEFERE
credit-impaired (2,829) 2,829 -
— Written-off — HisH — (780) (780)
Exchange realignment ME H SR (86) (363) (449)
At 30 June 2022 RZTEZ_F
~NA=1H 2,835 11,408 14,243

Due to greater financial uncertainty triggered by
the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has increased
the expected loss rates in the current year as
there is higher risk that a prolonged pandemic
could led to increased credit default rates.

At 30 June 2022, the Group provided HK$2,835,000
(2021: HK$838,000) impairment allowance for
trade receivables based on the provision matrix
and HK$11,408,000 impairment allowance for
trade receivables individually.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
MEMBEHRERMEE )

For the year ended 30June 2022 HEZT-_—FA=+HIEFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Factoring receivables, lease receivables and loan
receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model on factoring receivables, lease
receivables and loan receivables individually.

The Group's internal credit risk grading
assessment comprises the following categories:

Internal

credit rating
REBEEFTR

Stage 1

F1PEER

Stage 2

F 2P

Stage 3

F 3R

Stage 4

FAPEER

5. BERBRER &)

FERRHOE)
R fE M IR - T E JEW R K

EWE L

Description
AN

There has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition and that
are not credit-impaired upon origination.

M ERE S 8 R b I AR E 1S 0 B 3R
REEEERE -

There has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition but are not credit-
impaired.

inERBEERBBEZEIGINEL REE
EERE -

There have been one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cashflow of that asset have occurred.

EBEE—HREHEHZEEN DT RKRS
MEBTNEZENSEMG -

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and the Group has
no realistic prospect of recovery.

ERBRPEBARGBRENMERE -

i 2 5% [ 30 A PR U [E1 #Y A BE o

Basis of recognition
of ECL provision
AHEEEEREN

12m ECL
1B ABSHEESE
Lifetime ECL — not

credit-impaired

E2HEHMEREER
— RBELEEERE

Lifetime ECL — credit-
impaired

2HEHEREER
— BEEERE

Amount is written off

B RS R M
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuec)
meEMGERE )

For the year ended 30June 2022 HEZT-_—FA=+HIEFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

190

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)
Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Factoring receivables, lease receivables and loan
receivables (Continued)

The directors of the Company estimate the
estimated loss rates based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort as
well as the fair value of the collateral pledged by
the customers to the factoring receivables, lease
receivables and loan receivables.

Based on assessment by the directors of the
company, the loss given default is low in view of
the estimated realised amount of ultimate disposal
of the collaterals for secured factoring receivables
and lease receivables and the directors of the
Company consider the ECL for the factoring
receivables and lease receivables is significantly
mitigated by the collaterals held.

At 30 June 2022, the Group provided
HK$26,663,000, HK$3,343,000 and HK$20,000
(2021: HK$468,000, HK$57,000 and HK$36,000)
impairment allowance for factoring receivables,
lease receivables and loan receivables
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBERERME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-—ZE—_—F <XA=F+HILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. MEERER2)
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIEREREREAERBEKE)
and policies (Continued)
Credit risk exposure (Continued) FERBBO (&)
Factoring receivables, lease receivables and loan RIBEN K IE « FHE JE Y 508 J
receivables (Continued) JEWE (&)

The following table shows the exposure of ECL for
factoring receivables under general approach:

PRINRIRIE —BOR 2RI IR
FRIANAREEERRR

2022
:S::
Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 Total
EIRE F2RER FIER et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FERT FET FTERT FERT
Gross carrying amount IRMEAAE 192,054 - 256,754 448,808
Impairment allowance BERE 307 - 26,356 26,663
Expected loss rate TEHES R R 0.16% - 10.27% 5.94%

2021
B4

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

FIBER F2RE FIBER HEt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FET FET FHET

Gross carrying amount SREARE 354,527 - - 354,527
Impairment allowance TRE 468 - - 468
Expected loss rate TEHAEE X 0.13% - - 0.13%

As at 30 June 2022 and 2021, the impairment
allowance was measured at an amount equal to
12m ECL under general approach for factoring
receivables, excepted for factoring receivables
which were credit-impaired, as no factoring
receivables were past due.

RZEZZFR=-ZF=-—%FXH
=+H BRELEFEEREZRE
FEUGRIESN - BEBERE K
ERRIE EBGRRBEN 12
REBEEBREBZEETE R
2 B s HR 2 (R IR PR WA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBERERME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-ZE-_—F XA=F+HILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5.
(Continued)

MBEREE @)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

o (b) BIEEREEEERBERE)
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Factoring receivables, lease receivables and loan
receivables (Continued)
The following tables show reconciliation of loss

FERBHO(E)

REEJEW IR - THE B TR
EWE L (B)
TRBTRC BRI R IARER

allowances that has been recognised for factoring
receivables:

HIE R BB -

192

Lifetime
ECL Lifetime
(non- ECL
credit (credit
12m ECL Impaired) impaired)
ZHIFEH Z2HIFEM
1288 RFEBE FEEBE
A (RBHE (B4
FEFE FERE) SERE) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHT
At 1 July 2021 WN_T=——4F
+A—H 468 - - 468
Changes due to financial HW=-—Z = —4F
instruments recognised  + A — B#ER 4R
at 1July 2021: TAS|IRHNEE :
— Impairment losses — BRZEE
recognised, net [iEi=pEE] 18 - 27,024 27,042
— Transfer to —EBEEERE
credit-impaired (171) - 171 -
Exchange realignment PE W R (8) - (839) (847)
At 30 June 2022 MNZEZ—F
~NAZ=T1H 307 - 26,356 26,663

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the Group
has renegotiated the contractual terms with 10
factoring arrangement customers to waive their
interest for a three-month period from April to
June 2022 and 1 factoring arrangement customer
to extent the repayment for a three-month period
from June to September 2022. Based on the
assessment performed by the Group, all factoring
receivables are regarded as non-substantial
modification.

The amortised cost before the modification of
receivables was approximately HK$453,433,000
and the modification loss amounting to
approximately HK$4,625,000 was recorded in
profit or loss for the year ended 30 June 2022.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBERERME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-—ZE—_—F <XA=F+HILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. MEERER2)
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIEEREERERBEKE)
and policies (Continued)
Credit risk exposure (Continued) EERKMAO (&)
Factoring receivables, lease receivables and loan (RIEEM N IE - FHE FEYL KB
receivables (Continued) JEWE (&)

At 30 June 2022, the gross factoring receivables of
HK$256,754,000 was classified under stage 3
-Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) since the Group
assessed the credit risk of customers who applied
for renegotiation have increased significantly due
to the defaulted repayment on the factoring
interests and their business operations had been
negatively affected as a result of the COVID-19
outbreak and the ensuing city-wide lockdown in
Shanghai.

The following table shows the exposure of ECL for
lease receivables under general approach:

Stage 1

SE1MER
HK$'000

FERT

R-ZZTE-—FXA=+H RE
JFE YRR IE 48 BA 256,754,000 8 7T 9
MAFEIBE —2HEHEES
B(EEEERE) RARAKSE
B RFENERNREENE
ERRE B R ERREF S
ARE NN EXEHKEECER
COVID-19 % & K BE < T 2R &) L&
HmMZEamEmTE -

TRINRRIE—RE 2 HE R
FREMBREEERER

2022

—E—=
Stage 2  Stage 3
FE2MKER EIRER
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Gross carrying amount BRE4RE 8,215
Impairment allowance BB R 4
Expected loss rate TEHIES IR R 0.05%

11,264 19,479
= 3,339 3,343
29.64% 17.16%

Stage 1

E N
HK$'000

2021
—E-—%
Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F2MEER  FEIBER mEt
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

TR

Gross carryingamount  BRE4A{E 79,201
Impairment allowance BB 57
Expected loss rate TEEIEE X 0.07%

TAET TAET TAET

- - 79,201
- - 57
- - 0.07%

As at 30 June 2022 and 2021, the impairment
allowance was measured at an amount equal to 12m
ECL under general approach for lease receivables
from sales-leaseback transactions, excepted for
lease receivables which were credit-impaired, as
no lease receivables were past due.

RIBE - —FR-_F-—FXA
=+H BREBELEEEREZHE
FEUWFRIESN - BERERE &
ERERHARR S 2 HE R
EZASERN 128 A EHEEEE
2R E RERWECD S
Z B WA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBERERME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-ZE-_—F XA=F+HILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

5. BERRER &)

(b) BBEMEEEERBRE)

Credit risk exposure (Continued) EERBR®A (&)
Factoring receivables, lease receivables and loan RIBEN K IE « FHE JE Y 5078 J
receivables (Continued) JEWE (&)
The following tables show reconciliation of loss TEBBROHEEREWZTIEER
allowances that has been recognised for lease A E IR B S BR
receivables:
Lifetime
ECL Lifetime
(non- amount
credit (credit
12m ECL Impaired) impaired)
2HIFEH Z2HEN
12188 RFEBE GEEE
EH CREBHE (B4
FEEIE FERE) FEREME) “st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET T T THT
At 1 July 2021 RN-T=——4
+tH—H 57 - - 57
Changes due to financial HW=-—Z = —4F
instruments recognised  + A —B#ER LR
at 1July 2021: TEAS|ENEE :
— Impairment losses — R REEE
(reversal of) (#E)RE
impairment losses B85 8
recognised, net (37) - 3,429 3,392
— Transfer to —EEEERE
credit-impaired (16) - 16 -
Exchange realignment IE R % - - (106) (106)
At 30 June 2022 MNZE-Z—F
NHAZ=1H 4 - 3,339 3,343

At 30 June 2022, the gross lease receivables of
HK$11,264,000 was classified under stage 3 —
lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) since the Group
assessed the credit risk of customers have
increased significantly due to their default
repayment history and these customers were not
responsive to the Group.
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R-ZE-_—_FXA=+H -HE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBERERME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-—ZE—_—F <XA=F+HILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. MERBRER &)

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIXRAREEEERBEKRE)
and policies (Continued)
Credit risk exposure (Continued) EERBR®A (&)
Factoring receivables, lease receivables and loan (REEFEYL T ~ THE FEW A K
receivables (Continued) JEWE (&)
The following table show the exposure of ECL for TRV TRIEE - EZEWE K
loan receivables under general approach: MBI EEEERR

2022
:S::
Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 Total
EIRE F2RER FIER et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FERT FET FTERT FERT
Gross carrying amount IRMEAAE 12,194 - - 12,194
Impairment allowance BERE 20 - - 20
Expected loss rate TEHES R R 0.16% - - 0.16%

2021
B4

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

FIBER F2RE FIBER HEt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FET FET FHET

Gross carrying amount SREARE 21,559 - - 21,559
Impairment allowance TRE 36 - - 36
Expected loss rate TEHAEE X 0.17% - - 0.17%

As at 30 June 2022 and 2021, the impairment
allowance was measured at an amount equal to
12m ECL under general approach for loan
receivables as no loan receivables were past due.

2021/22FF3R o HBEEBERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
REMBERREEE &)

For the year ended 30June 2022 HEZT-_—FA=+HIEFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

5. MERRER &)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BiEREEBERBEE)

196

and policies (Continued)
Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Other receivables and deposits

For the other receivables and deposits, the
directors of the Company make periodic individual
assessment on the recoverability of the other
receivables and deposits based on historical
settlement records, past experience, and also
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. The directors of the Company
believes that there are no significant increase in
credit risk of these amounts since initial
recognition and the Group provided impairment
based on 12m ECL under general approach except
for the receivable from ship building company in
relation to the termination of yacht building at 30
June 2021 which was settled during the Reporting
Year.

At 30 June 2022, no impairment allowance for
other receivables was provided (2021:
HK$8,006,000).

Other financial assets

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
cash and cash equivalents. The Group accounts
for its credit risk by appropriately providing for
expected losses on a timely basis. In calculating
the expected loss rates, the Group considers
historical loss rates for each category of the other
financial assets and adjusts for forward looking
macroeconomic data.

At 30 June 2022 and 2021, the Group assessed
that the ECL rate is immaterial under 12m ECL
under general approach. Thus, no loss allowance
for other financial assets was recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
MEMBEHRERMEE )

For the year ended 30June 2022 HEZT-_—FA=+HIEFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5.
(Continued)

MBEREE @)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIREMEEEERBEE)

and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be
available to meet liabilities as they fall due, and it
results from amount and maturity mismatches of
assets and liabilities. The Group will consistently
maintain a prudent financial policy and ensure that

it maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity
requirements.

The Group's financial liabilities are analysed into
relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the end of the respective
reporting periods to the contractual maturity date,

BB

mBEcRBRABEEIESES
AXME Bz BE 2@k - mE
DREEMBECRENRIEA
SEBCPTER - AEE M — BRI -
RITEEMBER - WHER A
FRREACRNERBDESHT °

AEBzERBEDRAGHR
BHRBADRE  RENZHER
THREANIHE ZH THHE
DB BE AR T

using the contractual undiscounted cash flows, as

follows:
As at 30 June 2022 R-ZBZZ=ZFXA=+H
Weighted
average Total
effective Carrying On Within undiscounted
interest rate amount demand 1 year 1-2 years 2-5years  cash flows
Jill: 7] RERRE
BRAI= HREE REX —£R -Z@ME ZERf REEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThR ThER TERL TERL TERL Thn
Trade payables EVISIES N/AFER 3,420 3420 - - - 3,420
Accruals and other T ER R EM
payables BT N/ARERA 7,334 7,334 - - - 7,334
Lease Liabilities HEEE 10.39% 2,415 - 1,440 1,200 - 2,640
Corporate bonds AAEH 10.41% 40,507 2,620 38,722 - - 41,342
53,676 13,374 40,162 1,200 - 54,736
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBERERME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-ZE-_—F XA=F+HILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5.
(Continued)

MBEREE @)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

(b) BBEMEEEERBRE)

Liquidity risk (Continued) RENME R ()
As at 30 June 2021 RZZE=Z—F,A=+H

Weighted
average Total
effective Carrying On Within

interest rate amount demand 1 year

undiscounted

1-2 years 2-5 years cash flows
METH
{0 fREfE BREX —5R —E@F ZERF

HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T TR TAL TAL TAL

198

Trade payables BHRMATE N/A
TER 8,611 8,611 - - - 8611

Accruals and other ErEBAREN N/A
payables ERFE TER 8,578 8,578 - - - 8,578
Lease Liabilities HEEE 10.39% 3726 - 1,617 1,440 1,200 4,257
Corporate honds AES 10.36% 66,765 - 68,482 1,008 - 69,49
87,680 17,189 70,099 2443 1,200 90,936

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed coupon rate corporate
bonds and lease liabilities. The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk relating to
the Group’s variable-rate bank balances.

The Group'’s exposure to interest rates on bank
balances is considered insignificant and the
interest rate on corporate bonds is shown in the
liquidity risk section of this note. The Group’s cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest
rate in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group
currently does not have any interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
ReMBERE )

For the year ended 30June 2022 HEZT-_—FA=+HIEFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

5. MERRER &)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BIEEMREEEERBEK(E)

and policies (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for financial instruments at the end of the
reporting period. A 50 basis points (2021: 50 basis
points) increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of the reasonable
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2021: 50
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s loss before tax
for the year would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$144,000 (2021: decrease/
increase by approximately HK$7,000).

Currency risk

The Group operates in Hong Kong and the PRC
and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to Renminbi (“RMB") and US dollars
("US$"). Currency risk arises from the foreign
currency denomination of commercial
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group has
no significant direct exposure to foreign currencies
as most of the commercial transactions, assets
and liabilities are denominated in a currency same
as the functional currency of each entity of the
Group.

FZ@E B (&)

HRE T
TYREEE DI RERIRE S
Kt w T AAENTFXER M
BT oS0EER(ZE=-—F:
SOMEESE) 2 maus b REE
BEMMEAIgEEZ SRS
myEH Z 7 o

WFRE EF, TRES0EES (=
T —F 50EEY) MAE
HhBS®IFTE AEEZF
KB L AT S 1B S R 1 I 4
1440008 T(ZFE = —F: H
b HEHN%7,000787T)

BE¥ERE

AEBEREBEBRPEEE Ak
XTAEBELNINERR X
ZEARBTAR®DEET
(IZxDEM - E¥ERKE N
SINEFHEZBER S BEMER
B HRNAZHEERS  BE
kAafBzHEERHEAEER
BERZGEERHER  HAKE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuec)
meEMGERE )

For the year ended 30June 2022 HEZT-_—FA=+HIEFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

200

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)
Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investment in equity securities measured at
FVTPL. For equity securities measured at FVTPL
quoted in the Stock Exchange, the management of
the Group manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risks. The
Group has appointed a special team to monitor
the price risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the
reporting date. If the prices of the respective
equity instruments had been 5% (2021: 5%) higher/
lower, the loss before tax for the year ended 30
June 2022 would decrease/increase by HK$13,000
(2021: increase/decrease by HK$12,000) as a result
of the changes in fair value of equity securities
listed in Hong Kong.

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

(i) the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market
prices; and

(i)  the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in
accordance with net assets value or Hull-
white model.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amount of other financial assets and
liabilities carried at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to
their fair values.

5. MERRER &)

(b) MEEMEERBERBEKRE)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBERERME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-—ZE—_—F <XA=F+HILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. BEREER®)

(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial (c) €EMIBEZAFEEE)
instruments (Continued)
Fair value of the Group's financial assets REFEEEUATFEHTEZEE
that are measured at fair value on a BELmEEZ2ATE
recurring basis
Some of the Group's financial assets are measured RNEREHR XEBE TS/
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. BEWAFEGZ - TRIIRZ
The following table gives information about how EeMEEAFEEEAANZE
the fair value of these financial assets are o
determined.

Fair value Fair value
as at asat
30 June 30June  Fair value
Description 2022 2021 hierarchy Valuation techniques
R=-B-— NZE——F

AB=tHZ @ AA=THZ

e AFME AFE ATEER  GERHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT it

Financial assets

cTREE
Financial assets at FVTPL
BRAFEFANERCERMEE -
— Early redemption right 878 1,717 level 3 Hull-white model
from corporate bonds F=4 HRER AR
— AEERRAIERE
— Equity securities listed in 269 233 Level1 Quoted bid pricesin an
Hong Kong F—4 active market
—REA LT RIEE S RIERTIZATIME AR
— Suspended trading securities - - level3 Asset approach
listed in Hong Kong B BEE
—HEEENEBLMES
During the year ended 30 June 2021, there were Ek:zéiaﬁi—f/—\ﬁ =+ HIF
no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2. § R AREE—QRRYES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBERERME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-ZE-_—F XA=F+HILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. MERBRER &)
(Continued)
(c) Fair value measurement of financial (c) €I BEZAFEE(E)

instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (Continued)

On 5 May 2021, one of the Group’s equity
securities listed in Hong Kong classified as
financial assets at FVTPL was suspended trading.
Therefore, no unadjusted quoted price in active
market is available. The Group appointed an
independent qualified professional valuer, Peak
Vision Appraisals Limited (“Peak Vision”) to
measure fair value of suspended trading security
by using asset approach. Thus, the fair value of
suspended trading security was transferred to
Level 3 valuation.

During the year ended 30 June 2022, there were
no transfer of between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfer into or out of Level 3.

Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value
based on Level 3:

BEBEEUQNTVEABZEARE
BEMEEZAVEE)

R-ZE-_—FAARH A5H
Hp—BA B AR A FES AR
M EMEEZEE EMREE
%WE%EE°HM'ﬁ%ﬂE
BRARERABEETSME - &
ElEéE%i BREXME
BREEFHEAR AR (RE]) ®
REEZAEEFEEESFNAQ
FE-Ait EEEEEFZA
FEEBREFE=RMEE -

e -_—_FA=1+HItHF
B E-—RES - HoETmE
B hEEAREEE=F -

RS REATEN 82 AR
47

Suspended
trading
securities Early
listedin redemption Profit
Hong Kong right guarantees Total
BERLTRS
EEEE RAREE AR E @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FAT THT TR
At 1 July 2020 “Z-TF+A-B - 3,280 24,581 27,861
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ HE&EKIEAF - - (24,581) (24,581)
Transfer from Level 1 B —REE 6,973 - - 6,973
Loss on change in fair value A F(EEE) 7 18 (6,973) (1,563) - (8,536)
At 30 June 2021 and RZZEZ—F- A=K
1 July 2021 —E-_—-%+A—H - 1,717 - 1,717
Loss on change in fair value A F(EEE) 7 18 - (839) - (839)
At 30 June 2022 R-B-—£XA=1H - 878 - 878
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBERERME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-—ZE—_—F <XA=F+HILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. MERBRER &)
(Continued)
(c) Fair value measurement of financial (c) EMIBEZAFEEAE)

instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (Continued)

BEEEEDUNTVEFBZEAE
BEMEEZAFEE)

E=MAFEH B2 HER
R AR -

The valuation technigues and inputs used in Level
3 fair value measurement are as follows:

Effect on
Significant fair value
Valuation unobservable for increase Fair value as at
Description technique inputs of inputs 30 June
BEAFTHE BAHBE MY
b fEER BAYE ATEZEE RAA=tHEZAYE
2022 2021
—E--F =&
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET
Early redemption right Hull-white model  Interest rates 9.00%-10.17%  Decrease 878 1,717
from corporate bonds (2021: 6.72%6.75%)
(Note i)
AEERIRAIERRE MR ERELS % 9.00%Z10.17% W
(BzED) (ZZ=—%:
6.72% % 6.75%)
Suspended trading Asset approach N/A N/A N/A - -
securities listed in
Hong Kong (Note i)
LEEEAR LTRSS ARE TiEA TER  TEA
(Wizxil)
Notes: MaE
() The Group appointed Peak Vision to determine the fair (i) FEBZERBRAFBESRA

value of early redemption right using the Hull-white EERAECE A TE - HEER

model. The Hull-white model predicts the evolution of
short rate using multi-factors such as time to maturity,
prevailing interest rates, mean reversion and volatility of
rate changes, etc. If the interest rate of the early
redemption right from corporate bonds held by the
Group had been 10% higher and all other variables were
held constant, the loss before tax would have been
increase by approximately HK$145,000 (2021: profit
before tax would have been decrease by approximately
HK$140,000); 10% lower and all other variables were held
constant, the loss before tax would have been decrease
by approximately HK$147,000 (2021: profit before tax
would have been increase by approximately
HK$141,000).

R ERAZERERETENEAFEY
B ZSAERBIEDHER R
TR - (AR & R R R & (LA
UL - WAKERBAZARES
ZIRAIERIEFE EF10% - FT
BEMESHERTE - AIRTIATES
1B 18 7049 145,000 T (—Z 2= —
& BRBATE R R 2 49 140,000
BIL) TRRI10%mMATA EMmE S
HrETE - BIBRFATE BB
147,000 T (ZF=—F : BHA
SR FIE 3 hN49 141,000 7T) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuec)
meEMGERE )

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE=-Z

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

204

(c)

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i) The fair value of suspended trading securities listed in
Hong Kong amounting to HK$Nil was reference to the
valuation carried by Peak Vision. The fair value of
suspended trading securities listed in Hong Kong was
valued by using asset approach with reference to the
latest published financial statement of that listed
securities.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair value as at 30
June 2022 and 2021.

Capital risk management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital
management is to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain
healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes
was made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the year.

==4%E 55 = BUEEEE

(c)

(d)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

fRaMBERRME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE—ZT_—FA=THILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(d) capital risk management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is total debt divided by total assets. The
Group’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio at a
reasonable level. The gearing ratios at the end of

5. MERBREHE &)

(d) EXERBERE)

AEBNAERB AL R(BERH
FRAMEE) EREABN - A
B BRRBERNBE L KR
REIEKF - REMERAKRZE

each reporting period are as follows: REELERAT :
2021
HK$'000
FABTT
Total debt WBIETS 40,507 66,765
Total assets BEE 703,583 882,122
Gearing ratio ERBELR 5.76% 7.57%
Note: Total debt comprises of corporate bonds which is Wit : BMEKREARES  BENG
disclosed in Note 34 to the consolidated financial AU RERMI L3S -
statements.
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEREHE
Business segments EXBoH

Information reported to the management of the Group,
being the CODM, for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performances focuses on
types of services provided.

The operating and reportable segments are as follows:

Exhibitions and
events

Organisation and sponsorship of
trade shows, exhibitions and
events, provision of event
planning, sub-contracting,
management and ancillary
services

Cultural and
entertainment

Operation of cultural and
entertainment comprehensive
services platform, including
brand management, solution
and consulting services, trading
of goods and products
promotion services

Financing Provision of money lending, finance
leasing and credit factoring
services
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBERERME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-ZE-_—F XA=F+HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

results by reportable segments:

For the year ended 30 June

6.

SEBEH @)

Pl LY E S

AEBZWEREEZABATREDZ
DT -

Exhibitions Cultural and
and events entertainment Financing
REERED WL RERL fE
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
B-CE | ZE--% C-ECCE | ZEC-E | CB-CE | ZECF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén T T Fhr T T
Revenue #
Segment revenue e = 177 61,159 198,933 55,329 52622 116,488 251732
Infer-segment revenue Ak - (55) (4327) (23608 = - (4327) (23663)
Revenue from external RESNDEPE 2 s
customers - 122 56,832 175,325 55,329 52622 112,161 228069
Results E3
Segment results NBEE (1,242) (31.237) (113,398) 7759 16,192 48954 (98,448) 95312
Unallocated net loss on BATEABEL
financial assets at FVTPL SREEZRANER
2E (803) (17.976)
Unallocated impairmentloss ~ BHEESEERETZ
under ECL model, ROEREEE
net of reversal (MBERE) (580) 8.00¢)
Unallocated income and RARBARE L
offier gains and losses W R (3438) 139
Unallocated corporate RARCEET
£Xpenses (13,549) (14,109)
Finance costs BEAA (4,828) (20930)
(Loss)/profit before tax BHiE (B8) /%7 (121,646) 35,688
Taxation i (1,221 1135
Loss for the year EEFR (122,867) (5.447)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBERERME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-—ZE—_—F <XA=F+HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. ZWEH B
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERAE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and REBEERABKATHRSE DS
liabilities by reportable segments: DT -
At 30 June RAA=+H

Exhibitions Cultural and

and events entertainment Financing Total
BEEREH WERES HE @t
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

ZB--f T B “T--§ IZBICE “T--F CZBIZE —T--f
HK$'000 | HKS000  HKS'000 = HKS000  HK$'000 | HKS000  HK$'000 = HKS'000
FAR TAT FAR TAR TAR TAT Tax TAT

Assets BE
Segment assets PHEE 596 174 172,305 388,727 520,969 470975 693,870 861,443
Unallocated corporate AOBLFEE

assets 9,713 20,679

Total reportable segment AFH42BEE

assets e 703,583 882,122
Liabilities 8%
Segment liabilities HEEE 17 152 10,733 19,420 3,407 7476 14,257 27,048
Unallocated corporate RORGERE

liabilities 43,408 72,157

Total reportable segment A3 R4/ HEE

liabilities ik 57,665 99,205
For the purpose of monitoring segment performance RERSBRBAARES F 2B HE
and allocating resources between segments: BERME :

e all assets are allocated to reportable segments s BRDIHEBEEN FEEEESE
other than corporate assets; and EETHREDE &

e  all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments s BROEEARBIN FEEGEESE
other than corporate liabilities. ZETHREDES -
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-ZE-_—F XA=F+HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEBEHE 2
Other segment information Hihn HER
For the year ended 30 June BZEAA=THLEE
Exhibitions Cultural and
and events entertainment Financing Unallocated Total
EEEREDH p¢(9:3:¢ HE FAE @it
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
“B-CE |22 % -B-CF | Zf--F|-B-C-F | ZF-- & -“B-_E|ZF--&F “B-_F “2--F
HK$'000 = HK$000 HKS$'000 = HK$000 HKS$'000 = HKS000 HK$'000 = HKS000 HK$'000 = HKS$000
Ta#x TEr TEx  TEr TEx TEr  TEx  TEr  TEx|  TEn
Depreciation of property, 1%~ BER
plant and equipment REE (3) 65) (180) (563) (74) @) (1,230 (1,288 (1487) (1903
Depreciation of right-of-use FBEEERE
assets (14) (77 (152) (1,017) - - (1,164) (5,485) (1,330) (6,679
Capital expenditure ERREE = - - 21 (71 (36) = (160) 171 217)
Net loss on financial BAHERHABRL
assets at FVTPL SREEZEER
et - - - - - - (803) (17,976) (803) (17,976)
Net gainon change infair - ERSIAREAT(E
value of contingent ELpdl e
consideration payables - - - 914 - - - - - 914
Write-off of property, WiEnE  BE
plant and equipment PET: (2) - (16) O = - (2 - (20) 9
Impairment losses Under  EEIEEERER
ECL model, net of BT ZREEE
reversal (rE&=) = 8742 (14,634) 28128 (30,418) 50 (580) (8,006 (45,632) 28914
Impairment loss on BEZHESE
gooawill = (29429 (111,418) (6,518) = - = - (111,418)  (35947)
Amortisation of intangible & &%
assets - - (1,153) (5,140) - - - - (1,153) (5,140)
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-—ZE—_—F <XA=F+HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

Geographical segments

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and
the PRC.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of the
operations. Information about the Group’s non-current
assets is presented based on the geographical location
of the assets.

SEEHE @)

EDE
REBHEBLNEERHE o

BREASEXBINEFPHRANE
MIORELEHWHZ2S) - BRAAKE
FRBEENERDREEENDIE

g2 -

Revenue from
External customers

Non-current assets

KRBT F R FRBEE
Year ended 30 June As at 30 June

BEAA=1THLEE RAB=+H
2022 2021 2022 2021
g —E-—F —ZE-C == —E
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FET FHET THTT
Hong Kong BB 1,593 1,640 2,232 4,627
The PRC =s] 110,568 226,429 1,263 2,813
112,161 228,069 3,495 7,440

Note: Non-current assets excluded goodwill, financial instruments and
deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

There was no customer of the Group whose
transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenue for both the years ended 30 June 2022 and
2021.

2021/22FF3R o HBEEBERERAT

M : FRDEETRERE  SRTAREE
BIABE °

FREREFZEHR

AEEMETFP 2R FHEHBAANER
HE-_ZT-_—_#Kk-_F=-—FXA
ZTHIEWMEFEREZ 10% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBEHRERMEE )

For the year ended 30June 2022 HEZT-_—FA=+HIEFE

7. REVENUE 7. ks

(i) Disaggregation of revenue (i) =Sl

2022 2021
s —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT THETT

Revenue from contracts with ZEFE&HQUkz :
customers:

Organisation and sponsorshipof ZWRLEHEES -
exhibitions, event planning and TEEIR B R ARR AR

related services - 122
Brand management MR E IR 4,932 10,389
Promotion and consulting services # & & 78 AR 1% 17,053 60,373
Trading of goods HmE 5 34,847 104,563

56,832 175,447
Interest under effective ERFREETHE
interest method:
Financing income A YA

— Credit factoring services — EERERY 48,295 41,665

— Finance leasing services — B EHERS 5,441 9317

— Money lending services — WERTS 1,593 1,640

55,329 52,622
Total et 112,161 228,069

Timing of revenue recognition: &R UL E 2 R

At a point in time AE— R, 38,604 131,443

Over time W& B 18,228 44,004
Revenue from contracts BEEESHWEH

with customers 56,832 175,447
Revenue from other sources  EH iRk 55,329 52,622
Total st 112,161 228,069
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE—ZT_—FA=THILFE

7. REVENUE (Continued) 7. k& =)

(ii) Performance obligation for contracts (il EFENNBEHER

with customers

organisation and sponsorship of exhibitions,
events planning and related services

The Group provides service in the design,
planning, coordination and management of
exhibitions and events. Revenue from providing
services is recognised when the services are
rendered.

Promotion and consulting services

The Group provides promotion and consultancy
services to alcoholic beverages suppliers, bars,
restaurants, lounges and others. Revenue is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Brand management and related services

The Group provides brand management services
to bars and restaurants. Revenue is recognised
when the services are rendered.

Trading of goods

The Group sells wine and liquor and daily supplies
to entertainment stores and NOD Union members.
Revenue is recognised when control of goods
were transferred, being at the point in time when
goods were delivered and accepted by the
customers.

OTHER INCOME

ERREDHRES FEBHRIR
HER%

AEEPEHET - R RER
EERELEBIRS o RS
F W ek I HiE 1L AR 745 B B R o

R K 58 A R

AEBRBEBRAHER B
e EE EBkEMBEHER
Ko v RS o WER A 1R A 75 B

27
e

in e B 2 A B AR

AEERBERERERDEE
BARTS o W NIRRT fERR o

BAmES

ARE B A AR G4 PT 5 K v Bk B T
BEEHEFTBEMNEEARAE
P dn o YR T 7 am RO TR Il R S
BARERE N ELREPE
Uty 5 P 3 ) RS

8. Hfthlx A

2021

HK$'000
THTT

Non-refundable trade deposits B AREE Hikd

forfeited 411 902
Government grants (Note) BT G (B EE) 2,211 7,281
Dividend income fi% 8 A 10 -
Interest income FEWA 64 163
Sundry income IR A 213 197

2,909 8,543

Note: The government grants represent subsidy income received
from various government authorities as incentive to certain
subsidiaries of the Group in Hong Kong and the PRC.

PR« T 6 B 8 5 (BB R P U B 1 8 B U
AN ERETARBEERERPENET
PS8 A R e B2 o
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REMBEHRERMEE )

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-ZE-_—F XA=F+HILFE

9. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9. BRIREI(EBIR) &F
(Loss)/profit before tax has been arrived at after B ml(EsE) %Mk, (GEA)
charging/(crediting): THEIEBER

2021
— = —E
HK$'000
FH&T
Staff costs: BITRA :
Employee benefits expenses EEERNAX (BREEEME)
(including directors’ emoluments)
— Salaries, allowance and —He  FAREMBEF
other benefit 15,865 26,619
— Retirement benefit — R FFH B 3K
scheme contributions 2,530 1,668
18,395 28,287
Other items: HEg :
Amortisation of intangible assets mREE#HE (T 18)
(Note 18) 1,153 5,140
Depreciation of: e :
— property, plant and equipment  — % « R R
(Note 16) (PF5E16) 1,487 1,903
— right-of-use assets (Note 17) — (EAEEE (ME17) 1,330 6,679
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 2 Bl 35 B
— Audit services — BZRT 1,150 1,150
— Non-audit services — EFZRG 240 240
Cost of inventories recognised in RIEEX AR PR FERR
cost of sales 30,640 83,642
Lease expenses on short-term leases 4G HAfEE v A ER Y 1,022 1,446

212 NOVA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

fRaMBERRME 2

For the year ended 30June 2022 HEZT-_—FA=+HIEFE

9. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Continued)

Other (gains) and losses: Hih (B BEE

Net loss on financial

BOFEAABEZEHEE

9. M#RuRI(EE) &BF

2021

HK$'000
TR

assets at FVTPL: 2B FEE
Net realised loss on disposal of HEREAFEFABRELZ

financial assets at FVTPL eRMEEZ BN BB _ 3463
Unrealised (gain)/loss on fair value AT EF ABRZ S REE

change of financial assets at FVTPL 7 AP {EE 8) 2 R EH

(Note 28) (Wzx), B8 (B1EE28) (36) 12,950
Loss on fair value change of early IRAEREATEEE .

redemption right (Note 28) B8 (931 28) 839 1,563
Net loss on financial BEAFEFABRZEREE

assets at FVTPL Z BB 803 17,976
Net exchange gains b W W e F 58 (2,132) (6,204)
Net gain on change in fair value of ~ ERtERARBRAFEEE <

contingent consideration payables Uiz % %8 = (914
Gain on derecognition of lease RIEREREE 2 s = (22
Write-off of property, WIEE - R RE

plant and equipment 20 9
Gain on disposal of HEHB ARz Wi

subsidiaries (Note 36) (FF5E36) = (2,412)
Loss/(gain) on deregistration of EHENBARZEER

subsidiaries (Note i) (Wezs) (B=ED 173 (4,630)
Gain on early redemption of REPERARES W=

corporate bond (Note 34) (PfF5E34) (381) (9,040)
Loss on non-substantial modification A R&5IEEAEE] 2 E#E

of corporate bond (Note 34) (FF7E34) 4,700 12,908
Loss on modification of factoring RIBEFIERT 2 BHE

loans (Note 24) (Ff7E24) 4,625 -

7,808 7,468

Note: sk
0] The amount represents the cumulative reserves included in 0] AR TBIE T AGE $HPT EB A FI fiR BR EE K

exchange reserve, other reserve and statutory reserve released
upon deregistration of subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBERERME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-ZE-_—F XA=F+HILFE

10. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER ECL 10. T Hj
MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL B518 (¥0R%i%mE)

2021
—E=-= = —dE

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET

Impairment losses/(reversal of WEEER, CREEERER)
impairment losses) recognised on:  #72 :

— Trade receivables (Note 23) — E 5 I EIE (55 23) 14,634 (36,871)
— Other receivables (Note 27) — H b e la sk E (Ff5E27) 580 8,006
— Factoring receivables (Note 24)  — {R IR fE Y3k 18 (M3 24) 27,042 )
— Lease receivables (Note 25) — HERWFIE (H:E25) 3,392 (76)
— Loan receivables (Note 26) — EWE R (FIFE26) (16) 36
45,632 (28,914)
11. FINANCE COSTS 1. RERE

2022 A0 A
—=E—-= T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FHET

Effective interest on convertible RRkES EEZ
bonds/notes =TS - 376

Effective interest on corporate bonds A B&E% 2 B F 5
(Note 34) (MF5E34) 4,525 20,194
Effective interest on lease liabilities fE&E 2 BEF & 306 487

4,831 21,057
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE—ZT_—FA=THILFE

HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will
be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will
be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
since the Group has no estimated assessable profits for
the year ended 30 June 2022 and has sufficient tax 10ss
brought forward to set-off against estimated assessable
profits for the year ended 30 June 2021.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries of the Group in the
PRC is 25% for the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021.

12. TAXATION 12. RIA
2021
HK$'000
FHT
Current tax: BEARE A :
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — R EEH 11,254 19,035
— Withholding tax on remitted — ERAN B
earnings 1,205 22,474
12,459 41,509
Overprovision in prior years: BEFEBERE
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — B EMSH (547) (447)
Deferred tax (credit)/expense: EERIE (%) BX
— Current year (Note 22) — AEE (MizE22) (10,691) 73
Total income tax expense FriS i 58 1,221 41,135
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first BIEFERMMEH  SEKEREE

2,000,000 7T 8% K% 8.25% 4 Fi -
18 3@ 2,000,000 7% JT ) ¥ F 1% 16.5% %41
e THAFNBHEMAHERNER
EREAE T RIEE IR G —THE16.5% &
o
HRAEERBEE T - —F XA
ZtHELEFEYEGTERTER
BMERAEEHBEEERTAREN
HE_ZT-_—FAZTHILFEN
HETERB RN - A ERE BTG
THET IR -

BB BEEEMEHE ([T EB
EDREEMSTEERIED - A&
EhEMEARRNEE_T__FK
—EC—FRAZTHLEFEMDX
#25% ©
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HZE—ZT_-_—FA=THILFE

12. TAXATION (continued) 12. RIE (&)
Pursuant to the EIT Law and its implementation rules, WECEMEBEREAREETHIEN @ &
dividends declared in respect of profit earned by the EP l BB AR FTHRE 2 a A M E IR 2
PRC subsidiaries, and royalty receivable by non-PRC C RIEFRECEEREIRPE D
corporate residents from the PRC enterprises are %zw%%ﬁ,ﬁgﬂowﬁ < ANTEHIFL
subject to a withholding tax at a rate of 10%, unless BRI TR E S TR R o
reduced by tax treaties or arrangements.
A reconciliation of the taxation applicable to (loss)/profit FRARNTIRIETM S MR R 2%
before tax using the statutory rate for the location in EREAEBRANRBRAT(ER), &
which the Company is domiciled for tax purpose to the Mz HBEBEERHEE 2B
tax expense at the effective tax rate are as follows: HX 2 HIRMT ¢
2021
HK$'000
FHT
(Loss)/profit before tax BREEAT (B518), 5 A (121,646) 35,688
Tax expenses at the Hong Kong LEBNESHEE16.5%
Profits Tax rate 16.5% FTERHIERY (20,071) 5,889
Tax effect of expenses not deductible S AJFIFF 5 2 M52
for tax purpose 35,133 36,315
Tax effect of income not taxable BEARBMBAZ BB E
for tax purpose (6,514) (29,769)
Tax effect on temporary differences  KERERF =5 2 HiETE
not recognised (11,668) 105
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised R AT IBEE 2 TG & 843 974
Utilisation of tax losses previously BB ERERHIBEE
not recognised (4) (56)
Tax effect of withholding tax on AEBFBEM B AR A DK
the distributable profits of B BB 2 BB
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries 1,205 22,474
Effect of tax concession MERRZZE (260) (2,550)
Effect of different tax rates of REMEEEREE L
subsidiaries operating in MERRTRME 2 &
other jurisdiction 2,918 8,200
Overprovision in respect of B FEHEEEE
prior years (361) (447)
Income tax expense for the year FEMESHRAS 1,221 41,135
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-—ZE—_—F <XA=F+HILFE

13. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 13. ESERIRERLREGES
DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID HEEME
EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS
(i) Benefits and interests of directors (i) E=TT|ARES
(a) Directors’ and chief executive's () EEKESTHAEHMS
emoluments
The aggregate amounts of emoluments FRN - ARAIENESERE
payable to directors and chief executive of BITBRABZHEBREN
the Company during the year are as follows: T
2022 2021
—E—-= —E - —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Fee we 1,027 1,191
Other emoluments: Hippie -
Salaries, allowance and e EMREDAZG
benefits in kind 1,269 1,800
Retirement benefit ROKEFIETEI R
scheme contributions 46 56
Total ast 2,342 3,047
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBERERME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-ZE-_—F XA=F+HILFE

13. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 13. ESRIRERLREGES
DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID HEEME &
EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(i) Benefits and interests of directors (i) E=T|AREZRE)
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s Q) EERESTHRAEHE
emoluments (Continued) (4&)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information

RARE B R A& DI 5 383(1)
ERAR(BKEABESR
MZBER)RBIE28 - &
ERERBITBRABZMEH

218

about Benefits of directors) Regulation are as

BT

follows:
Salaries,
allowance and Retirement benefit
benefits in kind scheme contributions Total emoluments
e 28R
BURIE BARERIBHRE ame
2022 2022 2022
—E-C —g-C —E-C —E--&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thx T TR
Executive directors HTESE
Mr. Deng Zhonglin (Note &) - B #8854 (fzEa) - - 669 670 28 18 697 688
Mr. Xu Feng (Note b) SRS (D) = - - 553 - 20 - 573
Mr.WongYuk LunAlan B REEE 4 (fitsEc)
(Note ¢) = - 600 577 18 18 618 595
Non-executive director  JF#{TEZS
Ms. Huang ChianSandy g4+ (i3t d)
(Note d) 240 21 = - = - 240 21
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive directors
Mr. Tsang Wing Ki LHEE 240 240 - - - - 240 20
Mr. Choi Hung Fai BIEBEE 240 20 - - - - 240 20
Dr. Wong Kong Tin, »» BIAB Tt 240 240 - - - - 240 240
Mr.Qiu Peiyuan (Note e) {5564 (MizEe) 67 20 - - - - 67 20
Total remuneration @ 1,027 1,191 1,269 1,800 46 56 2,342 3,047
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
REMBERREEE &)

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HZE=-Z

13. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(i) Benefits and interests of directors
(Continued)

(@) Directors’ and chief executive's
emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

(b)

Mr. Deng Zhonglin was appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company on 31 May 2021.

Mr. Xu Feng resigned as the executive director
and chief executive officer of the Company on 31
May 2021.

Mr. Wong Yuk Lun Alan was appointed as the
executive director of the Company on 15 July
2020.

Ms. Huang Chian Sandy was appointed as the
non-executive director of the Company on 15 July
2020.

Mr. Qiu Peiyuan resigned as the independent non-
executive director of the Company on 11 October
2021.

During the year ended 30 June 2022, no bonus
(2021: no bonus) was paid to the executive
directors of the Company. In addition, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the
executive directors and independent non-
executive directors as an inducement to join, or
upon joining the Group, or as a compensation for
loss of office.

During the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021,
no director waived any emoluments.

Share options were granted to directors in respect
of their services to the Group, further details of
which are included in the disclosures in Note 37
to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ retirement benefits

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the
directors received retirement benefits of
HK$46,000 (2021: HK$56,000).

==%E 5= BUEEEE

13. ESBRARERLURABRES
wEEMS &)

() E=|ARERE)

(@ EBEk&ETBRAEME

(%)
GEE

(@)

(0)

(b)

BB EeEnN _—_E-—FF
A=+ BEZTALRAA
THBUABE -

HFHEENR T - —FHA
=+ —HAHEAARRTE

ERTHBH -
EEBEER T -_TFL
A+hBEZERERAH
TES -
EHATR-_E-FF+A
+HBEZTAERRABIERR
TEE -

P EER T - —&+
A+—BBEARRIBILIE
WITEE -

RBEZZT-_FA=+
HIEFE - WEAARAAH
TEEIMNEA(ZT=—
F o WHEIELL) o HHN - A&
B ERITES RE I
HITEBINE AR
SRS MBAREERMER
2 HEE - S ARERAE -

RBEZTE-__FKR=F
—T—FEXA=ZtHIFE -
BhEE B REE -

AARAREFALEERY
ELET T 1t
HECHAGA M BHREM
I MBEERR -

EERRER

REBE-E-_—F A=+
BIEFE  EF2WEURIK
BF 46,0008 L (= F = —
F : 56,00077T) °
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REMBERREEE &)

For the year ended 30June 2022 HEZT-_—FA=+HIEFE

13. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

220

(M

Benefits and interests of directors
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received any
termination benefits during the year (2021:
HKSNI).

Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the
Company did not pay consideration to any
third parties for making available directors’
services (2021: HK$Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporates
and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 30 June 2022, there
was no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of the directors, or
controlled body corporates and connected
entities of such directors (2021: HK$NIl).

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or
contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Company’s
business to which the Company was a party
and in which a director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year (2021: HK$NIil).

13. EFRINRERLELIERER
FEAME 2

() E=TARERE)

(c) E=BBEFN

FR - BEESEC WEEM
BHEBEEN (2 —F: F
HBIT) o

(d FEESESREOE=SE
HzE

BE-_Z-_—FxXA=+H
IEFE  ARRWEZRIE
EEREAEMRE =
RE(ZEZ—F: FF

JC) ©

(e) FELEE FREEZX
BEEZERBESRESZ S
AZER BERREMR
Z2ER

BHE T -__FA=+H
HEE WENEEHEH
EF RN EABREER
BAIBZAZER  EBEX
REMZ S (ZT=—
F:FE) e

( EBRXRES ZHHEHZ
EXEH

AR B AER] LA F AR F
P RS 1748 2 B R A A
ZEBABAEEEENRS
BERETHEEEARE ZE
ARG ZHREHCZE
——F T -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBERERME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-—ZE—_—F <XA=F+HILFE

13. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 13. EFRFRERLURIALIEES
DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID FEEME =&
EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(ii) Five highest paid employees (il TEESHEEMSE

emoluments

The five highest paid employees of the Group
during the year ended 30 June 2022 included two
(2021: three) directors, details of whose
emoluments have been set out above. The
emoluments of the remaining three (2021: two)
individuals are as follows:

HeE - _#A=1tHItHF
E AEEREESHEERE
CZRIES
HEFBE R EXH I - B8
ZZ(ZE—F mMB)ALTZ
BT :

2021
—E-—%

HK$'000
THET

Salaries, allowance and e RMEEYHZE

benefits in kind 2,010 1,850
Retirement benefit ROREFET IR

scheme contributions 54 27
Total w@st 2,064 1,877

The number of the highest paid employees who
are not the directors and the chief executive
officer of the Company whose emoluments fell

BRI TN HMAER 2 IFEE MR
RAREITBRABRZ &= HE
BABIT

within the following bands is as follows:

HKS$Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$6,000,000

Z% L% 1,000,000/ 7T
1,000,001 # 7L % 1,500,000 7T - -
1,500,001 % 7L £ 6,000,00078 7T - -

Total
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

fRaMBRRME 2

For the year ended 30June 2022 HEZT-_—FA=+HIEFE

13. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 13. ESRIRERLREGES
DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID FESME 2

EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(ii) Five highest paid employees (i)
emoluments (Continued)

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during years ended
30 June 2022 and 2021.

In prior years, share options were granted to non-
director highest paid employees in respect of their
services to the Group, further details of which are
included in the disclosures in Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements. The fair value
of such options, which has been recognised in the
statement of profit or 10ss over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the
amount included in the consolidated financial
statements for the current year is included in the
above highest paid employees’ emoluments

LEBSHESME (&)

REBE_T__FR_FT_—%F
NAZTHLEFE  AEEWE
MEALEREFALTNHE -
ERRSIEEMBEARERE S MNE
1& 2 RENSERBETMIE -

RBEFE  ARAIMRIFEFK
= % BN B /5 7K 5% B AR 75 1 A 182
ERMBERE  EZFHBDHA
RAEMBHRAWEI7NREEFR
A HEBRENR T EERE
HEREBEmRAER  AFER
R BHEE - Mat ARNFLEHER
MHEBERNBETHN EXRS
HHEEMENEREERA -

disclosures.
14. DIVIDENDS 14. KR
The directors of the Company do not recommend the KAFEBEEVEEZZRNEE -
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 30 June ZZFERNAZTHLEFEZRERE
2022 (2021: HK$Nil). (ZZ=—F :TF) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBERERME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-—ZE—_—F <XA=F+HILFE

15. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on
the following data:

Loss B8
Loss attributable to KREHEB ARG
owners of the Company B8

15. SR\

ARBHEAARESRERREEE
BOETEERATHIE

2021
= —dE

HK$'000
TR

122,867 822

Number of shares ROHAE
Number of/weighted average AR ESRER

number of ordinary shares for T ESEEE 2 TR

the purpose of basic and 28 T

diluted loss per share 1,855,903 1,778,994
For the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021, the BE-_ZE-_—FF-_2%2=-—9%H

computation of diluted loss per share does not assume
the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share
options as the exercise prices of the share options were
higher than the average market price of the shares of
the Company. The basic and diluted loss per share were
the same for the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021.

=+HLEFE ARBEREZITEE
BRARBKRHFHTE A8
RS EEEETEBRRAQARRT
FHEREETF BT -
F—E - —FEXNA=ZAHIEFEEZS
REEAR R EEEEAR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBERERME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-ZE-_—F XA=F+HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. M3 - BB KX s

224

Furniture
Leasehold Computer fixtures and Motor
improvements equipment equipment vehicles
HEWE BR - #E
%15 ERRE &L AE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR AT TR T
Cost BA
At 1July 2020 RZZE-ZFt+A—A 4,026 2,817 316 6,731 13,890
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAF (147) (168) (68) - (377)
Additions WE 217 - - - 217
Write-off sy (1,802) (6] 8) - (1,818)
Exchange realignment 3L 234 250 2 - 507
At30June2021and 1July 2021 H-Z-—%,A=+H
k=Z=—F+A—H 2,534 2,891 263 6,731 12,419
Additions NE 71 - - - 71
Write-off g = (308) (75) - (383)
Exchange realignment ek (65) (62) 3) = (130)
At 30 June 2022 RZE-—F A=1+H 2,540 2,521 185 6,731 11,977
Accumulated depreciation ~ RiHTERBE
and impairment
At1July 2020 RZZZZF+A—H 3,554 2,157 224 4,362 10,297
Eliminated on disposal of REERB AR ER
subsidiaries (64) (69) (20) - (153)
Charge for the year FELTH 459 216 29 1,199 1,903
Write-off s (1,802) @) 3) - (1,809)
Exchange realignment R 202 19 16 - 14
At30June2021and 1July 2021 H-ZE-—%,A=+H
k=F--FtA—H 2,349 2,496 246 5,561 10,652
Charge for the year (Note 9) FEX (M) 153 154 10 1,170 1,487
Write-off g = (292) (71) - (363)
Exchange realignment i 7 AR (65) (58) (3) - (126)
At 30 June 2022 RZE-—Fx A=1+H 2,437 2,300 182 6,731 11,650
Carrying amounts REE
At 30 June 2022 RZZE-—FA=tH 103 221 8 - 327
At 30 June 2021 RZE=—%A=1H 185 395 17 1,170 1,767
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBERREEE &)

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-—ZE—_—F <XA=F+HILFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

17. ERERE

2021
—E-—F
HK$'000
FHIT
Carrying amount AREE
Properties leased for own use g AEEYE 2,133 3,463
For the year ended 30 June BEAA=1THLEE
Carrying amount at the beginning REY) 7 REE
of the year 3,463 7,155
Additions =T - 3,809
Depreciation (Note 9) e (H:E9) (1,330) (6,679)
Write-off T 58 = (955)
Exchange realignment bE 5 7% - 133
2,133 3,463

Expenses relating to
short-term leases

Total cash outflow for leases HERSRHR%E

B5E HITH SRR X

2021
T

HK$'000
THET

1,022 1,446
2,640 8,389

For both years, the Group leased various offices for its
operations. Lease contracts were entered into for fixed
terms of 1 year to 3 years, but may have extension and
termination options as described below. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. In determining
the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

The Group has not early terminated leases for
properties for the year ended 30 June 2022 (2021: early
terminated certain leases for properties and resulted in
a gain on derecognition of lease of approximately
HK$225,000).

KMEFERN  AEBEESERQ
ERANES - AIVEESG O ZERE
HENF—F2=%F" BAKEFET
SRt 2 SE &= e 4% 1SR R A - THE I
RIRERERETER  BE%E
RGBT o TR EEE AE 8 T A
THHEBENRER  NEEER
BHAMNERLEE S WA R AITE
HAfE] ©

BHE-_ZT-_—_F#~A=Z=+HIFE"
AEBVERIKIEDERE(ZT
TFRAKRIEMEZAETHE
BHRIEERAE 2 %) 225,000
JT) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBERERME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-ZE-_—F XA=F+HILFE

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18. LR E

Exhibition Trademarks
holding right and brands Total
RESENE BERmE Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET FET
Cost B
At 1 July 2020 i ¢tﬂ = 16,720 27,443 44,163
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWEB QA (16,720) - (16,720)
Exchange realignment bE 5 S - 2,675 2,675
At30June 2021 and 1 July 2021 R ZE=Z—FA=+H
rZEZ—%+A—H - 30,118 30,118

Exchange realignment RIS - (791) (791)
At 30 June 2022 RZEZ=FA=1H - 29,327 29,327
Accumulated amortisation Z3H s RiR{E

and impairment
At 1 July 2020 N—ZE-TFELA—H 9,243 20,629 29,872
Charge for the year $F S - 5,140 5,140
Eliminated on disposal of A B B A B B L 6

subsidiaries (9,243) - (9,243)
Exchange realignment RIS - 2,139 2,139
At30June 2021 and 1 July 2021 R—Z = E/\ﬂ +H

k=ZE-_—F+HA—H - 27,908 27,908

Charge for the year (Note 9)  FE X (HizE9) - 1,153 1,153
Exchange realignment bEE 5, B - (769) (769)
At 30 June 2022 RZE-—FRA=+H - 28,292 28,292
Carrying amounts BREE
At 30 June 2022 RZE-_—FXA=1H - 1,035 1,035
At 30 June 2021 A\_E_—FA=1H - 2,210 2,210
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

fRaMBERRME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE—ZT_—FA=THILFE

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Intangible assets comprise of exhibition holding right,
and trademarks and brands.

The above intangible assets have finite useful lives.
Such intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the following periods:

Exhibition holding right
Trademarks and brands

5 years
37-116 months

For the year ended 30 June 2021, exhibition holding
right with carrying amount of approximately
HK$7,477,000 was disposed upon disposal of
subsidiaries as disclosed in Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Particulars regarding impairment testing on intangible

18. |MLHE ()

BNEECRRESRNE  ARD
BRMmE -

LBV EEEGEREMAFH - &
FEVEERAOENIAT RS

RE2 R 54
PR K b8 37 E1161E A

He_Z-_—FXA=+tHILFE -
WA A SR RMIECETHE - &
EE#97,477,00078 7T 2 & & < £ it 4
ERHEMBARBHE -

BERETVEEREANR ZFBENGEE

assets are disclosed in Note 20 to the consolidated SRR M TE 20 FE o
financial statements.
19. GOODWILL 19. B &

2021
HK$°000
FHT
Cost R
At the beginning of the year REY 291,416 314,541
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHRB AR = (23,125)
At the end of the year RER 291,416 291,416
Accumulated impairment losses Z:iHEEEE
At the beginning of the year REY] 50,966 38,144
Impairment loss recognised in RIEHER 2 REEE
profit or loss 111,418 35,947
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries > & b B X 7185 1§ - (23,125)
At the end of the year RER 162,384 50,966
Carrying amounts AREE 129,032 240,450

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are
disclosed in Note 20 to the consolidated financial
Statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBEHRERMEE )

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-ZE-_—F XA=F+HILFE

20.

228

IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill and
intangible assets that generate cash flows together with
the related goodwill set out in notes to the consolidated
financial statements have been allocated to four
individual CGUs (2021: four), comprising subsidiaries in
Fortune Selection Group cash generating units
(“Fortune Selection CGU") engaged in provision of
brand management and related services, subsidiaries in
Cheer Sino Group cash generating units (“Cheer Sino
CGU") engaged in provision of promotion and
consulting services, subsidiaries in the CIS Group (“CIS
CGU") and subsidiaries in Hananhal Group (“Hananhal
CGU") engaged in provision of financing services. The
carrying amounts of goodwill and intangible assets (net
of accumulated impairment losses) as at 30 June 2022
and 2021 were allocated to these CGUSs are respectively
as follows:

20. 8 R\ R E 6 E AR

RBEAAMS  EXRESRENT
BREFEENRGEVEREHN T
FrEMmBEmES » 2N EBIR
SELBM(ZE-—F: O@E) - B
¥EFortune Selection (@I & EE BT
#IFf B 2 7] ([ Fortune Selection £
EEEN]) (REREREEENIEH
R7) EEEERSELXBMANE
AR([EEREEEEM]) (RERHE
HERFARS)  NHEEMNHBA
BN BREEAEN) NELESE
ErBEAR((ERERESELEN])
(RERHBERS) -RZT=Z=
—E_—FRXA=TH EBREX
ERSELXBENNBEREREE
B R2ETREEE) MERAES BT ¢

Goodwill Intangible assets
BE BREE
2022 oAl 2022 2021
—E_- —E-—F —E_C T —
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET THET TET
Fortune Selection CGU  Fortune Selection
RNEEEBM 2,087 31,836 1,035 2,210
Cheer Sino CGU ELRNSEEBM 126,511 208,180 - -
CIScau VRS EEBA 334 334 - -
Hananhal CGU BEREREEEBM 100 100 - -
Total 4B 129,032 240,450 1,035 2,210
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
REMBERREEE &)

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE—ZT_—FA=THILFE

20. IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL 20. G2RERLIEREINSR 2

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2022, with reference to
the professional valuation performed by the Peak Vision,
the management of the Group has determined that an
impairment loss of approximately HK$111,418,000 (2021:
approximately HK$35,947,000) arose in relation to
goodwill allocated to certain groups of CGUS. There were
no material changes in the methodology and sources of
market data applied in the valuation between 2022 and
2021. After reviewing the performance of Fortune
Selection CGU and Cheer Sino CGU in 2022, the
management of the Group revised the carrying amounts
of Fortune Selection CGU and Cheer Sino CGU
downwards based on cash flow forecasts. The cash flow
forecasts, growth rates and discount rate as at 30 June
2022 have been reassessed taking into consideration
higher degree of estimation uncertainties due to how
the COVID-19 pandemic may progress and evolve.

The recoverable amounts of CGUs were determined
based on a value-in-use calculation with the assistance
of the independent professional qualified valuers not
connected with the Group. The calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by the management. Assumptions were used in the
value-in-use calculation of the CGUSs for the years ended
30 June 2022 and 2021. The major underlying
assumptions on which management has based in the
preparation of cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill are summarised below:

Discount rate per annum — the discount rates used are
post-tax rates that reflect current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGUs.

Budgeted revenue and budgeted profit margin —
management determined budgeted gross margins
based on past performance, existing sales contracts
and management expectations for the market
development.

Terminal growth rate — the rate used is with reference
to the long term average growth rates and expected
market development.

BHE_ZT-_—_FNA=+tHILFE"
KB2ESBETHEEMGER K&
EEREECHEE "REEETHREE
BT 4H B A9 P A E A 49 111,418,000
B (ZZF=—1F 1 4935,947,0007%7C)
MABEBE RZTEZ_Fk=%
Z—F - AREENFERTSER
KRIWEENE - KB T ==
F Fortune SelectionIR & EAE B M
TREELEEMNMNRRE  AEEE
BEREIRE/RETER - T FFortune
SelectionIl @ EAEBUNELERSE
HEBEVMERE RZE-__F,XA
=+H" ﬁim%%% &R KA
REBEEHMIH BFERED
KMDWE1WHL&&“W@W$
MER = IRE AT -

ReEABEUMAWEEEDEER
SEEBNBEIEESKREEMO G
BTRBECHAEESEMETE ° %t
EERERNEEESECHMBEE Y
REeEmEEH - RETEHZE T ——
FR_E-_—FXAZ1THIFEH®
REELEUNERBEREEAR
Ho BEENREIRG METER A
THERENRREKENEEZEA
BB T

BEMAX — MEANER TR
HERREEEZ AN MISH LR
TEABMSERBR 2 REMNEX -

Bl RIRERTIE — S ERE
ﬂﬁ%ﬁ HANEANREREY
SRR A R E R -

BIKMER — FERANTIRNESE
EHTMERRASTIEEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
REMBERREEE &)

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE=-Z

20.

230

IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Fortune Selection CGU

The value-in-use calculation used cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a three-year period, and at a discount rate of
13.06% (2021: 13.33%). Cash flows after the three-year
period were extrapolated using a 2% (2021: 3%) growth
rate, after considering the economic conditions of the
market.

The trademarks and brands were assessed by the
directors of the Company for impairment as part of the
impairment assessment of the brand management
services as the trademarks and brands belonged to the
Fortune Selection CGU for impairment testing purpose.

For the year ended 30 June 2022, impairment loss of
HK$29,749,000 (2021: HK$6,518,000) has been provided
as the budgeted average revenue reduced to
approximately HK$2,204,000 (2021: approximately
HK$5,791,000), and the recoverable amount of this CGU
was reduced to HK$3,122,000, and no impairment loss
has been allocated to intangible assets with carrying
amount HK$1,035,000. The impairment loss on goodwill
arose as a result of the less than satisfactory past and
expected performance of the Fortune Selection CGU.

Cheer Sino CGU

The value-in-use calculation used cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a three-year period, and at a discount rate of
13.06% (2021: 13.33%). Cash flows after the three-year
period were extrapolated using a 2% (2021: 3%) growth
rate, after considering the economic conditions of the
market.

For the year ended 30 June 2022, impairment loss of
HK$81,669,000 (2021: HKS$NIl) has been provided as the
budgeted average revenue reduced to approximately
HK$22,559,000 (2021: approximately HK$28,083,000),
and the recoverable amount of this CGU was reduced
to HK$126,511,000. The impairment loss on goodwill
arose as a result of the less than satisfactory past and
expected performance of the Cheer Sino CGU.

==%& 75 =1 (Bl le&ElE

20. BEEEREERENR 2

Fortune Selection H £ E £ E{u

FREEFEFEFRAEREREHEZ
—FHMBEECHESRETER - B
WEH13.06%(ZF=—4F : 13.33%) °
KERBMBEEMRRE  FH2% (=

——%F : 3%) BREUAME = FHR
ZBRERE -
SUBERAME - AREENREB

M Fortune SelectionI & E A B AL » I
AAREZCHEERREETRE
i EAREEEREBET G
— &8 o

BE_ZTZ-__FAZ=ZTHIEFE -
AR 8 B S 5 IR E R = 4 2,204,000 7%
TL(ZZF = —4F 1 475,791,000 T) °
BZBReEESMNZA KRB SREE R
3,122,000 7T - O TR EE B
29,749,000 jt( — T — —
6,518,000/ 7T) - BERBEBESER
BR TE & /5 1,035,00078 TTHY E L & EE o
222 (B &5 18 T R 72 Fortune Selection
ReELBEUBENMBHRRREN
@(o

ELSHREELEN

FREBEFTEFRAEREEENE2
—FHHBEE R RETEN - B
B K A18306%( — T = — 4F:
13.33%) ° LEEMIHLEMRMNIE » F
2% (ZZ = —%F : 3%) & KR LU
—FHRZIRERE ©

BE-_T-_—_FAZ=ZTHILEFE -
A TEE TR = £ 22,559,000 %8
TT(ZZ = —% : 428,083,000 7T) °
BZBEeEESBEMZA KB SREE R
% 126,511,000 7T ° Eﬂzazﬂm;ﬁ%ﬁ%
181,669,000 (=T =—F : TF
TT) e EEBEEBEITHRETRSE
HEBAAE R TBEERRIA/REM ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
ReMBERE )

For the year ended 30June 2022 HEZT-_—FA=+HIEFE

20. IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL 20. BE2RERIEREIR 2

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

CIS CGU

The value-in-use calculation used cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a three-year period, and at a discount rate of
15.23% (2021: 15.16%). Cash flows after the three-year
period were extrapolated using a 2% (2021: 3%) growth
rate, after considering the economic conditions of the
market.

During the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021, the
management of the Company determines that there is
no impairment on CIS CGU. The recoverable amount is
significantly above the carrying amount. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any of
these assumptions would not result in impairment.

Hananhal CGU

The value-in-use calculation used cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a three-year period, and at a discount rate of
16.18% (2021: 14.04%). Cash flows after the three-year
period were extrapolated using a 2% (2021: 3%) growth
rate, after considering the economic conditions of the
market.

During the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021, the
management of the Company determines that there is
no impairment on Hananhal CGU. The recoverable
amount is significantly above the carrying amount.
Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not result in
impairment.

2021/22FF3R o #

NHREELEN

FTREEFECTREREREREZ
—FHMBBEE R RETEN - BY
B’ K B1523%( = T = — F:
15.16%) ° K&E B TIHZEBEMRMNIE - F
2% (ZF=——%F : 3%) R ELAHE
—FHE 2B ERE -

HE-_Z-_—_F#k=-_Z=-—F1-A

“t+HIEFE ARAEEEETX

FREELAEMIWERE - JKE2

HEeNEEE - BBERE AW

DZ BREZEMEEUREEE  HT
BEURE ©

RRERESELEN

FRHEBFEFREREREMEZ
—FHUKEE RS RETEA - B
WEE16.18% (ZF = —1F : 14.04%) °
KERBMBGELBEMRNE  FH2% (=
T —F  3%)BRRAHE = F %
Zfﬁimui"

BE-_ZT-_—_Fk-F=-—F7<A
—THLEFE ARG EEEETEZ
ZERSEEEMIEBE - AT KO
cHERNEEE BEERA
HEZ—%TE““ZEHAF‘ET CEE) 13
TEBYRIE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBERERME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-ZE-_—F XA=F+HILFE

21. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 21. EEMBLOTFIZHFS
SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company’s significant subsidiaries as at ARARIR—ZE-_—_FA=1tH2Zz=x
30 June 2022 are set out as follow: EWBRBZFBEINGOT -
Issued and fully
Place of paid ordinary Percentage of equity and voting power
incorporation/  share capital/ attributable to the Group
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital AEBEERERREEE DL Principal activities
ERTRHAR
R W LERRA/ Directly Indirectly
HWEAREE REHIY ZRER B 553 FTEEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-CF “F--F —F--F “FT--—&
Dazhi Ruoyu Entertainment Information ~ The PRC Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Trading of goods, provision
Technology (Hainan) Co., Ltd. * (Note (i) RMB50,000,000 of promotion services
ABEREEHR(EE) P HERARYE BRE5  REEERSE
ARAA (N 50,000,007
Faithful Progress Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 - - 100% 100%  Provision of bar brand
services
Faithful Progress Limited EBRNEE  LTRIEn REBERERS
Furuida Financial Leasing (Shenzhen) The PRC Registered capital = - 100% 100%  Provision of finance lease
Co., Ltd. * (Note (i) US10,000,000 Services
RhERARE (R HE AR REBSRERS
BRAA (M) 10,000000%7T
Great Getter Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Provision of operating
services
NEERRA i ER1BT RATEIRT
Greatest Best Limited HongKong Ordinary HK$1 = - 100% 100%  Investment holding
SERAA i ER1BT RABR
Great Wisdom-entertainment HongKong Ordinary HK$1 = - 100% 100%  Provision of promotion
International Limited Services
ABERERERAR B LRI R R
i-Lend Finance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - - 100% 100%  Provision of loan and
financing
REEHBERAA &k EiB10,000% T RUER LA
Mega Entertainment & Fair Hong Kong Ordinary - - 100% 100%  Organisation of exhibitions
(Hong Kong) Limited HK$1,000,000 and events
BREEEE (B8 ERAT i 381,000,000 7T BRREGRED
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REMBERERME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-—ZE—_—F <XA=F+HILFE

21. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 21. FEMELTIZEFE &)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Issued and fully

Place of paid ordinary Percentage of equity and voting power
incorporation/  share capital/ attributable to the Group
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital AEEEERERREED AL Principal activities
BRTRHR
FRERL/ EBRRA/ Directly Indirectly
HEARER REH ZMER HE Rk TTEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
“B-CE “E--F —F--F “FT--F
Nod (Shanghai) Culture Development The PRC Registered capital = - 100% 100%  Provision of brand identity
Ltd.* (Note (i) RMB1,180,000 design services
#E (L8 WBERBRAF ()  +& FMEFARE RRIE R R
1,180,0007C
Nod (Shanghai) Management The PRC Registered capital = - 100% 100%  Provision of bar and club
Communication Co., Ltd.* US$1,500,000 membership, wine and
(Note (i) liguor promotion, event
planning and
comprehensive consulting
services
#E(LE) CEEERNERAT PE HEx REEEREHREE -
(st (i) 150000057 FERERRER
ERFAREEFARY
NOVA (HK) Yachting Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 = - 100% 100%  Investment holding
HEBRALDERRA X LR1AT RARR
Phebe (Shanghai) Brand Management ~ The PRC Registered capital = - 100% 100%  Provision of brand
Limited * (Note (i) RMB1,180,000 management and related
downstream services
FRE(LE)RRERERAA D) +E HMERARE RERBERR
1,180,0007C THETHERE
Shanghai Chongya Business Development  The PRC Registered capital = - 100% 100%  Trading of wine and liquor
Co, Ltd. * (Note (i) RMBS$10,000,000
HRETHBRRAREALA () P& HERARYE EEXERER
10,000,0007C
Shanghai Dazhi Ruoyu Information The PRC Registered capital = - 100% 100%  Provision of software and
Technology Co., Ltd. * (Note (i) RMBS$ 15,000,000 technology services
PEREERESHRARRE () = HMERARE B R RE
15,000,000 7T
Shanghai Lin Yun Exhibition Service The PRC Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Organisation of exhibition
Limited Liahility Company * (Note (i) RMBS$ 1,000,000 and trade shows
FEREeRRBEREALA(HE)) +E HMERARE BRREEREFRE
1,000,0007C
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-ZE-_—F XA=F+HILFE

21. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 21. FEMELTIZEFE &)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Issued and fully

Place of paid ordinary Percentage of equity and voting power
incorporation/  share capital/ attributable to the Group
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital AEEEERERREED AL Principal activities
BRTRHR
EMERL/ LERBRA/ Directly Indirectly
WEARER REH ZMER HE 53 TTEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
“B-CE “E--F —F--F —FT--F
Shanghai Phebe Food & Beverage The PRC Registered capital = - 100% 100%  Provision of brand
Management Co., Ltd. * (Note (i) RMB5,000,000 management and related
downstream services
FEFREARERERRAIRM)  PE HMERARE RERBERR
5,000,0007C BT RS
Shanghai Shouxin Commercial Factoring ~ The PRC Registered capital = - 100% 100%  Provision of credit factoring
Co., Ltd. * (Note (i) RMB100,000,000 services
HETFEEEREARAR (M) HE AMERARE REEERERS
100,000,0007T
Shenzhen Qianhai Yuanchen Culture The PRC Registered capital = - 100% 100%  Provision of contracting and
Development Co., Ltd. * (Note (ii) RMB10,000,000 entertainment equipment
solution services
AEE TR EEERARMEE)) +E AMERARE R RRERBRR
10,000,000 7T LESLE
Yamiao (Shanghai) Cultural Development  The PRC Registered capital = - 100% 100%  Provision of contracting and
Co., Ltd. * (Note (ii) RMB10,000,000 entertainment equipment
solution services
DR(EE) L EEERERAA HE AMERARE R RRERBRR
(BE D) 10,000,000 GEST
* The English names of these companies represent * HRZEARVESCLRYEE  MZE
management’s best efforts at translating the Chinese names of BN EBAHEEERET N EBENEE -
these companies as no English names have been registered.
Notes: M5k
0} Limited liability company registered in the PRC. 0} RPBEEMEREERF
(i) Wholly foreign-owned enterprise registered in the PRC. iy  RPEFMZIEGBEERE -
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REMBERREEE &)

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HZE=-Z

21.

22.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group,
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group.
To give details of all the subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, result in
particulars of excessive lengths.

The Group had no subsidiaries which have material
non-controlling interests for the years ended 30 June
2022 and 2021.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities and
outstanding during both years at 30 June 2022 and
2021.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

The movements in deferred tax assets during the year
are as follows:

==%E 5= BUEEEE

21.

22.

FEMBLTIZESE @)

t%ﬁﬁﬁlJﬁZ$%|§ﬁE/ﬁﬁT  ThA

REEERRYAEEZREREE
ﬁikg’i&% c RRREZRS " 5
HEHHMBRRZHE @<ERB
I o

RBE_ZE-_—_FR-_FT-_—F~A
—t+BHILFE AEETENBERT
HHEE RN R g -

RZE—_—FR-_ZF-_—FA=+
AMEFE  ZSHE R ETH
i AREIE 2 B
EIERIAEE

EEHIBREENFANESHIERWT

Impairment
Deferred allowance
revenue for credit loss Total
EEFE
EE W s RE R wst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET FHET
At 1 July 2020 RZZE-ZF+A—H 805 - 805
Charged to the consolidated ~ BFE4&A BTG
profit or loss for the year (73) - (73)
Exchange realignment B 3B 77 - 77
At 30 June 2021 and #:7_ FXA=TH
1 July 2021 r=—Z2-—F+tH—H 809 - 809
Credited/(charged) to the BEEmAiEET
consolidated profit or loss A (0B (BEE12)
for the year (Note 12) (724) 11,415 10,691
Exchange realignment RIS 1 (352) (351)
At 30 June 2022 R-B-—F£XA=1+H 86 11,063 11,149

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had unused estimated
tax losses under jurisdiction in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$9,114,000 (2021: approximately
HK$8,141,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

RZEZ_ZFXNA=1+H KXEEYH
BAREBEERAARS AT HRIEE
491140008 L (ZFE=—F : 4
8,141,000 70 ) Al AR K $E R 2w 7 ©

R R % B SR N RI FB A0 - B R
RIELETIAEE ©
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-ZE-_—F XA=F+HILFE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. HHERRE

2021
= —dE

HK$'000
TR

Trade receivables from contracts KAEFPAHNES

with customers JEWRIE 42,642 49,652
Less: Impairment allowance R ERE (14,243) (838)
28,399 48,814
The Group has a policy of allowing trade customers with AEBZHEARAEBESEPIRTZE
credit terms of normally within 90 days except for BEH—RTHBBEVR HERE5Z
trading of goods which credit terms are normally 1 to 6 EEH—ME1Z6EA - BRHFIED
months. Settlement is made in accordance with the RRAEHBERX S 26 R HHE 2K
terms specified in the contracts governing the relevant FOETT c NEEIW B A E F R
transactions. The Group does not hold any collateral or BESKBEEANERSEMEERA
other credit enhancement over its trade receivables B BEREHR  BEBERERE
balances. The ageing analysis of trade receivables net HE ZZAMZ 28 ZEKFIE
of impairment allowance as at the end of reporting (MBRBERE) 2Rk AT

period, based on dates on which services rendered/
invoice dates, is as follows:

2021

T —F

HK$'000

FHT

0-30 days 0&30H 1,880 8,638
31-60 days 312 60H 546 7,729
61-90 days 612 90H 252 8,389
91-180 days 912180 H 7,596 14,370
181-365 days 1812365 H 16,365 9,678
Over 1 year 1F E 1,760 10
28,399 48,814
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-—ZE—_—F <XA=F+HILFE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. BHBKRIE &)
The ageing analysis of the trade receivables which are EEmBERRREZESRKREZ
past due but not yet impaired is as follows: BREE DT -
2021
—E-—F
HK$'000
FH&T
0-30 days 0&30H 1,937 6,019
31-60 days 31260H 2,103 4,902
61-90 days 61290 H 3,402 1,878
91-180 days 912180H 9,188 3,758
181-365 days 1812365 H 5,124 10
Over 1 year 1FE 221 -
21,975 16,567
The movements in impairment allowance on trade B RWIERERE 2 ZBIT

receivables are as follows:

2021
T —F
HK$'000
FHET
At the beginning of the year REY] 838 37,229
Amounts recognised/(reversed) FARER/(BE) L
during the year, net REE 14,634 (36,871)
Amounts written off MiEeE (780) -
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries 7 & i B A a8 - (2,119
Exchange realignment bE 5, SR B (449) 2,599
At the end of the year RER 14,243 838
Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables BEE S EWZEREN G 15
are set out in Note 5(b) to the consolidated financial R E I SRR 5T 5(0)

statements.
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-ZE-_—F XA=F+HILFE

24. FACTORING RECEIVABLES

24. REEWRE

238

2022 2021
—E=-= T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Factoring receivables IRIE FE W IR 447,695 349,328
Interest receivables from IRIE FE WO IR 2 FE WU B
factoring receivables 1,113 5,199
Less: Impairment allowance S R BB S (26,663) (468)
422,145 354,059
Analysis for reporting purposes as: RS B BT ¢
Current assets BB E 422,145 320,917
Non-current assets EMEBEE = 33,142
422,145 354,059
At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis HEREHAR BRESLHINHB MR

of factoring receivables, net of impairment allowance,
based on the maturity dates of the contracts, is as
follows:

18 7 U 2k T8 (SN R B B ) ~ B 5
T

2022 2021

—E-= = = =

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

0-30 days 0&30H 39,729 8,852
31-90 days 31290H 114,842 42,073
91-365 days 912365 H 267,574 269,992
Over 1 year HBiE1F = 33,142
422,145 354,059
The factoring receivables granted to customers are BT R B R IE 8 U B 2 5 AR
measured at amortised cost and generally for a period HE—RAEBRARNEAZE=F - RZ
of 6 months to 3 years. The effective interest rates of T__FXA=TH REREBWKIEA
factoring receivables as at 30 June 2022 ranging from B ERFERENF857% £ 17.06% (=

8.57% 10 17.06% (2021: 7.76% t0 15.00%) per annum. T —F :7.76% = 15.00%) °

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the Group has HE_Z-_—_FA=1+RHLFE"
renegotiated the contractual terms with factoring AEFENAREBELHEREPENEREL
arrangement customers to waive their interest or extent fERFR > LAEA T 2 sk RIE K 1B
the repayment. Based on the assessment performed by SEHET 2 FTEREERKK
the Group, all factoring receivables are regarded as EHHWRABFEERBIT HEZT
non-substantial modification. The amortised cost before CZFERNAZTRLEFE  EFIRK
the modification of receivables was approximately 7K 18 Al B 35 Pk 7N #) 73 453,433,000
HK$453,433,000 and the modification loss amounting to 7T MEE] B 18 494,625,000 JT AT A

approximately HK$4,625,000 was recorded in profit or
loss for the year ended 30 June 2022.

B e
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REMBERERME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-—ZE—_—F <XA=F+HILFE

24. FACTORING RECEIVABLES (continued) 24. FEEWKREA &)
The movements in impairment allowance on factoring RIBFEW G IBERERE 2 SEHAT -
receivables are as follows:
2021
= —dE
HK$'000
FHTT
At the beginning of the year REY 468 435
Amounts recognised/(reversed) FRER,/(BE)SHE
during the year, net TR EE 27,042 9)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 8 B (847) 42
At the end of the year RER 26,663 468
Details of impairment assessment of factoring BRAREBEERWIB ZREN G ZFE
receivables are set out in Note 5(b) to the consolidated B A SRR FES0) ©
financial statements.
25. LEASE RECEIVABLES 25. HEEKHRIA
2021
T —F
HK$'000
FHT
Lease receivables from ErpARS2HE
sale-leaseback transactions FEUN ZNIE 19,479 79,201
Less: Impairment allowance R ERE (3,343) (57)
16,136 79,144
Analysis for reporting purposes as:  FiRE B BT ¢
Current assets BB E 16,136 48,896
Non-current assets EMBEE = 30,248
16,136 79,144
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-ZE-_—F XA=F+HILFE

25.

240

LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued) 25.

At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of lease receivables from sale-leaseback transactions,
net of impairment allowance, based on the maturity
date of the contracts, is as follows:

HERKRE®)

RBER - RESOIHANER
B2 5 2 1 & e Wk I8 (HIER R E B
) 2 BRI DTN

2021

= —dE

HK$'000

FHT

Within one year —FER 16,136 48,896
More than one year but not BA—FBETBAME

exceeding two years - 29,809
More than two years but not BAMEBTBB=F

exceeding three years - 439

16,136 79,144

All leases are denominated in RMB. Lease receivables
from sale-leaseback transactions are measured at
amortised cost and generally for periods of 1.25 to 3
years. The effective interest rate of the lease
receivables from sale-leaseback transactions as at 30
June 2022 ranging from 7.17% to 10.00% (2021: 7.97% to
11.96%) per annum.

The movements in impairment allowance on lease
receivables from sale-leaseback transactions are as
follows:

FTEREUARBHE - E8EAKR
S5 B RKRGIEREHERAE
—MRAEB125F83F c RT - —F K
BA=+H #0852 HERK
FEZ BEBRFFENT7.17% = 10.00%
(ZZE=—F :797% E11.96%) °

S EERR SRS OE A E
Fels 2 BT

2021

T —F

HK$'000

FH&T

At the beginning of the year REH] 57 124
Amounts recognised/(reversed) FARER(BE)LE

during the year, net SRR 3,392 (76)

Exchange realignment b X PR (106) 9

At the end of the year RER 3,343 57

Details of impairment assessment of lease receivables
are set out in Note 5(b) to the consolidated financial
Statements.

BRAMRERYEZBER G 2FE
IR A M RARMEES0) °
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-—ZE—_—F <XA=F+HILFE

25. LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued) 25. HEBKRIE &)
Leasing arrangements HEZH
There was no unguaranteed residual value in RMEMR AEBTEE@AHEELR
connection with lease arrangements or contingent B sk AR E T HE 2 R EREEZAE
lease arrangements of the Group that needed to be HECEE ©
recorded as at the end of the reporting period.
26. LOAN RECEIVABLES 26. ERER
2021
—ET—F
HK$°000
FET
Loan receivables R E K 12,000 21,200
Interest receivables FEW B 5 2 R FILE,
from loan receivables 194 359
Less: Impairment allowance T BB R (20) (36)
12,174 21,523
Loan receivables granted to customers are measured at BT R B EWN S SR R A S
amortised cost and generally for periods of 6 to 12 — RERAGE AR R—E——
months. The loan receivables are unsecured with the EXA=+H EREZAEER.
effective interest rates of 8.00% (2021: ranging from FEEFEE300%(—E——& : N\
10.00% to 20.00%) per annum as at 30 June 2022. T? 1000%52000%) o
At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis REPEFR - ERALREIE B 8
of loan receivables, net of impairment allowance, based B (RS ERE) RO T :

on the maturity date in contracts, is as follows:

2021

T —F

HK$'000

THT

0-30 days 0Z30H 90 183
31-90 days 31£90H 103 175
91-365 days 91Z=365H 11,981 21,165
12,174 21,523
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26.

27.

242

LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 26. BUWERR (#)

The movements in impairment allowance on loan
receivables are as follows:

RRER 2 BERENEEIT

At the beginning of the year REY] 36 -
Amounts (reversed)/recognised FR(BE), TR

during the year, net SRFR (16) 36
At the end of the year REXR 20 36

Details of impairment assessment of loan receivables
are set out in Note 5(b) to the consolidated financial
Statements.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 27.
OTHER RECEIVABLES

M EFOREFGENFBH N RS
5w M FESD)

%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ RS Rt ER &

Current assets REEE
Prepayments SEENE ] 716 769
Payment in advance (Note a) TE# A (M5 a) 99 36,007
Deposits e 515 623
Other receivables (Note b) E bl srE (fsEb) 2,111 23,913
Less: Impairment allowance R Bt FE R IR

on other receivables B RS - (8,006)

3,441 53,306

Non-current assets FREBEE
Rental deposits HEZS 442 442
Total st 3,883 53,748
Notes: st -

a. The Group has prepaid approximately HK$35,736,000 to a wine
supplier for trading of wine & liquor as at 30 June 2021, which
was either utilised or refunded during the year.

b. The Group has entered into termination agreement with the
ship building company for the year ended 30 June 2021 and the
receivable was settled during the year.

a. R-Z-—FXA=+0 AEEHEH
EREERN R FEHEREMND
35,736,000/ 7T + 5 B ZUA S R F N E) A
SIRIE ©

b. BE_T-_—FXA=THLFE £X&
B 5 A X R RT S AR LR AR - B R R
HERFRMREE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-—ZE—_—F <XA=F+HILFE

27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 27. AfiRIE - ZEeRHEMEKRR
OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) IH&)
The movements in impairment allowance on other H b e W TER B B ERE ST

receivables are as follows:

2022 2021
—E—-= — = —E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FH&T
At the beginning of the year REY 8,006 -
Amounts recognised during FRNERLBFE
the year, net 580 8,006
Amounts written off WiHERE (8,586) -
At the end of the year RER - 8,006
Details of impairment assessment of other receivables H b FE WG DR E R B FE B B &R
are set out in Note 5(b) to the consolidated financial BB MEMIFESD) ©
statements.
28. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 28. RATFEIFARBGZEMEE
2022 2021
—=E—-= T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Early redemption right of RNAEVEFHIZRIER
corporate bonds 878 1,717
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong W& A _Eh 2 IR 55 269 233

1,147 1,950
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-ZE-_—F XA=F+HILFE

28. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (continued) 28. MAFEHABRZ2MEE

(%)
Details of financial assets at FVTPL are as follow: BB ATEFABRZZEMEEY
BT
Early
redemption Equity
right of securities
corporate listed in
bonds Hong Kong Total
DREHZ REBLT
12 A0 e ZRRER S oy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT FTAT FAT
At 1 July 2020 RZE-TF+HA—H 3,280 25,727 29,007
Disposal HeE - (12,544) (12,544)
Loss on change in fair value A F{EZBEIE (1,563) (12,950) (14,513)
At 30 June 2021 and RZZE=Z—%F A=1H
1 July 2021 r=—ZE-—%+HF—H 1,717 233 1,950
(Loss)/gain on change in NEEEE (BR), W
fair value (Note 9) (PH3E9) (839) 36 (803)
At 30 June 2022 RZE-__FRA=1H 878 269 1,147
Details of fair value measurement are disclosed in Note BEAFEFENFBERESTER
5(c) to the consolidated financial statements. M 5(C) KR FR -
29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 29. BERFSFERH
2022 2021
—E—-= = = =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Cash and cash equivalents 71,758 69,059
At 30 June 2022, the Group's bank balances and cash RZE-——FNA=Z+H " AEE
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately ARBHFENRTERERES ALY
HK$65,900,000 (2021: approximately HK$63,401,000). 65,900,000 jt( —Z & = — F: 4
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to 63,401,000 7T) © AR KRR INE
the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and 7838 <F B 8 O EE B IR AR K A5 BE -
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of EERMNEEERHRTE -
Foreign Exchange Regulations.
Bank balances carry interest ranging from 0.10% to BRITHEBEFIZ0I10%E035%(=F
0.35% (2021: from 0.10% to 0.35%) per annum. Z—F :0.10% =0.35%) 58 °
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-—ZE—_—F <XA=F+HILFE

30. TRADE PAYABLES 30. BHEMRIE
2021
—E 4
HK$'000
FET
Trade payables g SN FIR 3,420 8,611
The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables HEREHKR BEREEZFAHEN 2
presented on the basis of the dates of the invoices at B REMNZEZREDTTAOT ¢

the end of reporting period:

2022 2021
—E—-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
0-30 days 0&30H 1,455 212
31-60 days 312 60H - 5,011
61-90 days 61290 H - 252
91-180 days 91=180H - 777
181-365 days 1812365 H 14 1,029
Over 1 year BiE1F 1,951 1,330
3,420 8,611
The average credit period ranging from 0-180 days. FHEEHNFTO0E180RZH -
31. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 31. e¥ERE
2021
==
HK$'000
FAET
Brand management and o B 18 I AR B8 AR 7
related services 1,370 4,313
Trading of goods EmE S 178 108
1,548 4,421
Analysis for reporting purposes as:  BEBREB IS -
Current liabilities mENaE 1,548 4,360
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - 61
1,548 4,421
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31.

246

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current year relates to carried-forward
contract liabilities and how much relates to
performance obligations that were satisfied in prior
periods.

Revenue recognised that was

31.

REMNF AR WA BEEH

AR
TRINTNRAFEREEEHAGERE

RN BB LN BERMR D EK
BHEEERNRESH

2021

HK$'000
THETT

included in the contract liabilities # 2 R U E
balance at the beginning of the year
— Brand management and — HEEE KBRS
related services 4,252 7,345
— Promotion and consulting services — — HERE K 54 3 IR 7% - 23,153
— Trading of goods —EmES 108 6,118
4,360 36,616

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

Brand management and related services

The Group receives upfront lump sum payments from
the customers before the commencement of use of
license and monthly fee in advances for the brand
management services rendered from the certain
customers at the beginning of each month. The upfront
lump sum and advance payment result in contract
liabilities being recognised.

Promotion and consulting services

The Group receives upfront lump sum payments from
the customers before the commencement of the
membership and upfront lump sum payments from the
certain customers before the promotion and consulting
services were rendered. The upfront lump sum
payments result in contract liabilities being recognised.

HERSNBRESBRERTEN—
RS R IRRA0T

m b B T % A R AR A

RFmERERA - NREBREP R
B—XBENHIE - ERE AR
HmEEERBEE T EPWIERN
HE - —RBANKRENEN TG

RAMmE’E-

e R X wA W AR A%

KRR NEBERZPPE—
PROBTEN IR - RN IR B K R
ARTS A R 3 T & P YA — B TR 3K
He — BN FRAEHERANEA
f& e
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-—ZE—_—F <XA=F+HILFE

31.

32.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued)

Trading of goods

The Group receives upfront lump sum payments from
certain customers before the goods are transferred to
customers. The upfront lump sum payments result in
contract liabilities being recognised until the control of
the goods has been transferred, being the goods has
been delivered and accepted by the customers.

LEASE LIABILITIES

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities of the Group'’s lease liabilities at the end of
the current reporting period:

31.

32.

anaR@®

BmEs

REMBBEEFH ARERET
EPWE—RBEMHIEA - — KB
NRAEBHEREGNAE  EEAMm
MEHECER (ARARE RNAEEE
BEFEX) BRI -

HEAR

TRINTNABERH RN AKEHEE
BEZHBREDIHER

At 30 June 2022 At 30 June 2021
RZE-Z#xA=+H RZE=Z—F A=+H
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payment
REHAE RIEHAE REAE SEHE
RFREE R L NHEE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FTET FExT FHIT FET
Within 1 year —FR 1,260 1,440 1,311 1,617
After 1year but within -~ —%& A HBTHE:@
2 years kS 1,155 1,200 1,260 1,440
After 2 years but within -~ A HB T8
5 years HF - - 1,155 1,200
1,155 1,200 2,415 2,640
2,415 2,640 3,726 4,257
Less: total future interest & : &K F| £ L
expenses 1HBER (225) (531)
Present value of HEBBRE
lease liabilities 2,415 3,726

The incremental borrowing rate applied by the Group
was 10.39% per annum for the year ended 30 June 2022
(2021: 10.39%).

2021/22FF3R o HBEEBERERAT

REBE_Z-__FA=1THIFE "
AEBDERAZESERFNRE
10.39% (ZZFE=—4% : 10.39%) °

247



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBERERME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-ZE-_—F XA=F+HILFE

33.

34.

248

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

33. ErtEARAEMEMREA

Accruals FEFtE R 2,740 2,683

Other payables H b~ F0E 4,646 10,147
7,386 12,830

CORPORATE BONDS 34. AFIEH

The carrying amount of corporate bonds recognised at RI|EHKREZ Y A BEESEmALST

the end of the reporting period was calculated as g
follows:
Unlisted Unlisted Unlisted Unlisted Unlisted
bond bond bond bond bond
(“Bond I) (“Bond 1) (“Bond I")  (“Bond IV")  (“Bond V")
ALmEF KEmEF ALnfEF  KLWEF  KLEfEF
(T&%10) (M&#n)  (EHm)  (EHIv) (TM&%v))
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT THAL AL THAL
(Note @) (Note b) (Note ¢) (Note d) (Note g)
(ffi5¥a) (FirzED) (FizEc) GEL) (Frzke)
At 1 July 2020 R-Z-FFLA-H 2,785 915 1,866 1921 304,781 312268
Redemption e - - - (2,000) (240,000) (242,000)
Gain on early redemption REEE 2 W - - - - (9,040) (9,040)
Loss on non-substantial FEXBIZEE
modification - - - - 12,908 12,908
Effective interest expenses SRR 298 9 225 105 19,467 20,194
Less: interest paid HERAHNE (188) (62) (125) (26) (27,164) (27,565)
At 30 June 2020 and RZEZZFXA=TA
1 July 2021 RZZE-—FtA-H 2,895 952 1,966 - 60,952 66,765
Redemption B (3,000) = (2,000) - (24,000) (29,000
Gain on early redemption P 2 W (EE9)
(Note 9) - - - - (381) (381)
Loss on non-substantial FEXEITZER
modification (Note 9) GED) - - - - 4,700 4,700
Effective interest expenses BEF 8 (1)
(Note 11) 293 104 52 - 4,076 4,525
Less: interest paid ERRRANE L) (188) (62) (18) - (5,834) (6,102)
At 30 June 2022 RZBE- % A=+H = 994 - - 39,513 40,507
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HZE—=Z

34. CORPORATE BONDS (continued)

E_—FAA=THLEEFE

34. 2FRRF @)

2021
= —dE

HK$'000
THETT

Analysis for reporting purposes as:  ftid B B9 -
Current liabilities mEEE 40,507 65,813
Non-current liabilities EnEaE - 952
40,507 66,765

Notes:

@

In June 2018, the Group issued an unsecured corporate bond
(“Bond 1”) with principal amount of HK$3,000,000, carrying
interest at the rate of 6.25% per annum payable annually for a
term of 4 years, which will be due on 11 June 2022. The effective
interest rate is 10.21% per annum. The Company has the right
to redeem the outstanding principal amount at agreed time
before the optional redemption dates, which are 11 June 2019,
11 June 2020 and 11 June 2021 with at least 7 clear business
days written notice, but the bondholder has no right to require
the Company to redeem the corporate bond. The redemption
right is not recognised in the consolidated financial statements
since the directors of the Company consider that the probability
of exercise of the redemption right is remote. The directors of
the Company have considered the fair value of the redemption
right at initial recognition is insignificant. Accordingly, the fair
value of the redemption right was not accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements as at 30 June 2022 and 2021.

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the Group has fully
redeemed the Bond | with principal amount of HK$3,000,000.

In August 2018, the Group issued an unsecured corporate bond
through a placing agent with principal amount of HK$1,000,000,
carrying interest at the rate of 6.25% per annum payable semi-
annually for a term of 4 years, which will be due on 16 August
2022 (“Bond 11"). The effective interest rate is 10.46% per
annum. The Company may at any time before the maturity date
of the bond, redeem the bond by giving not less than 10
business days’ prior written notice at 100% of the principal
amount of such bond together with payment of interest accrued
thereon up to the date of redemption. Subject to the conditions
of the bond instrument, the bondholder shall not have the right
to request the Company to redeem the bond prior to the
maturity date of the bond. The redemption right is not
recognised in the consolidated financial statements since the
directors of the Company consider that the probability of
exercise of the redemption right is remote. The directors of the
Company have considered the fair value of the redemption right
at initial recognition is insignificant. Accordingly, fair value of the
redemption right was not accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements as at 30 June 2022 and 2021.

2021/22FF 4 o HREBMERBERAT

RZB—NFRA  NEEETEASES
3,000,000 Tz EMERATNESF([EF
1)« HiR6.25% 2 F ML - ABFX
=R FHANF BRZZTZ_FX
A+—AEH8 - EEFFER1021% &K
NEBEREEEERBHEIZZ—N
¢AH+ A - ZZ=-ZFXA+—HBK
—FRAtT—B)AIzZEERE -

FRELLAXEEEAZENBAED
MABEZASE BEHFEBEARRES

SKAREEERRMES - BRETENER
AU BHBREAER  REAALAGESRR

BITEERREZATEMEM - AARES
RARNHEREELRE 2 AFELTE
Re B BEREZAFETAR-ZE

CToERZE-—FRNAZTBZEAH
EIRE AT -

_?_

HE-_Z-_—_FXA=1THILEER &
E@E%%k &%+ 7 & %8/3,000,000
I o

RZZ-NFN\A AEEEBLEERE
LTS % /31,000,000 8 7T 2 SRR A F
1 % BIR6 5% 2 F MK E - AEF

FXM—R ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂi R
FNA+TRBHBESN]) - BEEFF

%Em%%°¢ A A A& B A B RT{E
s BREHTIRTEEEEZE
SEMBINABRRESFRAST 2 100% @ &
AXNEEZECBHESZFEBEE
F o HBEFXBEZEHEZIRRT - EFF
BEAEEERAQRIRNESDEAE 2 ATE
B{E% - BEETERGE T HREATE
R REABAARESRAITEERE Y
AREMEM - RARIEER %FW?@‘
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34. CORPORATE BONDS (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

250

(©

In August 2018, the Group issued an unsecured corporate bond
through a placing agent with principal amount of HK$2,000,000,
carrying interest at the rate of 6.25% per annum payable semi-
annually for a term of 3 years, which will be due on 23 August
2021 (“Bond III"). The effective interest rate is 9.13% per
annum. The Company may at any time before the maturity date
of the bond, redeem the bond by giving not less than 10
business days' prior written notice at 100% of the principal
amount of such bond together with payment of interest accrued
thereon up to the date of redemption. Subject to the conditions
of the bond instrument, the bondholder shall not have the right
to request the Company to redeem the bond prior to the
maturity date of the bond. The redemption right is not
recognised in the consolidated financial statements since the
directors of the Company consider that the probability of
exercise of the redemption right is remote. The directors of the
Company have considered the fair value of the redemption right
at initial recognition is insignificant. Accordingly, fair value of the
redemption right was not accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements as at 30 June 2022 and 2021.

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the Group has fully
redeemed the Bond Il with principal amount of HK$2,000,000.

In September 2018, the Group issued an unsecured corporate
bond through a placing agent with principal amount of
HK$2,000,000, carrying interest at the rate of 6% per annum
payable semi-annually for a term of 2 years, which will be due
on 16 September 2020 (“Bond IV”). The effective interest rate is
8.19% per annum. The Company may at any time before the
maturity date of the bond, redeem the bond by giving not less
than 10 business days’ prior written notice at 100% of the
principal amount of such bond together with payment of
interest accrued thereon up to the date of redemption. Subject
to the conditions of the bond instrument, the bondholder shall
not have the right to request the Company to redeem the bond
prior to the maturity date of the bond. The redemption right is
not recognised in the consolidated financial statements since
the directors of the Company consider that the probability of
exercise of the redemption right is remote. The directors of the
Company have considered the fair value of the redemption right
at initial recognition is insignificant. Accordingly, fair value of the
redemption right was not accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements as at 30 June 2021.

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group has fully
redeemed the Bond IV with principal amount of HK$2,000,000.

34. 2FREF »@)

BaE : ()

©
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE—ZT_—FA=THILFE

34. CORPORATE BONDS (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

)

In November 2018, the Group issued unsecured corporate
bonds through a placing agent with principal amount of
HK$300,000,000, carrying interest at the rate of 15% per annum
payable quarterly for a term of 2 years, which will be due on 7
November 2020 (“Bond V"). The fair value of the bonds at the
date of issue was HK$330,620,000. The effective interest rate is
10.41% per annum. The Company may at any time before the
maturity date of the bonds, redeem the bonds by giving not less
than 10 business days’ prior written notice at 100% of the
principal amount of such bonds together with payment of
interest accrued thereon up to the date of redemption
(“Issuer’s Early Redemption Right"). Subject to the
conditions of the bond instrument, the bondholders shall not
have the right to request the Company to redeem the bond
prior to the maturity date of the bonds. The fair value of the
Issuer’s Early Redemption Right at the date of issue amounted
to HK$30,620,000. The embedded derivatives derived from
Issuer’s Early Redemption Right is classified as current asset
and carried at fair value. Any changes in fair value will be
recognised in profit or 10ss.

On 11 September 2020, the Company executed a supplemental
deed poll for the unsecured corporate bonds with principal
amount of HK$300,000,000 to modify the maturity date from 7
November 2020 into two maturity dates, 7 November 2020 and
7 November 2021. Based on the assessment performed by the
Group, the modification is regarded as non-substantial
modification. The loss on modification of corporate bond of
approximately HK$12,908,000 is recognised in profit or loss at
the date of modification.

On 5 November 2021, the Company executed a supplemental
deed poll for the unsecured corporate bonds with principal
amount of HK$36,000,000 to modify the maturity date from 7
November 2021 to 7 May 2022. On 6 May 2022, the Company
executed a supplemental deed poll for the unsecured corporate
bonds with principal amount of HK$36,000,000 to modify the
maturity date from 7 May 2022 to 31 December 2022. Based on
the assessments performed by the Group, the modifications are
regarded as non-substantial modifications. The losses on
modification of corporate bond of approximately HK$3,225,000
and HK$1,475,000 are recognised in profit or loss at each of the
dates of modification respectively.

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the Group has early
redeemed part of Bond V with principal amount of
HK$24,000,000 (2021: HK$240,000,000).

34. 2FRF )

BsE : (&)

©)

RZZE-—NF+—A AEBBEBREER
P 217 7N 4 58 /5 300,000,000 78 7T 22 4 4 3
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35. SHARE CAPITAL

252

35. B&&F

Nominal
Number of value
ordinary of ordinary
Par value shares shares
EfE EEREE EEREE
HKS HK$'000
BT TAT
Authorised: EE
At1July 2020,30June 2021, R-Z-TEHE+H[—H -
1July2021and30June 2022  —E-—FxA=1+H-
e St: S ol =03
—E-_FXA=1H 0.002  5,000,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRESBE
At 1 July 2020 RZZE-EFt+H—H 0.002 1,521,873,223 3,044
Placing of shares (Note a) FeE ks (FisEa) 0.002 292,500,000 585
Conversion of convertible notes & Al AR Z 4% (Fiisth)
(Note b) 0.002 41,530,054 83
At 30 June 2021, 1 July 2021 RZZEZ—F-A=+H"
and 30 June 2022 “E-—F+A-BR
—E-—#XA=+H 0.002  1,855,903,277 3,712
Notes: PiE -

(@)

(0)

On 24 July 2020, the Company entered into a placing agreement
(the “Placing Agreement”) with a placing agent pursuant to
which the Company had conditionally agreed to place, through
the placing agent on a best effort basis, up to 292,500,000
placing shares (the “Placing Share(s)”) of the Company at a
placing price of HK$0.13 per Placing Share to not less than six
placees who are professional, institutional or other investors
that are third parties independent of the Company and its
connected persons. The Placing Shares would be allotted and
issued pursuant to the general mandate approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 6 December 2019. On 20 August 2020, a
total of 292,500,000 ordinary shares were issued pursuant to
the terms and conditions of the Placing Agreement.

On 24 June 2021, CN Il with a principal amount of
HK$76,000,000 were converted into 41,530,054 shares at a
conversion price of HK$1.83 per ordinary share. The convertible
notes were issued to the vendor upon the fulfilment of the profit
guarantee for the three-year period ended 31 December 2020
relating to the acquisition of the entire equity interests of Cheer
Sino Group.

(@)

(b)

NOVA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. HEMEB LT
For the year ended 30 June 2021, the Company HE-ZT-_—FA=Z1+THLFE"
disposed of its entire 100% equity interest in Mega ARam—BBULE=ZFHEERK
Exhibition International Limited and its subsidiaries, at a MEERBRER AT RZARKBA
consideration of HK$29,500,000 to an independent third A Ay & B Rz i - (B & 29,500,000
party. The gain arising from the disposal was calculated Lo BEEAZWZSEMT -
as follows:
Analysis of assets and liabilities over RREFECEERBEDN:

which control was lost:

HK$'000
FET
Assets BE
Intangible assets mEE 7,477
Property, plant and equipment Y BERRE 224
Financial assets at FVTPL BRATEFABRNEMEE 24,581
Other receivables H th & W I8 993
Cash and cash equivalents HekReFEERR 115
33,390
Liabilities =Fi
Contingent consideration payable S SARE (3,506)
Other payables H fth &~ 508 (625)
(4,131)
Net assets disposed of EHEBEFRE 29,259
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 9): HEM B A AU (FIEE9) :
Consideration received B E 29,500
Release of non-controlling interest upon RS B A B AR bR JEIE I i
disposal of subsidiaries 547
Release of exchange reserve FRIRIE H 1,070
Release of statutory reserve fRBRIE T R 554
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE (29,259)
2,412
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HERELENBESRATFE
Cash consideration received BEMEeRE 29,500
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHEREeRRESEHEIER (115)
29,385
For details, please refer to the Company’s EHEFHE B2HARN-E-_Z
announcement published on 19 November 2020. F+—A+BHEZE Mo
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37.

254

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) by a resolution in writing passed by
the shareholders on 18 October 2013, for the purpose
of attracting, retaining and rewarding eligible persons
and to provide the eligible persons an incentive or
reward for their contribution to the Group.

The eligible persons of the Share Option Scheme
include directors of the Company, employees,
consultants or advisers, providers of goods or services,
customers, holders of securities issued by the member
of the Group and any other person who has contributed
to the Group (“Eligible Persons”).

The subscription price of the share options shall be a
price determined by the Board of Directors and shall be
at least the highest of (i) the closing price of share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the offer date; (i) the average of the closing price per
share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date; or (iii) the nominal value of the share.

The Eligible Persons shall accept the offer at the date
not later than 21 days from the offer date or otherwise
be deemed to have declined it. An option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Board of Directors to
each grantee, which period may commence on a day
after the date upon which the offer for the grant of
options is made but shall end in any event not later than
10 years from the date of grant of the option subject to
the provisions for early termination thereof. Unless
otherwise determined by the Board of Directors and
stated in the offer of the grant of options to a grantee,
there is no minimum period required under the Share
Option Scheme for the holding of an option before it
can be exercised.

37. MERRHERT &
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 37. BBk #ERT R (&)

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the total number of shares in issue as at the date of
approval of the Share Option Scheme. After the
refreshment of the limit of the Share Option Scheme
with the approval of the shareholders on 10 May 2019,
the maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of the refreshed limit of 146,290,000
options (being 10% of the issued share capital on 10
May 2019) together with all outstanding options as at
the date of this annual report carrying the right to
subscribe for 26,630,000 (2021: 26,630,000) shares is
172,920,000 (2021: 172,920,000) shares, representing
approximately 9.32% (2021: 9.32%) of the total number
of shares in issue as at the date of this annual report.

Details of movements of the share options granted
under the Share Option Scheme for the years ended 30
June 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

BRI BB IR A 5T 2R 2 A A B AR
BITEMA FRHITZBRMDEE - AH
TRBANERETEEMLEZAD
BTN EER10% - BRER-ZT—H
FRA+BHAEHBRETEZR
R 1% - & 2 F PR %8 146,290,000 17 B8
BiE(MRER-_T—AFEFRAT+HZE
AT AR 2 10%) i B A A =) B 23k
2] R BE 26,630,000f% (=T = —4F ¢
26,630,000 0% ) A% 1 2 ¥ F| 2 2 & 1 &
TEEREETEZIBRT - /] T8
T2 ESE A A172,920,000 B (=
T = —4 1 172,920,000%) © BE R
FRAPEHITRMGEEL9.32% (=
T :1932%)

HE_ZT-_—_F#Kk-_F-_—FXA
—t+HREFEREERETZRLZ

Exercise Outstanding Granted Outstanding
Category of price at 1July during Cancelled/ at 30 June
participants Date of grant per share  Exercise period 2021 the year Exercised Lapsed 2022
RZE=-% R-B-Zf
tA-H REEE B/ AB=TH
SEEEA RiEAH SROKE AEEE WALTE ERN gk XX WAITE
HK$ '000 '000
A TH TH
(Note a) (Note b)
(Hita) (Hf&tb)
Executive director
HiEs
Deng Zhonglin 1June 2018 189 31December 2018 0 12,000 - - - 12,000
31 May 2028
Hine —5-)\§5A-H “5-\E+ZfA=1-HB%
“2-\fRA=t-H
Employees 1lune 2018 189 31December 2018 o 14,630 - - - 14,630
31 May 2008
&8 —5-\E7A-H “E-\EtA=t-RZ
ZEZ\ERA=T-R

26,630

26,630
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBERERME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-ZE-_—F XA=F+HILFE

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

256

37. MRBxEEHE (&)

Brercise Qutstanding Granted Qutstanding
Category of price at1July (uring the Cancelled/ at 30June
participants Date of grant pershare  Exercise period year Exercised Lapsed
A ~A=TH
iR BRARkE  fRHE HALTR BTl HATTE
HKS 000 000 000
BT T T
(Note a)
(GEZ)
Executive director
Uz
Deng Zhonglin 1June 2018 189 31 December 2018 0 12,000 - - - 12,000
31 May 2028
Hing “Z-\FRA-H “E-\EtA=t-RZ
“TZ\FRA=H-A
XuFeng 1June 2018 189 31December 2018 0 9,680 - - (9,680) -
31 May 2028
it —5-)\§5A-H “E-\Et-AZt-RE
“Zo/\FRA=T-A
21,680 — - (9,680) 12,000
Employees 1June 2018 189 31 December 2018 0 58,740 - - (64,110 14,630
31 May 2028
B8 —5-)\§5A-H “I-\ET-AZt-RE
“TZ\FRA=T-A
80,420 - - (53,790) 26,630
Notes: Mitr
(@  The vesting of the options is conditional upon the fulfilment of @ EREEASFEEAEBEZETREIEZE
certain performance targets relating to the Group. All the share EKE O FSRE - REBRETSRD
options granted under the Share Option Scheme are subject to ZEAERENFEBINT  25% M EAR
the following vesting period: 25% of the share options are BR—_E—-NF+_A=1+—HE=ZF
exercisable from 31 December 2018 to 31 May 2028, 25% of the ZN\FRA=Z+—BHEAFTE - 25%
share options are exercisable from 30 June 2019 to 31 May HERER - ALEANA=-t+HEE—"T
2028, 25% of the share options are exercisable from 31 ZNFRA=+—HHMBATFITE - 25%
December 2019 to 31 May 2028 and 25% of the share options HWEBRERA-_Z—-NE+-_A=+—HZE
are exercisable from 30 June 2020 to 31 May 2028. ZZE ) N\FRA=+—AESEA FITER
2% HERER T -_ZTFA=+THE
—E-N\FRA=+—BEMEA T -
(b)  The share options were cancelled due to resignation of (b) REE-_ZE-__FR_TE-_—FA=1+

executive director and employees during the years ended 30
June 2022 and 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

fRaMBERRME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE—ZT_—FA=THILFE

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The assessed fair value at grant date of options granted
was HK$0.794 per option. The fair value of share options
at grant date is assessed by Peak Vision using the
Binomial Option Pricing model that takes into account
the exercise price, the term of the option, the impact of
dilution (where material), the share price at grant date
and expected price volatility of the underlying shares,
the expected dividend yield the risk free interest rate for
the term of the option and the correlations and
volatilities of the peer group companies.

The inputs used for the valuation of the options granted

37. MRk HERTE ()

ER N BRENR L B B A &G
NVPERSNBREC7MBTT - R
EA-—AABREEEEAFGER
ERREBHORTE ZEAZE
TEE BRENFR BHENTE
(HEEX) - FH B R(E MBS
i R ERZE - RS W
K BEREFR2ANERRA X
AR FIR S E A R A RS R BN IE o

ARERHZBREZ fE 2B AR

included: BRI
Grand date % H HA 1June 2018
—ET-N\FH—H
Expiry date FIE5H 31 May 2028
—E-_NFHRA=1T—H
Spot stock price (HK$ per share) BNEARR B (BB TT) 1.85
Exercise price TEE 1.89
Expected price volatility (%) TEHER (B LK 1R (%) 33.02
Risk-free interest rate (%) 4 2% T 2R (%) 2.2
Expected life of options (year) BE P 2 TEHA R HE (4F) 10

On 1 June 2018, the Company granted an aggregate of
100,000,000 share options under the Share Option
Scheme, at an exercise price of HK$1.89 per share. The
share options granted to each grantee shall vest
conditional upon the fulfilment of certain performance
targets.

The Binomial Option Pricing model requires input of
subjective assumptions such as the expected volatility.
Change in the subjective input may materially affect the
fair value estimates. The expected volatility is
determined by calculating the historical volatility of the
share price of listed companies with similar business as
the Group.

RZE—NERNA—H  XQAIRE
B8 % 4 51 21 & ££ % 1 100,000,000 17 B
B (TEEBAERISETL W&
ERARLZEREASETRRE
ZEBBHARE -

—AR BRI RSB AR
53R (T AR IB) - RN AU
PHATRY A F AN EEEARE -
T A3 0B B A S A K A2
Wz LA 2R R EREEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBERERME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-ZE-_—F XA=F+HILFE

38. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 38. MEEDIMMELEARCHIE
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Lease Corporate
liabilities bonds Total
HESE DEES Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
(Note 32) (Note 34)
(BF&E32) (BizE34)
At 1 July 2021 RZZE-_—FtA—H 3,726 66,765 70,491
Financing cash outflows: BMERSRL
Capital elements of ENEEREZ
lease rentals paid BRE D (1,312) - (1,312)
Interest elements of ENHEREEZ
lease rentals paid B E D (306) - (306)
Interest paid ERFE - (6,102) (6,102)
Redemption of BOARGES
corporate bonds - (29,000) (29,000)
Other changes: Hib g s
Loss on non-substantial ENCHVNG-
modification of B8
corporate bond - 4,700 4,700
Gain on early redemption of 2R EEIAFIES 2
corporate bond Wiz - (381) (381)
Exchange realignment BEE 5 3 1 - 1
Finance cost BhERAR 306 4,525 4,831
At 30 June 2022 RZE-_ZFA=1H 2,415 40,507 42,922
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REMBERERME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-—ZE—_—F <XA=F+HILFE

38. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES

38. MEEBFIEEARZEBIR®)

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

Convertible
Contingent bonds/
Lease consideration Corporate  convertible
liabilities payables bonds notes Total
At TRRES
HESE HARE ARES  THRREE @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TET TAT
(Note 32) (Note 34)
(HizE32) (PirE34)
At 1uly 2020 R-E-F&+A-H 7411 9,611 312,268 - 329,290
Financing cash outflows: BEBETE
Capital elements of lease EREERECERHA
rentals paid (6,456) - - - (6,456)
Interest elements of lease EREEHEE 2 FIEHH
rentals paid (487) - - - (487)
Interest paid BRFIE - - (27,565) - (27,565)
Redemption of corporate BERARES
bonds - - (242,000) - (242,000)
Other changes: HiEH
Reclassification from REFZAREER
contingent consideration AEZAHRES
payables to convertible
bonds
— Liability component BEHs - (71,782) - 71,782 -
— Equity component —ERHS - 66,591 - - 66,591
Lossonchangeinfairvalue  WiEzmwRs ATE
recognised in profitor loss &g - (914) - - (914)
Loss on non-substantial FEAETRAEF R
modification of
corporate bond - - 12,908 - 12,908
Gainon early redemption of ~ RREEEATES 2 Wz
corporate bond - - (9,040) - (9,040)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR - (3,506) - - (3,506)
Lease terminated BARIHRE (1,180) - - - (1,180)
New lease entered BFIHHE 3,805 - - - 3,805
Exchange realignment B 5% 146 - - - 146
Finance cost AR 487 - 20,194 376 21,057
Conversionduring the year et - - - (72,158) (72,158)
At 30 June 2021 RZE-—FxA=1A 3726 - 66,765 - 70,491
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBEHRERMEE )

For the year ended 30June 2022 HEZT-_—FA=+HIEFE

39.

40.

260

MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES
TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had entered into the
following related party transactions, which in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, were carried
out in accordance with terms negotiated between the
parties and in the ordinary course of business of the
Group.

Remuneration for key personnel management, including
emoluments paid to the directors of the Company and
certain employees of the Group, as disclosed in Note 13
to the consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits

39. EXEBA RS

PR B M RREME O IREESIN -
AREBEFZATHEBIRS  MAR
REERA AEXZIREITNT
BEREZGRAEAEEZBEEBKB
FEFRETT

BEERE 2HM (BRI TARF]
EEAKBEETREZHE (B
B UMK 13PTHEE)) T ¢

2021

HK$'000
THETT

e R MEYH S

in kind 4,306 4,841
Retirement benefits scheme RREFIFT IR

contributions 100 83
Total compensation paid to key MEREE ST 2 BH

management personnel 4,406 4,924

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong classified as
financial assets at FVTPL with carrying amount of
approximately HK$269,000 (2021: approximately
HK$233,000) are placed in margin accounts with a
regulated securities broker. No margin facility was
utilised as at 30 June 2022 and 2021.

40. BEHEE

DEREBRATEFAEBRZCEREE
ZEBLET R EZF(EEREY
269,000 0 (—ZF = — 4 : #7233,000
BT EFTHR —RIRENEFL
LAZREBEEFAN - RZT ==

F—ZE-—FA=Z1+H" RELE
BEEAEHAE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
ReMERRME D

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE—ZT_—FA=THILFE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 41. A ARIZHMEBIKAE
OF THE COMPANY

Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries AHB AT ZIEE 228,908 298,540
Current assets REEE
Prepayments and other receivables T8+ 3k 18 & E th fE U 5518 269 377
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE UL B A B FR 304,046 343,262
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABRZERHEE 879 1,717
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEEE 4,026 3,692
309,220 349,048
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables FERTE A K HAtb FE T 5RIE 1,814 1,341
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTHI B A AR IE 143,200 154,440
Corporate bonds NRMESH 40,507 65,813
185,521 221,594
Net current assets REBEEFE 123,699 127,454
Total assets less current liabilities @ &ERRBEE 352,607 425,944
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Corporate bonds NEESH - 952
NET ASSETS BEFEE 352,607 425,042
Capital and reserve EXR#EE
Share capital A% A 3,712 3,712
Reserves (Note 42) M (3T 42) 348,895 421,330
TOTAL EQUITY EEER 352,607 425,042
The statement of financial position was approved and FHEMRAKEEFTERN T __F AN
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 AZ+=B#EREERZE - WHA
September 2022 and are signed on its behalf by: TEERAEE
Deng Zhonglin Wong Yuk Lun Alan
BB % BEEB
Director Director
EFE 2
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For the year ended 30 June 2022 #HE-ZE-_—F XA=F+HILFE

42. RESERVE OF THE COMPANY 42. XN T Z i
Convertible Share
Share  bonds/notes option  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
TR ES
BipiaE SERE BRERE R @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 { HK$'000
THr T T BT T
Asat 1July 2020 WZZZZTF+A—H 464,059 - 63,856 (249,619) 278,29
Profit and total comprenensive  EEEFIR2EUALE
income for the year - - - 100,970 100,970
Issue of convertible bond/note BITABRES /8 - (66,591) - - (66,591)
Conversion of convertible BaBRES /28
hond/note 5485 66,591 - - 72,076
Placing of shares RRERH 36,579 - - - 36,579
Share options lapsed FEBRNERE
during the year - - @2,711) 42,11 -
As at 30 June 2021 and RZE=-F:A=tBk
1 July 2021 —E--%+A-H 506,123 - 21,145 (105,938) 421,330
Loss and total comprehensive FEFER2ERIEE
expenses for the year - - - (72,435) (72,435)
As at 30 June 2022 RZE-ZFXA=TH 506,123 - 21,145 (178,373) 348,895
Note: M5k
Distributable reserves AR D IR EEE
Under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands, the share premium BERSESRAE - AQARMEERYT SR
account of the Company is distributable to its shareholder provided FHRBR  HEERKGRIRSERRE - K
that immediately following the date on which the distribution or NRVERINERAEEKBREFRNHZER -
dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company shall be able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
The application of share premium is governed by the Companies Act BHEBEZEAXBRE-NN—FAREMK
1981 of Bermuda (as amended). 1ERT)HRE -
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fRaMBERRME 2

For the year ended 30 June 2022 #ZE—ZT_—FA=THILFE

43. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
confirm with the presentation for the year.

44. APPROVAL FOR CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23
September 2022.

45. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

There is no significant event affecting the Company that
have occurred since the end of the year.

43. LLBBF

EFHEBETOEHHBUGTANE
B2 255 e
44. HEGESMBERE

gxepgpR ST -_—F#hLA-+=H
HofE R HI B AR & B TS 3Rk o

45. HENERER

BAFERAE  BEZLEZEARR
AMEREM
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Five-Year Financial Summary
AFEMFEE

For the year ended 30 June
BEZAA=THLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

“T-—%F ZT-FF —T-NF —T-NF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
THT TEL TEL FTET TAL

Revenue Yezs 112,161 228,069 551,112 576,120 254,051
(Loss)/profit before tax KRR (BB), w5 F (121,646) 35,688 210,220 194,567 113,140
Taxation FiA (1,221) (41,135) (68,050) (88,514) (22,435)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BRE)/mF (122,867) (5,447) 142,170 106,053 90,705
Attributable to: AT AL
Owners of the Company /NI 2PN (122,867) (822) 137,097 106,251 90,706
Non-controlling interests S - (4,625) 5,073 (198) ©)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (BR) /47 (122,867) (5,447) 142,170 106,053 90,705
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERARE
At 30 June
RAB=1H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E-C —Z-f% ZZZTE ZT-NE ZT-N\E
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HKS$' 000 HKS$' 000 HK$' 000
FHET FAEL FAL FAEL FAL
Total assets mEE 703,583 882,122 1,157,370 1,172,372 643,051
Total liabilities makE (57,665) (99,205) (459,717) (629,674)  (253,183)
Non-controlling interests Eaive £ - - (5,172) 4168 4,325

Total equity attributable to owners A% B A
of the Company fEfhEHER 645,918 782917 692,481 546,866 394,193

264 NOVA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22






	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	財務摘要
	主席報告
	管理層討論及分析
	董事之履歷詳情
	董事會報告
	企業管治報告
	環境、社會及管治報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	五年財務概要
	封底



